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City of Johnson City Tennessee
601 East Main Street· Johnson City, TN 37605 • (423) 434-6000

Office of Finance Director

December 18, 2009

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Board of Commissioners, City Manager and Citizens of the City of Johnson
City, Tennessee:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Johnson City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009 is submitted hereby, in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.89 of the Johnson City Code. This report
consists of the City's representations concerning the finances of the City of Johnson City. Consequently, the City
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the fmancial position and results of operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial structures have been included.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the
United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Information
related to this single audit, including the findings and recommendations and the auditor's reports on the internal
controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included as a part of this report.

This report includes all funds of the City, as well as all of its component units. Component units are legally
separate entities for which the City is financially accountable. The following are discretely presented in the financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City: Johnson City Public Library and the Johnson City
Development Authority. The Johnson City Public Building Authority is presented as a blended component unit of the
City. In addition, the State of Tennessee requires the Power Board to be included in the City's fmancial statements
since the fund was formed under a private act.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic fmancial statements. MD&A complements this
letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Financial Information

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure
that all assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal, state and county financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that
adequate internal controls are in place to facilitate compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. The internal controls are subject to periodic evaluation by management and the accounting staff of the City.

As a part of the City's single audit, previously described, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal controls, including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the
City has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

Independent Audit. The City Charter requires that an annual audit be made of the accounts, financial records
and transactions of the City departments by a Certified Public Accountant This fiscal year, the Certified Public
Accounting Firm ofBJackbum, Childers and Steagall, PLC audited all the City funds, except the Johnson City Schools
Site-Based Fund. That fund information has been provided by the audit firm and incorporated into this financial report.



Budgeting Controls. In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City
Commission. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Enterprise Funds and
Capital Project Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted for all
Capital Project Funds. The level of budgetary control is established on the department or activity level within an
individual fund.

Profile of the Government

Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the Board of Commissioners, consisting of the mayor and
four other members. The Commission is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, resolutions, adopting
the budget, appointing committees and hiring the City's manager. The City's manager is responsible for canying out
the policies and ordinances of the Commission, for over-seeing the day-to-day operations of the City and for appointing
the heads of departments. The Commission is elected on a non-partisan basis. Board members serve four-year
staggered tenus, with an election every two years. The mayor is elected to serve a two-year term.

The City provides a full range of services, as directed by its charter. These services include police and fire
protection, park and recreation activities, schools, a senior citizen's center, street construction and maintenance,
planning and zoning and general administrative services. In addition, water and sewer, electric power, transit service,
garbage pick-up, landfill, stonuwater, and golf are provided under the enterprise fund concept.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Johnson City, along with Kingsport and Bristol, Tennessee and Virginia, make up the "Tri-Cities" area of
Northeastern Tennessee. The area has an MSA population of 500,538. Business and industry in Johnson City are
diverse and include retail, utilities, financial, manufacturing, medical and other services. The City's economic base is
still firmly rooted in institutional services. The three largest employers are Mountain States Health Alliance, East
Tennessee State University and Citi Commerce Solutions.

The City continues to experience healthy population growth. As a result of the distressed economy,
unemployment rates for the Jolmson City MSA experienced an increase during the fiscal year, ending the year at 9.9%.
A balance of property and sales taxes support the City's finances. Property taxes continued a pattern of growth, while
sales tax collections suffered from the troubled economy. Nonetheless, effective cost containment by City departments
and the earlier implementation of innovative ideas, such as the gas-to-energy project, have allowed the City to continue
to cash fund capital equipment purchases, make cash contributions toward capital projects and operate with no increase
in the property tax rate. The City's property tax rate continues to be the lowest of all the surrounding areas.

Accomplishments

The City of Johnson City, in conjunction with neighboring municipalities and the business and education
community, conducted the 6th Annual Economic Summit during fiscal year 2009. The City's involvement in this
partnership for economic progress demonstrates a continued commitment to working for a stronger local economy,
improved quality of life, community pride, responsible city government and a more attractive community.

Noteworthy accomplishments ofthe city government for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009 are as follows:

II Acquired police and fire equipment and vehicles, public works equipment, school buses, parks and
recreation vehicles and equipment, solid waste equipment, stonuwater management vehicles and
water and sewer equipment, utilizing cash reserves.

.. Completed construction on Sunset Drive Improvement Project.

.. Continued construction on Tennessee Street Project.

.. Continued construction on Buffalo/Plymouth Road Project.

.. Continued construction project to upgrade the Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant.

.. Continued construction project to renovate the Science Hill High School 8-9 Campus.

.. Commenced construction on Mall Street Improvement Project.

.. Commenced implementing Energy Audit Improvements identified for City and School facilities.

.. Opened Preservation Pointe, an affordable housing subdivision developed jointly by the City and Eastern
Eight Community Development Corporation.

ii



4' Received Shining Star Award from Governor Phil Bredesen for the Up & At 'Em program designed to
encourage a healthier population.

4' Received National Association of Clean Water Agencies Awards for the City's wastewater treatment
plants, as follows: Knob Creek - Platinum, Brush Creek - Gold and Regional- Silver.

4' Received Kentucky-Tennessee Operational Excellence Awards for Brush Creek, Knob Creek and
Regional Wastewater Plants.

Capital Projects

The City government maintains and revises annually a five-year capital improvement program, which
identifies present and future projects, as well as funding sources. Proceeds fi'om general obligation bond issues are
accounted for in Capital Projects Funds until improvement projects are completed. Completed projects are transferred
to Capital Assets. Capital Projects Fund statements can be found in the nonmajor governmental fund statements,
following the notes to the financial statements. Capital Asset schedules can be found in the supplemental information
section.

Cash Management

All cash, except that which is restricted or invested, is pooled to gain a maximum interest rate. First
Tennessee, our depository bank, automatically invests all collected cash balances daily at an interest rate equal to the
interest rate on federal funds or higher. All funds are secured in the City's name with acceptable state or federal issues
equal to 100% of the deposited funds. The City's investment policy governs the investment of idle funds and mirrors
state law with respect to authorized investments. Investment practices are designed to emphasize safety of capital first,
sufficient liquidity to meet obligations second and the highest possible yield third.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Program includes all lines ofloss exposure. These exposure areas include: Worker's
Compensation, Property Damage, General Liability, Automobile Coverage, Errors and Omission, Crime, Boiler and
Machinery and Accidental Death and Dismemberment. The City is self-insured for some insurance coverage. Specific
and aggregate reinsurance is maintained to cover any losses in excess of self-insurance reserves. Health Insurance is
self-insured and was administered by Blue Cross and Blue Shield during fiscal year 2009.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers' Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Johnson City for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,2008. This was the City's eighth consecutive year
for receiving the award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current CAFR continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another award.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) could not have been accomplished
without the efforts and dedication of the Accounting staff throughout the fiscal year. I would like to express my
appreciation to the Accounting staff and personnel from various departments, agencies and authorities, as well as our
auditors, for assisting in the preparation and publication of this report. Also, I would like to thank the City Manager,
Mayor and Commissioners for their guidance and support.

Re~'ectfully submitted,
/" ..( .

(t{Ll1J;0ffi~
J&6et Jennings,tpA
Director ofFinance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Johnson City
Johnson City, Tennessee

REGIONAL EXPERTISE - LOCAL SERVICE

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30,
2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents. These
financial statements are the responsibility ofthe City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Johnson City
Schools Site Based Fund, a nonmajor special revenue fund, which represents 1%,2%, and I% respectively, of
the assets, net assets and revenues ofthe aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Johnson City Schools Site Based Fund, is based on the report of the
other auditors. We did not audit the [mancial statements of the Johnson City Development Authority, which
represents 6%, 6%, and 15% respectively, of the assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Johnson City
Development Authority, is based on the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfolll the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free ofmaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and
the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on ouraud it and the reports ofother auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information ofthe City of Johnson City, Tennessee as of June 30,2009, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereofand the respective budgetary
comparisons for the General Fund and the General Purpose School Fund for the year then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

801B Sunset Drive, P.O. Box 3745, J()hnson City. TN 37602-57·15
440 E. Sullivan Street, PO. Box 1504, Kingsport, TN :)7662-150'1
1140 Tusculum Boulevard. Greeneville. TN 57745-4039

(423) 282-4511
(423) 246-1725
(423) 638-8516

Fax C12.31 283-4532
Fax (423) 247-(,80()
Fax (423) 638-3361

website ~ http;//www.BCScpa.com e-mail; BCS(illBCScpa.com



Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December] 8, 2009,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, the analysis offunding progress for defined benefit pension plans,
and the analysis offunding progress for postemployment healthcare plans on pages 3 through 13 and pages J35
through 136, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, We and the
other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries ofrnanagement
regarding the methods ofrneasurement and presentation ofthe required supplementary infonnation. lIowever,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, supplemental information and statistical section are presented for purposes
ofadditional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
ofexpend itures offederal awards is presented for purposes ofadditional analysis as required by the U. S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required paIi ofthe basic financial statements of the City, The combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules, supplemental information and the schedule ofexpenditures
(If federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors,
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the
other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Jt~1f!~v~d~-(ll2(
BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & STEAcf.A.LL, PLC

December 18, 2009
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee (the City), we offer readers of the financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages i through iii of this report. All amounts included in this management's discussion and analysis,
unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in the thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

.. The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $407,058
(net assets). Of this amount, $320,804 is invested in capital assets (net afrelated debt) and $1,994 is
restJicted for specific purposes with 208 being nonexpendable.

.. The City's total net assets increased by $29,801 for the current period.
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending

fund balances of $73,621, an increase of $4,222 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount,
$47,658 is reserved for specific purposes. In addition, beginning fund balance increased $98 for
adjustments to inventory accounted for under the purchase method.

.. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $20,181, or 28% of total
general fund expenditures including transfers out. This balance included $474 committed for specific
purposes.

11> The City's total debt decreased by $414 (.2%) during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements.

This narrative overview is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: I) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This repOli also contains
required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private"sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes, etc.).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by ta-xes, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities), from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government,
public safety, public works, public welfare, city services and education. The business-type activities of the

3



City include water and sewer, city solid waste, regional solid waste, stormwater, power board, public
building authority, mass transit and golf courses. The government-wide financial statements can be found
on pages 13 through 16 of th is report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives, The City, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, the focus is on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the City's near-term financing requirements, Because the focus
of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may berter
understand the long-term impact of the City's near-ternl financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities,

The City maintains twenty-four (24) individual governmental funds. Nineteen (19) ofthese governmental
funds are classified as nonmajor and are summarized under the heading "Other Governmental Funds" in
the governmental fund presentation. Information is presented separately in the govemmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, general-purpose school fund, debt service fund, educational facilities debt
service fund, school capital project fund and nonmajor governmental funds, all of which are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for nonmajor governmental funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic governmental fund financial
statements can be found on pages 17 through 22 of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriation budget for its general and other major special revenue funds. A
budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two (2) different types of proprietary funds including enterprise
and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to repOJi the same functions presented as business­
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for
the water/sewer, city solid waste, regional solid waste, mass transit, stormwater, two golf courses, power
board and public building authority. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to
account for its fleet maintenance service and insurance activities. Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been primarily included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements,

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infol111ation as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information of the water and
sewer, city solid waste, power board and public building authority, which are considered to be major
funds of the City. Data from the other enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation, Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor enterprise funds is provided in the form of
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combining statements elsewhere in this repoli. Data from the City's internal service funds (motor
transport and insurance) are included in the proprietary fund financial statements under the heading
"Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds)". The basic proprietary fund financial statements can
be found on pages 31 through 38 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 41 through 130 of this report.

Other Information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds and nonmajor proprietary funds, are presented immediately following the notes to the
financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages
J33 through 162 of this report

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a City's financial position. In the
case of the City of Johnson City, assets exceeded liabilities by $407,058 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the City's net assets (79%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequentJy, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

5



City of Johnson City's Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current and other assets $ 140,684 127,747 84,907 9J,775 225,591 219,522
Capital assets 212,063 194,978 302,818 280,603 514,881 475,581

Total assets 352,747 322,725 387,725 372,378 740,472 695,103
Long-term 1iabi lities 109,332 101,723 135,681 141,324 245,013 243,047
Other liabi Iities 51,851 26,080 22,948 88,40J 74,799

Total liabilities 153,574 16J ,761 J64,272 333,4 J4 317,846
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 112,492 93,928 208,312 187,286 320,804 281,214
Restricted 208 J,786 483 1,994 483
Unrestric:ted 68,394 75,223 15,866 20,337 84,260 95,560

Total net assets $ 181,094 169,151 225,964 208,106 407,058 377,257

The City's net assets include a significant investment in capital assets (79%), net of the related debt, A
portion of the City's net assets (,4%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reports positive balances in all net asset categories.

The government's net assets increased by $29,801 during the CUlTent fiscal year. About 40% of this
increase ($11,943) was from the governmental activities while the remaining 60% of the increase
($17,858) was from the business-type activities.

The following is a summary of financial activities for the City during the 2009 fiscal year:

City of Johnson City's Change in Net Assets

Governmental

Activities
2009 2008

Business-type
Activities

2009 2008
Total

2009 2008

Revenues:

ProgTam revenues:
Charges for services

Operating grants & contributions

Capital grants & contributions
General revenues:

Property taxes

Sales taxes
Other taxes & intergovernmental
Unrestricted investment earnings

Other

Total revenues

$ 11,865

36,813

36,519

33,539

8,245
! ,305

12,780

141,066

9,611

35,525

31

36,459

34,905

8,475
2,560

29,340

!56,906

6

234,353

1,702

724

1,858

10
238,647

200,493

1,509
798

2,351

459
205,610

246,218

38,515

724

36,519

33,539
8,245

3,163

12,790

379,713

210,104

37.034
829

36,459
34,905

8,475
4,911

29,799
362,516



Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Expenses:
General government 13,518 12,983 13,518 12,983
Public safety 23,320 23,050 23,320 23,050
Public works 14,699 11,760 14,699 11,760
Public welfare 7,306 5,455 7,306 5,455
City services 3,078 2,263 3,078 2,263
Education 63,517 61,435 63,517 61,435
Interest on long-term debt 5,767 4,144 5,767 4,144
Water and sewer 22,831 21,711 22,831 21,711
City solid waste 8,060 7,813 8,060 7,813
Regional solid waste 1,871 1,819 1,871 1,819
Power board 178,834 153,414 178,834 153,414
Public building authority 1,985 1,806 1,985 1,806
Mass trHnsit 3,021 2,842 3,021 2,842
Stormwater management 774 495 774 495
Golf courses 1,331 1,462 1,331 1,462

Total expenses 131,205 121,090 218,707 191,362 349,912 312,452
Increase in net assets

before transfers 9,861 35,816 19,940 14,248 29,801 50,064
Transfers 2,082 2,203 (2,082) (2,203)

Change in net assets 11,943 38,019 17,858 12,045 29,801 50,064
Net assets, beginning of period 169,151 131,871 208,106 196,061 377,257 327,932
Prior period adjustment (739) (739)

Net assets, end of period $ 181,094 169,151 225,964~ 208,106

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Ci1y's net assets by $11,943, thereby
accounting for 40% of the total growth in the net assets of the City. Of this increase, a significant amount
of additional bond proceeds were rec.eived during the cun-ent fiscal year, but not expended prior to year­
end. Additionally, information regarding this inerease can be found in Note 2 on pages 54 through 55 of
this repmi.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $17,858 accounting
for 60% of the total growth in the City's net assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

.. Johnson City Power Board achieved a net income and contributed 72% of the total growth in net
assets for business-type activities.

.. Water and Sewer Activities achieved a net income and contributed 16% of the total net assets grO\,vth
(business-type activities) to provide funds for debt repayments and capital expansion as indicated in
the statement of cash flows located on pages 36 through 38 of this report.

'Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Johnson Ci1y uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.
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Governmental/andS'. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-tenn
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a City's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year,
the City's govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $73,621, a current year
increase of $4,222 in comparison with the prior year. Additionally, beginning fund balance increased $98
for adjustments to inventory accounted for under the purchase method. Included in ending fund balance
is a reserved balance of $47,658 to indicate that it has already been committed to: (1) public safety
projects funded by donations and fees ($1,987), (2) education projects ($43,593) and (3) for a variety of
other restricted purposes ($724).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund
balance reached $20,181, including $2,691 committed for specific purposes. As a measure of the general
fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures and transfers out. Unreserved fund balance represents 24% of total general fund
expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 28% of that same amount. The fund
balance of the City's general fund decreased by $2,773 as a result of transfers made to capital project
funds to cash fund equipment and projects (approximately $6,000). Additionally, beginning fund balance
was decreased $242 as the result of a transfer to set up the police technology fund.

The general-purpose school fund has a total fund balance of $5,854, of which $4,095 is unreserved. The
net decrease in fund balance during the cun-ent year was $823. This decrease is due entirely to capital
expend ltures.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City's debt service fund totaled $0. The net
change in fund balance was $0.

The educational facilities debt service fimd has a total fund balance of $(42). The net decrease in fund
balance \vas $837. This decrease is attributable to lower collections of the dedicated sales tax.

The school capital project fund has a total fund balance of $42,415, all of which is unreserved. The net
increase in fund balance during the current year was $6,589. This net increase is primarily due to bond
proceeds received but not expended prior to year-end.

Nonmajor (other) governmental funds have a fund balance of $5,213. 'rhe net increase in fund balance
during the CUlTent year was $2,066. This net increase is primarily attributed to real estate sales and
transfers made from the general fund to cash fund equipment and projects and not expended, The
beginning fund balances for nonmajor governmental funds were increased $340. These increases
included adjustments to inventory to account for the purchase method ($98) and a transfer to set up the
police technology fund ($242).

Proprietary funds. The City of Johnson City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail,

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund, City Solid Waste Fund and Johnson City Power
Board, at the end of the year, amounted to $6,843, $],129 and $6,321, respectively.

The Public Building Authority (PBA) is a blended component unit of the City and reported
unrestricted net assets of $1,107.
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Nonmajor (other) proprietary funds report.ed unrestricted net assets of $466. Total unrestricted net assets
of proprietary funds amounted to $15,866. Total grov.th in net assets for the proprietary funds amounted
to $17,858. Other factors concerning the financial position of these funds have already been addressed in
the discussion of the City's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Original and Final Budgeted Amounts. Differences, between the original budget and the final
amended budget for the general fund, represent a $657 increase in expenditures appropriations and an
$896 increase in net transfers appropriated, for a total of $1,553, and include the following:

$ 3,313

279

70
(258)

(1,974)

123
$ 1,553

Additional cash funding of capital equipment and projects from prior year reserves
Funding for public safety holiday pay not included in original budget
Funding for state fire supplement training pay
Move transportation planning fund out of general fund and back to a special revenue fund
Debt service savings
Other

After offsetting for debt service savings, the remaining $1,553 was primarily funded from reserves set
aside from prior years' surpluses.

Final Amended Budget and Actual Amounts. Differences, between the final amended budget and
actual results for the general fund, represent a $1,483 decrease in expenditures and a $1,159 deerease in
net transfers, for a total of $(2,642), and include the following:

$ (774)
(155)

(748)

(303)

(256)

(49)
(302)
(55)

~642)

Debt principal and interest savings
Lower than budgeted insurance-related administrative fees; Risk Management
Department
Less than expected personnel-related expenditures and supplies and materials due to
delays in filling open positions and overall spending reductions; General Government
Departments
Less than expected personnel-related expenditures and supplies and materials due to
delays in filling open positions and overall spending reductions; Parks and Recreation
Department
Less than expected personnel-related expenditures and supplies and materials due to
delays in filling open positions and overall spending reductions; Public Safety
Departments
Increase in transfer from power board for annual payment in lieu of tax
Lower transfers out to proprietary and internal service funds
Other

Since the budget to actual variance represents a reduction in required appropnations, no additional
funding was necessary_ Decreases in revenue totaling $2,578, when netted with the favorable expenditure
performance, resulted in a better than anticipated surplus of $64. The final budget anticipated a deficit of
$2,837. Revenue experienced lower than anticipated performance, with the most significant decreases
being realized in property tax ($623) and local and state sales tax ($1,610). The remaining decrease of
$345 came from lower state revenues for boarding of prisoners and municipal fines ($351) partially
reduced by increases of $6 in other categories.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Johnson City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2009, amounted to $514,881 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, plant in service, equipment and
vehicles, paving, transmission and power distribution system, garbage containers, infrastructure and
construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:

.. Acquisition of police and fire equipment and vehicles, public works equipment, school buses, parks
and recreation equipment, solid waste equipment, stormwater management vehicles, water and sewer
equipment and power board equipment.

.. Completion of Sunset Drive improvement project.

41 Construction in progress on Mall Street improvement project.
.. Construction in progress on Tennessee Street project.
.. Construction in progress on Buffalo/Plymouth Road project.
'" Construction in progress on upgrade to Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant.
.. Construction in progress on Science Hill High School 8-9 Campus renovations.
• Additional investment in Johnson City Power Board plant.
.. Construction in progress on Energy Audit improvements to city and school facilities.

City of Johnson City's Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009

Land $ 17,820 17,005 14,025 13,699 31,845 30,704

Buildings and Improvements 147,847 138,705 49,832 49,501 197,679 J 88,206

Plant and Lines 311,779 304,583 3 J 1,779 304,583

Vehicles and Equipment 33,615 31,835 33,789 28,442 67,404 60,277

In frastructure 149,331 141,333 149,331 141,333

Construction in Progress 20,808 16,693 35,021 16,884 55,829 33,577

Accumulated Depreciation (157,358) (150,593) (141,628) (132,506) (298,986) (283,099)

Total capital assets 302,818 280,603 47~,5~~

Additional infon11ation on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 4.C. on pages 64 through 66 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the CUITent fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $244,234,
All of this debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the government.
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City of Johnson City's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

2008 2009 2008

Notes payable $ 284 613 895 907 1,179 1,520

General obligation bonds 107,813 102,113 64,401 66,994 172,214 169,107

Revenue bonds 70,390 73,900 70,390 73,900

Capital Leases 368 83 121 451 121

Total Long-Term Debt $ 108,465 102,726 135,769 141,922 244,234 244,648

The City's total debt decreased by $414 (.2%) during the current fiscal year, as a result of principal
payments, partially offset by general obligation debt issued by the general government. Additionally,
during the cun-ent fiscal year, the government refinanced most of its existing general obligation variable
rate debt in an effmi to limit exposure to the volatile market.

The City maintains a 'AA-' rating from Standard and Poor's, a 'AA-' rating from Fitch and an 'A I' rating
from Moody's Investors Service, for its debt.

The City of Johnson City is subject to debt limitations imposed by its Charter. The total bonded
indebtedness (excluding sales tax revenue debt) shall not exceed 10% of the assessed taxable value of
propelty within the City. The current debt limitation for the City is in excess of the outst.and ing general
obligation debt, with the amount of debt applicable to the debt limit at only 5,3%. Additional
infol111ation on the City's long-term debt can be found in Not.e 4.F. on pages 68 through 93 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

.. The unemployment rate for the Johnson City statistical area is cun-ently 9.9%, which is an increase of
3.3% from a year ago. This compares to the state's average unemployment rate of 10.8% as of June
30,2009.

.. Inf1ationary trends in the region are comparable to national indices.

.. New construction permitted and inspected was dovvn 4.5% from the previous year, at $170 million.
Oil Growth in local sales tax collections is budgeted to approximate 2.4% in fiscal year 2010.

ShOJi-term interest rates on the City's pooled cash account decreased as a result of decreases in the
federal fund rate from 2% to .1 %. All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Johnson
City's budget for fiscal year 2010.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased to $17,490 due to
the cash funding of capital equipment and projects. All appropriations lapse at year-end. The City of
Johnson City has appropriated an additional $3.2 million of this amount for capital spending in the fiscal
year 2010 budget.

Water and sewer rates remained steady for the fiscal year. Likewise, residential, commercial and
industrial collection rates remained steady.

Discretely Presented Component Units
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The Johnson City Public Library (the "Library") is a non-profit organization under IRC Section 501 (c)3
incorporated in September 1989. The Library's Board of Directors is appointed by the City Commission
and an appropriation of at least 80% of its annual support is provided by the City. The City is obligated
to finance any deficits and all debt is financed by the City. The Library's propeli)' is also owned and
titled to the City. Separately issued financial statements may be requested from: Johnson City Public
Library, 100 West Millard Street, Johnson City, TN 37604.

The Johnson City Development Authority (the "Authority") is an organization whose purpose is to
facilitate business development within the City. The City Commission appoints a majority of the
Authority's Board of Directors and may impose its will on the Authority since the City can remove
appointed members of the Authority's Board of Directors. Separately issued financial statements may be
requested from: Johnson City Development Authority, 300 East Main Street, Johnson City, TN 37601.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City'S finances for all those with an
interest in such. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the City of Johnson City, Director of Finance, 60 J

East Main Street, Johnson City, Tennessee 37601.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component

Activities Activities Total Units

ASSJ:;I~

Cash on Hand $ 5,728 21,201 26,929 500
Cash on Deposit with Paying Agent 5,744 1,317,895 1,323,639
Cash in Bank 60,272,907 9,719,691 69,992,598 131,936
Cash on Deposit with State 10,072,766 392,702 10,465,468
Cash Due from Central Depository 7,539,356 8,862,691 16,402,047
Investments 155,254
Accounts Receivable 1,677,857 15,238,978 16,916,835 46,361
Notes Receivable 42,298 172,500 214,798
Internal Balances 584,839 (584,839)
Ta,xes Receivable 29,560,022 29,560,022

Less: Estimated Uncollectible (164,713) (164,713)
Intergovernmental Receivables 18,819,642 532,878 19,352,520
Deposits 5,050 5,050 825
Inventories 685,166 5,363,143 6,048,309
Prepaid Expenses 132,600 136,295 268,895
Capital Assets:

Land 17,819,404 14,025,387 31,844,791
Book Collection 1,138,049
Buildings and Improvements 147,846,651 49,831,428 197,678,079
Plant in Service 311,779,019 311,779,019
Equipment and Vehicles 33,614,774 33,789,235 67,404,009 662,440
Infrastructure 149,331,415 149,33 J,415
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (157,357,652) (141,628,477) (298,986,129) (567,966)

Construction in Progress 20,808,063 35,021,218 55,829,281
Restricted Assets:

Cash or Cash Equivalents 402,422 17,292,056 17,694,478
Investments 9,976,000 24,004,695 33,980,695

Other Assets:
Bond Issue Costs (Net) 1,066,341 2,076,591 3,142,932
Customer Base (Net) 110,366 110,366
Prepaid Expenses 250,000 250,000

Total Assets 352,746,680 740,471,333 1,567,399

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

Governmental
Activities

Primary Government
Business-Type

Activities Total
Component

Units

UABlLITIES~

Cash Due to Central Depository 7,431,233 1,936,370 9,367,603
Accounts Payable 4,957,612 13,296,764 18,254,376
Accrued Payroll Expenses 3,851,639 756,545 4,608,184
Termination Benefits 100,634 100,634
Accrued Expenses 3,696,706 1,422,375 5,119,081
Deposits Payable 3,043,552 3,043,552
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable 973,370 33,253 1,006,623
Retainages Payable 501,763 1,208,603 1,710,366
Unearned Revenue 37,526,574 72,288 37,598,862
Contractor Deposits 28,307 583,518 611,825
Other Liabilities 784,376 784,376
Compensated Absences:

Due within one year 1,732,239 903,464 2,635,703
Due in more than one year 736,338 2,026,963 2,763,301

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year 6,182,120 7,024,409 13,206,529
Due in more than one year 102,793,825 128,077,743 230,871 ,568
OPEB Liability 355,708 796,248 1,151,956

Special Commission Bonds 17,281 17,281
Deferred Landfill Postclosure Cost:
Due within one year 37,380 37,380
Due in more than one year 523,320 523,320

Customer Deposits 975 975

Total Liabilities 171,652,444 161,761,051 333,413,495

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of

Related Debt 112,491,762 208,312,172 320,803,934
Temporarily Restricted for:

Restricted for Debt Service 1,785,757 1,785,757
Restricted by External Contributions
Restricted by Enabling Legislation
Restricted for School Trust-

Nonexpendable 208,378 208,378
Unrestricted 68,394,096 15,865,673 84,259,769

Total Net Assets $ 181,094,236 225,963,602 407,057,838

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement
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CiTY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSf:E
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS

PROGRAM REVENUES Primary Government
Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Component
Functions!Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 13,517,750 2,774,390 106,413 (10,636,947) (10,636,947)
Public Safety 23,320,230 2,011,006 1,882,162 (19,427,062) (19,427,062)
Public Works 14,699,318 447,036 145,469 (14,106,813) (14,106,813)
Public Welfare 7,305,539 208,758 825,564 (6,271,217) (6,271,217)
Cily Services 3,078,092 3,578,736 1,887,705 2,388,349 2,388,349
Education 63,517,290 2,844,579 31,965,588 (28,707,123) (28,707,123)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 5,767,393 (5,767,393) (5,767,393)
Total Governmental Activities 131,205,612 11,864,505 36,812,901 (82,528,206) (82,528,206)

",
Business-lype Activities:

Water and Sewer 22,830,928 25,057,671 584,451 2,811,194 2,811,194
Cily Solid Waste 8,060,129 8,902,029 841,900 341,900
Regional Solid Waste 1,871,460 2,313,041 441,581 441,581
Johnson City Power Board 178,834,070 193,154,773 14,320,703 14,320,703
JC Public Building Authority 1,984,687 2,074,331 89,644 89,644
Mass Transit 3,021,432 327,033 1,702,482 139,724 (852,193) (852,193)
Stormwater Management 773,631 1,494,488 720,857 720,857
Golf Courses 1,330,540 1,029,325 (301,215) (301,215)

Total Business-type Activities 218,706,877 234,352,691 1,702,482 724,175 18,072,471 18,072,471

Total Primary Government $ 349,912,489 246,217,196 38,515,383 724,175 (82,528,206) 18,072,471 (64,455,735)

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CeTY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS

PROGRAM REVENUES

Functions/Programs
Component Units:

Johnson City Public Library
Johnson City Development

Authority
$

Expenses

1,719,449

288,831
2,008,280

Charges for
Services

64,911

15,801
80,712

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

1,585,890

286,530
],872,420

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

o

Governmental
Activities

o

Primary Government

Business-type
Activities

o

Total

o

Component
Units

(68,648)

13,500
(55,148)

~

en

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Other Ta.xes
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets
Bond Proceeds from Washington County
Other General Revenue

Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net A;sets

Net Assets, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

Net Assets, Beginning (Restated)

Net Assets, Ending $

36,519,412
33,539,491

8,244,855
1,305,13 ]
],153,428

11,6] 7,308
9,583

2,08],923
94,471,131

11,942,925

169,151,311

169,151,311

18] ,094,236

1,857,877
9,879

(2,081,923)
(214,167)

17,858,304

208,105,298

208, I05,298

225,963,602

36,519,412
33,539,491

8,244,855
3,163,008
1,]63,307

] 1,617,308
9,583

94,256,964

29,801,229

377,256,609

377,256,609

407,057,838

9,102

70,779

79,881

24,733

1,504,383
(23,527)

1,480,856

1,505,589

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2009

School

General Debt Educational Capital Other Total

General Purpose Service Facilities Debt Project Governmental Governmental

Fund School Fund Fund Service Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:

Cash Due from Central Depository $ 7,277,368 7,277,368
Cash on Hand 5,228 5,228
Cash in Bank 19,390 6,448,307 I 43,866,415 1,323,339 51,657,452
Cash on Deposit with Paying Agent 5,744 5,744
Cash on Deposit with State ofTennessee 10,019,703 53,063 10,072,766
Investments 9,976,000 9,976,000
Taxes Receivable 29,560,022 29,560,022

Less: Estimated Uncollectible (164,713) (164,713)
Accounts Receivable 1,027,754 21,126 568,850 10,945 9,079 1,637,754
Notes Receivable 42,298 42,298
Due from Washington County n,986,l31 11,986,131
Due from State ofTennessee 2,513,662 1,171,293 3,684,955
Due from Other Funds 493,512 506,604 19,351 1,0 I9,467
Due from Federal Government 294,017 294,017

--1 Due from Local Governments 2,850,955 2,850,955
Postage Deposits 5,050 5,050
Inventories 37,234 228,955 266,189
Advances to Other Funds 400,000 400,000
Restricted Cash 256,039 31,757 114,626 402,422

Total Assets $ 56,712,307 18,999,402 256,039 600,608 43,991,986 10,418,763 130,979,105

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

BAL'\.NCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30,2009

School
General Debt Educational Capital Other Total

General Purpose Service Facilities Debt Project Governmental Governmental
Fund School Fund Fund Service Fund Fund Funds Funds

LIABlL.IT.JES ANDJUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Cash Due to Central Depository $ 4,134,583 256,039 642,522 104,107 2,163,423 7,300,674
Accounts Payable 1,621,527 59,238 1,354,922 1,643,276 4,678,963
Accrued Payroll Expenditures 784,376 3,460,653 327,972 4,573,001
Accrued Expenditures 10,556 10,556
Retainages Payable 117,778 383,985 501,763
Due to Other Funds 175,816 152,208 506,604 834,628
Deposits Payable 28,307 28,307
Matured Bond Interest Payable 5,744 5,744
Deferred Revenue 1,897,581 1,897,581
Unearned Revenue 27,883,067 9,473,520 169,987 37,526,574

Total Liabilities 36,531,001 13,145,619 256,039 642,522 1,576,807 5,205,803 57,357,791

,....
Fund Balances:00

Reserved tor:
Debt Service (41,914) (41,914)
Encumbrances 353,693 353,693
Specific Activities and Projects 173,559 578,616 752,1 75
Public Safety 300,757 653,811 1,032,231 1,986,799
Inventories 37,234 228,955 266,189
Specified Caplial Projects 42,415,179 1,702,655 44,117,834
School Trust 208,378 208,378
Senior Citizens 15,000 15,000

Unreserved, Designated for:

Compensated Absences 2,216,930 135,181 52,392 2,404,503
Special Projects 348,712 348,712
Specified Capital Outlays 2,876,749 2,876,749

Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund 17,490,060 17,490,060
General Purvose School Fund 4,095,248 4,095,248
Special Revenue Funds 1,674,208 1,674,208
Capital Project Funds (2,926,320) (2,926,320)

Total Fund Balances 20,181,306 5,853,783 0 (41,914) 42,415,179 5,212,960 73,621,314

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 56,712,307 18,999,402 256,039 600,608 43,991,986 10,418,763 130,979,105

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIAnON OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30,2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

Prepaids are expensed when disbursed and are not recog11ized based upon economic benefit
or recorded as assets in the governmental funds.

Bond issue costs are expensed when disbursed in the governmental funds and are amortized
over the life of the bonds in the governmental activities.

Propelty tax assessments are repOlted as revenue in the government-wide statements in the
period in which an enforceable legal claim arises against propelty ovroers. In governmental
funds, these assessments are not available to finance current period expenditures and are
reported as deferred revenue at the fund level.

Other revenues which are earned but not available to finance current period expenditures and
are reported as deferred revenue at the fund level.

OPEB and termination benefits represent liabilities of the City that are not recorded at the
fund level.

Compensated absences are not considered due and payable in governmental funds until an
employee has telminated service. Therefore, these amounts are presented as reserved fund
balance.

Accrued interest on the notes and bonds payable represents a liability of the City that is
generally not recorded at the fund level.

Long-teml liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest, are not due and payable
in the cunent period and, therefore, are not repOlted in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance and
employee insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in govenunental activities in the statement of net assets.

$ 73,621,314

2]2,007,332

132,600

1,066,341

1,370,762

526,819

(456,342)

(2,404,503)

(967,626)

(108,975,945)

5,173,484

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN fUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Educational School
Gencral Debt Facilities Capital Other Total

General Purpose Service Debt Service Project Governmental Govemmetlt:1.1
Fund School Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ill!l",r Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers to Other Funds (22,007,464) (1,863,592) (44,000) (308,278) (24,223,334)
Transfers from Other Funds 3,193,888 7,843,195 6,584,371 1,035,400 393,000 6,991,912 26,041,766
Capital Lease 472,161 23,000 495,161
Sale of Real Estate and Other Equipment 94,123 15.559 1,076,476 1,136,158
Bond Issue Proceeds, Premiums, and Debt Refunding 37,335,594 29,727,657 2,845,049 10,727,534 80,635,884
Redemption of Refunded Bonds (37,669,590) (29,925,000) (1,330,4 I0) (68,925,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (18,247,292) 5,995,162 6,250,375 794,057 3,238,049 17,180,284 15,210,635

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,777 ,292) (823,016) 0 (837,038) 6,589,120 2,065,572 4,222,346

Fund Balances, July], 2008 23,195,598 6,676,799 795,]24 35,826,059 2,807,921 69,301,501
Purchase Method Inventory Adjusunent 97,467 97,467
Prior Period Adjustment for Police Technology-

Transferred from Equipment Project Fund (242,000) 242,000
tv

Fund Balances, July I, 2008 (Restated) 6,676,799 795,124 35,826,059 3,147,388 69,398,968..... 22,953,598 0

Fund Balances, June 30,2009 $ 20,181,306 5,853,783 0 (41,914) 42,415,179 5,212,960 73,621,314

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemenL



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIAnON OF TIlE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF' GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STA1'EMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Vear Ended June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which capital outlays for
general capital assets in the current period exceeded depreciation.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales,
trade-ins and donations) is to decrease net assets.

The issuance of long-tenn debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on net assets. This is the amount by which repayments exceeded proceeds.

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these anlOunts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities.

Inventories for cet1ain nonmajor funds are accounted for using the purchase method.
Inventories are reported using the consumption method in the government-wide
financial statements. This is the amount by which expenses were adjusted to convert
from purchase method to consumption method.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Prepaid expenses that do require the use of current financial resources are reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Liability for OPEB and termination benefits are not reported in the governmental funds.

Expenses for accrued interest payable on long-tenll debt does not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Expenses for compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance
and employee insurance to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of
internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Assets of Ciovernmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 4,222,346

17,084,155

(32,730)

(7,253,417)

393,645

97,467

125,663

(26,400)

(65,494)

(436,734)

(191,790)

(1,973,786)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTtiAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHA.NGES IN FUND BALANCE­

Bl1DGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Revelllies (CoJltinued):
IntergOYe~ltal ReveIlues (Continued):

Fire Supplement
Police Supplement
First TN-VA Development

District Senior Citizens Grant
Telecommunications

Total State
Yl~s.)lington <&\!.!llY;

Public Safety
Senior Citizens
Schools Fund
Juvenile Court

Total Washington County
Local Match - Elizabethton

Total Intergovernmental Revenues

Bus Charters
Clerk Fees
Accident Reports
Sidewalk Assessments/Curb Cuts
Special Work Charges
Administrative Fees from Other Funds
Miscellaneous Services

Total Charges for Servie-es

Fine~ami FOJi"1li!.tJL',1;,
Municipal Courts - Fines and Court Costs

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Revenue From Use of Propel!V:
Rents from Buildings and Equipment
Parks and Recreation
Tournaments
Print Shop Charges
Computer Services (MIS)

Total Revenue From Use of Property

1,558,000 1,558,000 1,357,512 (200,488)
1,558,000 1,558,000 1,357,512 (200,488)

141,000 141,000 193,061 52,061
431,920 431,920 456,577 24,657

15,000 15,000 7,716 (7,284)
78,000 78,000 64,160 ( 13,840)

238,000 238,000 238,310 310
903,920 903,920 959,824 55,904

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE·

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the .Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30,2009

Variance with
Final Budget.

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

InvestmcnLEam.ing;;;
Investment Income 550,000 550,000 201,602 (348,398)

Tota1 Investment Earn ings 550,000 550,000 201,602 (348,398)

MisceJ]aneous:
Refunds and Reimbursements 147,500 213,607 250,410 36,803
Senior Citizens 85,000 85,000 77,833 (7,167)
Donations 471,400 208,180 94,913 (113,267)
Sale of Methane Gas 500,000 500,000 660,600 160,600
Miscellaneous 66,500 73,999 141,649 67,650

Total Miscellaneous 1,270,400 1,080,786 1,225,405 144,619

Total Revenues 69,439,685 69,047,253 66,469,915 (2,577,338)

fu;PS<D.,QlttJIl',';
illnliaHLQyemment:

Administration 9,500 9,500 424 9,076
Economic Development 107,718 !O7,718 106,617 1,101
City Commission 91,261 91,261 60,507 )0,754
City Court 223,742 223,742 156,221 67,521
City Attorney 177,350 177,350 177,350
Staff Attorney 292,249 217,249 252,275 (35,026)
Juvenile Court 653,539 670,581 649,860 20,721
City Manager 366,769 366,769 411,387 (44,618)
Management Services 430,140 430,140 380,925 49,2 15
Community Relations Ofttce 256,273 256,273 223,750 32,523
Community Economic Coordinator 40,980 40,980 39,713 1,267
Purchasing 138,602 138,602 142,592 (3,990)
Human Resources 394,572 394,572 289,850 104,722
Planning 520,524 520,524 461,978 58,546
Mis(~ellaneous Appropriations 258,653 258,653 231,074 27,579
Risk Management 854,520 854,520 699,148 155,372
Geographic 1nformation Systems 180,916 180,916 173,983 6,933
Management Information Systems 1,198,121 1,198,121 1,105,056 93,065
Central Print Shop 99,834 99,834 96,085 3,749
Special Appropriations 4,183,720 4,183,720 4,132,720 51,000
Finance Administration 181,979 181,979 170,550 11,429
Accounting 743,803 743,803 746,298 (2,495)
Collections 534,761 534,761 517,796 16,965
Records Management 60,486 60,486 56,712 3,774
Genen\1 Elections 70,000 70,000 55,409 14,591
Capital Outlay 60,000 532,161 479,961 52,200

Total General Government 12,130,012 12,544,215 II ,6~SI,891 903,324

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

Expenditures (Continued):
Public Safety:

Stude.nt Transportation
Police Department
Firc Department
Emergency Management Services
Capital Outlay

Total Public Salety

1,851,3 14
12,080,958

8, I02,815
216,240

1,851,3 14
12,147,133

8,248,095
216,240

Actual
Amounts

1,7J 1,798
11,963,167
8,329,184

207,358

Variance with
Final Budget­

Posltive
jNegative)

139,516
183,966
(81,089)

8,882

Public Works:
Administration
Streets
Engineering
Inspection
Downtown Parking
Traffic Control
Sidewalks
Mowing
General Facilities
Municipal Building
Keystone
Facilities Center
Capital Outlay

Total Public Works

Public Welfare:
Public Building Authority
Parks and Recreation
Senior Citizens
Capital Outlay

Total Public Welfare

346,391 346,391 347,6 I6 ( 1,225)
5,211,564 5,211,564 5,159,002 52,562

784,842 784.842 836,060 (51,218)
923,506 923,S06 845,887 77,619

1,20 I (1,201)
2,389,216 2,389,2 I6 2,349,791 39,425

169,820 J69,820 123,310 46,510
206,970 206,970 220,247 (13,277)
426,660 426,660 454,276 (27,616)
376,7J5 376,715 399,609 (22,894)
132,678 132,678 J40,006 (7,328)

7,650 7,650 J J,838 (4,188)
75,000 75,000 102,102 (27,102)

11,05J,Ol2 11,051,012 10,990,945 60,067

1,338,000 U38,000 1,337,961 39
4,174,043 4, J84,255 3,881,755 302,500

870,979 870,979 819,704 51,275

Total Expenditures 51,820,373

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE·

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30, 2009

Variance With
Final Budget·

___Jl..t!.dgcted Amo!:,~__ Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts __(Negative)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Ovcr
(Under) Expenditures 17,619,312 16,569,575 15,475,000 (1,094,575)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Educational Facilities Debt Service 44,000 44,000 44,000
Transfer to General Purpose School Fund (7,832,675) (7,832,675) (7,825,925) 6,750
Transfer to Insurance Fund (350,000) (350,000) (225,000) 125,000
Transfer to Mass Transit (660,000) (660,000) (660,000)
Transfer to Freedom Hall (233,000) (233,000) (234,735) (1,735)
Transfer to Transportation Planning (29,000) (31,647) (2,647)
Transfer to Capital Projects (1,880,000) (5,752,539) (5,920,769) (168,230)
Transfer to Special School Projects (13,950) (13,950) (14,950) ( 1,(00)
Transferto Polic.e Grants (635,000) (75,000) (63,61 I) 11,389
Transfer to Debt Service (9,332,497) (7,358,464) (6,584,371 ) 774,093
Transfer Ii'om Proprietary Funds 3,083,480 3,083,480 3,143,138 59,658
Transfer to Proprietary Funds (540,000) (540,000) (401,215) 138,785
Transfer to Motor Transport (202,000) (202,000) (38,491) 163,509
Capital Lease 472,16] 472,161
Sale of Real Estate and Other Equipment 40,000 40,000 94,123 54,123

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (18,51 1,642) (19,406,987) (18,247,292) 1,159,695

Net Change in Fund Balance (892,330) (2,837,412) (2,772,292) 65,120

Fund Balance, July 1,2008 19,252,463 18,932,844 23,195,598 4,262,754

Prior Period Adjustment for Police Technology-
Transferred to Equipment Project Fund (242,000) (242,000)

Fund Balance, July 1,2008 (restated) 19,252,463 18,690,844 22,953,598 4,262,754

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 18,360,133 15,853,432 20,181 )06 4,327,874

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues:
Taxes:

Local Sales Tax
County Property Tax
Interest and Penalty
Business Tax
In Lieu - Local Utilities

Total Taxes

Licenses and Permits:
Marriage Licenses

Total Licenses and Pelmits

lntergovetmnental Revenues:
,state:

Basic Education Program
Career Ladder Program
Bank Excise Tax
Drivers Education
Mixed Drink Tax
Telecommunication Tax
Other State of Tennessee Funds

Total State
Federal:

ROTC Reimbursement
Tota11ntergovemmental Revenues

Investment Earnings:
Investment Income

Total Investment Eamings

Miscellaneous Revenues:
Refunds and Reimbursements
Other Local Revenue

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts and Positive
Original Final Encumbrances (Negative)

$ 10,520,000 10,520,000 10,458,583 (6 J ,417)
8,095,000 8,645,000 8,623,681 (21,319)

70,000 70,000 75,728 5,728
265,000 265,000 243,467 (21,533)
132,000 132,000 131,969 (31 )

19,082,000 19,632,000 19,533,428 (98,572)

1,500 1,500 1,163 (]]7)

1,500 1,163 (3]7)

2],440,000 23,875,000 23,654,000 (221,000)
633,500 633,500 564,756 (68,744)

46,000 46,000 39,742 (6,258)

] 1,000 11,000 9,629 (l ,]71)

1,000 1,000 1,330 ]30

7,500 7,500 5,947 (1,553)
222,725 226,801 4,076

24,139,000 24,796,725 -----.l±J02,205 (294,520)

50,000 50,000 55,925 5,925
24,189,000 24,846,725 24,558,130 (288,595)

]37,500 337,500 20,518 (] 16,982)
337,500 ]]7,500 20,518 (] 16,982)

165,000 172,330 158,190 (14,140)
215,477 ]50,157 94,757 (55,400)
]80,477 ]22,487 (69,540)

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMEN'I' OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2009

Charg!<.s for SeIvices:
School Tuition
Educare Revenue
Other Charges

Total Charges for Services

Total Revenues

fJm\'Il.gjJ1!r\'.5~

Instruction:
Regular Education
Special Education
Vocational Education
Adult Education
Preschool

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Health Services
Student Support
Regular Education
Alternative Instructional
Special Education
Vocational Education
Adult Education
Board of Education
Office of Superintendent
Office of Principal
Fiscal Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Transportation Expense
Other Support
Community Services
Other Capital Outlay

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget-

Budgeted Amounts and Positive

Original Final Encumbrances (Negative)

394,000 421,845 416,627 (5,218)

800,000 800,000 755,728 (44,272)

202,000 202,000 97,779 (104,221)

1,396,000 1,423,845 1,270,134 (153,711)

45,386,477 46,564,057 45,636,320 (927,737)

29,214,812 29,573,357 27,870,448 1,702,909

3,878,830 3,924,560 3,744,672 179,888

1,461,825 1,469,045 1,411,134 57,911

204,770 147,170 119,060 28, II 0

223,385 274,735 179,509

34,983,622 35,388,867 33,324,823 2,064,044

199,150 200,200 199,108 1,092

1,446,440 1,482,790 1,428,202 54,588

2,857,050 2,918,155 2,691,947 226,208

739,650 798,370 749,507 48,863

238,580 239,845 238,926 919

196,395 197,095 178,135 18,960

105,415 168,855 131,328 37,527

656,500 686,500 648,317 38,183

517,935 519,290 489,219 30,071

3,556,795 3,578,140 3,433,041 145,099

369,460 371,290 357,178 14,112

4,535,850 4,967,425 4,660,332 307,093

1,494,600 1,534,160 1,461,459 72,701

2,102,314 2,147,939 223,279 1,924,660

744,630 806,178 765,386 40,792

807,500 815,612 795,047 20,565

1,200,000 1,150,000 361,930 788,070

21,768,264 22,581,844 18,812,341 3,769,503

56,751,886 57,970,711 52,137,164 5,833,547

(11,365,409) (11,406,654) (6,500,844) 4,905,810

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FllND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Other Financing Sourc(':?llJ?jcl):
Transfer from General Fund
Transfer to Educational Facilities Debt Service
Transfer to School Federal
Transfer from School Federal Projects
Transfer to School Site Based Fund
Sale of Equipment

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1,2008

Fund Balance, June 30,2009

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget.

Budgeted Amoullts and Positive
Original Final Encumbrances (Negative)

9,683,989 9,683,989 7,825,925 (1,858,064)
(l,062,500) (1,082,500) (1,035,400) 47,100

(46,895) (46,895)
10,520 10,520

(774,547) (774,547)

15,559
8,621,489 8,601,489 5,995,162 (2,606,327)

(2,743,920) (2,805,165) (505,682) 2,299,483

4,175,727 4,053,927 6,005,772 1,95 1,845

$ 1,431,807 1,248,762 5,500,090

The notes to the financial statemcnL'i arc an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JOHNSON Crry, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30,2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
JolUlSon City Nonmajor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Authority Funds Total Service Funds

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cashon Hand $ !0O 18,100 3,001 21,201
Cash in Bank 123,225 7,994,700 1,601,766 9,719,691 8,615,955
Cash on Deposit with Paying Agent 1,317,895 1,317,895
Cash on Deposit with State 392,702 392,702
Cash Due from Central Depository 4,774,038 1,916,674 2,171,979 8,862,691 261,988
Accounts Receivable (Net) 932,731 446,903 13,736,147 3,284 119,913 15,238,978 43,686
Notes Receivable 172,500 172,500
Due from Federal Government 362,841 362,841
Due from State ofTeunessee 45,781 124,256 170,037

'"
Due from Other Fuuds 510,031 510,031

..... Inventories 1,701,623 3,553,003 108,517 5,363,143 418,977
Prepaid Expenses 133,295 3,000 136,295

Total Current Assets 9,288,095 2,363,577 26,117,776 1,605,050 2,893,507 42,268,005 9,340,606

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets:
Land 2,732,748 1,895,842 4,883,913 2,281,070 2,231,814 14,025,387
Buildings 129,661 853,958 26,249,329 18,221,250 4,377,230 49,831,428
Plant in Service 154,260,097 157,518,922 311,779,019
Equipment and Vehicles 7,546,015 8,895,431 8,636,327 1,806,529 6,904,933 33,739,235 696,793
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (65,561,405) (5,094,678) (59,353,447) (5,949,460) (5,669,487) (141,628,477) (641,470)
Construction Ill. Progress 26,239,381 8,742,811 35,766 3,260 35,021,218

Net Capital Assets 125,346,497 6,550,553 146,677,855 16,395,155 7,847,750 302,817,810 55,323

Restricted Assets:
Cash or Cash Equivalents 5,006,678 556 12,284,822 17,292,056
Investments 24,004,695 24,004,695

Total Restricted Assets 5,006,678 556 36,289,517 ° ° 41,296,75 I °

(Contmued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30,2009

Business-TyPe Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Johnson City Nonmajor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Authority Funds Total Service Fuuds

ASSETS (CONTINUED):
Noncurrent Assets (Continued):

Other Assets;
B<md Issue Costs (Net) 619,157 33,045 1,209,847 200,899 13,643 2,076,591

,Customer Base (Net) 110,366 110,366
Prepaid Expenses 250,000 250,000

Total Other Assets 729,523 33,045 1,459,847 200,899 13,643 2,436,957 0
Total Non-Current Assets 131,082,698 6,584,154 184,427,219 16,596,054 7,861,393 346,551,518 55,323

Total Assets 140,370,793 8,947,731 210,544,995 18,201,104 10,754,900 388,819523 9,395,929

LIABILITIES:
w

Current Liabilities:N

Cash Due to Central Depository 1,936,370 1,936,370 130,557
Accounts Payable 759,503 483,578 11,719,351 92,582 241,750 13,296,764 278,858
Accrued Payroll Expenses 296,601 74,479 268,356 117,109 756,545 62,806
Accrued Expenses 228,720 32,360 923,484 ,226,632 11,179 1,422,375 3,686,150
Leases Payable - Current Portion 40,448 40,448
Notes and Bonds Payable - Current Portion 3,402,856 391,105 2,335,000 665,000 190,000 6,983,961
Due to Other Funds 201,358 493,512 694,870
Retainages Payable 1,208,603 1,208,603
Compensated Absences - Current Portion 311,731 76,864 416,536 98,333 903,464 50,618
Deposits Payable 3,043,552 3,043,552
Deferred Revenue 5,405 5.482 10,887
Contractor Deposits 583,518 583,518
Deferred Landfill Postclosure

Cost - Current Portion 37,380 37,380
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable 33,253 33,253

Total Current Liabilities 7,031,548 1,095,766 18,706,279 1,483,208 2,635,189 30,951,990 4,208,989

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STAn~MENTOF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30,2009

Business-Tvpe Activities - EntelJ?rise Funds Governmental
Johnson City Nonmajor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Authority Funds Total Service Funds

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable 82,865 20,432 1,897,526 26,140 2,026,963 13,456
OPEB Liability 796,248 796,248
Advances from Other Funds 400,000 400,000
Leases Payable 42,610 42,610
Notes and Bonds Payable 53,712,181 3,004,380 56,740,000 13,890,000 1,355,000 128,701,561

Plus: Bond Premiums 406,342 406,342
Less: Deferred Debt Refunding (519,626) 18,514 (518,937) (52,721) (1,072,770)

Special Commission Bonds 17,281 17,281
Deferred LandfilJ Postclosure Cost 523,320 523,320
Deferred Revenue 15,580 600 45,221 61,401
Customer Deposits 975 975

w
Total Non-Current Liabilities 53,291,000 3,568,221 59,840,116 13,771,063 1,433,531 131,903,931 13,456w

Total Liabilities 60,322,548 4,663,987 78,546,395 15,254,271 4,068.720 162,855,921 4,222,445

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of

Related Debt 73,204,885 3,155,068 123,892,372 1,840,155 6,219,692 208,312,172 55,323
Restricted for:

Debt Service 1,785,757 1,785,757
Unrestricted 6,843,360 1,128,676 6,320,471 1,106,678 466,488 15,865,673 5,118,161

Total Net Assets $ 80,048,245 4,283,744 131,998,600 2,946,833 6,686,180 225,963,602 5,173,484

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Business-Type Activities - Euterprise Funds Governmental
Johnson City Nomnajor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Authority Funds Total Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services (Net) $ 24,851,288 8,858,839 188,894,143 1,757,469 5,121,203 229,482,942 20,280,555
Other Revenue 206,383 43,190 4,260,630 316,862 42,684 4,869,749 868,766

Total Operating Revenues 25,057,671 8,902,029 193,154,773 2,074,331 5,16:JJ~L 234,352,691 ... 21,149,321

Operating Expenses:
Administration 521,450 259,351 164,150 944,951
Personnel Services 7,565,930 2,301,745 3,611,002 13,478,677 2,058,530
Contractual Services 1,087,749 2,808,468 4,972 647,912 4,549,101 17,598,860
Materials and Supplies 1,040,612 246,951 2,376 410,240 1,700,179 35,750
Repairs and Maintenance 2,316,985 1,310,911 6,616,758 74,268 916,249 11,235,171 3,626,508
Bad Debt Expense 144,887 43,256 56,542 244,685

w
Items for Resale 55,050 55,050"" Other Operating Expenses 4,428,386 183,584 163,795,770 649,577 312,574 169,369,891 128,720
Depreciation and Amortization 3,838,824 708,573 5,693,999 487,647 709,174 11,438,217 13,041

Total Operating Expenses 20,944,823 7,862,839 176, I06,527 1,218,840 6,882,893 213,015,922 23,461,409

Operating Income (Loss) 4,112,848 1,039,190 17,048,246 _._J~55,491 (1,719,006) 21,336,769 (2,312,088)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
Investment Income 499,988 35,538 1,287,354 14,106 20,891 1,857,877 74,811
Operating Grants 1,702,482 1,702,482
Interest Expenses and Commissions (1,830,428) (184,237) (2,669,512) (709,368) (112,221) (5,505,766)
Amortization-Bond Cost (55,677) (13,053) (58,031) (56,479) (1,949) (185,189)
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 1,132 7,096 1.651 9,879

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,384,985) (154,656) (1,440,189) (751,741) 1,610,854 (2,120,717) 74,811

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY. TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANCES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRlETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Johnson City Nonmajor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Authority Funds Total Service Funds

Income (Loss) Before
Transfers and Capital Contributions 2,727,863 884,534 15,608,057 103,750 (l08,152) 19,216,052 (2,237,277)

Transfers and Capital Contributions:
Tmnsfers In 71,180 148,792 1,061,215 1,281,i87 263,491
Transfers Out (441,048) (51,000) (2,702,090) (168,972) (3,363,110)
Federal Capital Grant Revenue 129,158 129,158
State Capital Grant Revenue 584,451 10,566 595,017

Total Transfers and Capital Contributions 214,583 97,792 (2,702,090) 0 1,031,967 (1,357,748) 263,491

Change in Net Asset~ 2,942,446 982,326 12,905,967 103,750 923,815 17,858,304 (1,973,786)

CD
(J) Net Assets, July 1,2008 77,105,799 3,301,418 119,092,633 2,843,083 5,762,365 208,105,298 7,147,270

Net Assets, June 30,2009 $ 80,048,245 4,283,744 131,998,600 2,946,833 6,686,180 225,963,602 5,173,484

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofth,s statement.



CITY OF JOHNSON ClTY, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Johnson City Nonmajor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Authority Funds Totlll Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 24,001,967 8,928,320 181,489,982 733,087 5,088,413 220,241,769 15,768,704
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 915,307 88,970 6,066,153 1,337,961 8,408,391 5,405,569
Payments to Employees (7,469,014) (2,274,305) (7,608,686) (3,592,259) (20,944,264) (2,034,794)
Payments from (to) Contractor Deposits (167,167) 354,559 187,392
Payments to Suppliers (4,302,285) (3,292,824) (159,765,492) (746,495) (1,174,806) (169,281,902) (20,700,403)
Payments for lnterfund Services Used (5,116,037) (1,630,066) (823,919) (1,071,388) (8,641,4 10) (46,476)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 7,862,771 1,820,095 19,712,597 1,324,553 (750,040) 29,969,976 (1,607,400)

Cash Fiows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers to Other Funds (441,048) (5 i,OOO) (2,702,091) (168,972) (3,363,11 i)
Purchase of7receipt for Equipment - Interfund (13,685) (32,992) 32,992 (13,685)
Advances from Other Funds 71,180 148,792 1,061,215 1,281,187
Operating Grants Received 1,663,563 1,663,563
Loans from Other Funds (50,000) (50,000) 263,491

w Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities (383,553i __ 64,800 (2,702,091 ) (50,000) 2,538,798 (482,046) 263,491
en

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Proceeds from Capital Debt
Purchase ofCapital Asscts (14,050,280) (2,917,615) (13,966,712) (16,i II) (2,133,702 ) (33,134,420) (46,291)
Bond Issue Costs (3,178) (3,173)
Refunding Bond Issue Costs (482,118) (23,943) (506,061)
Refunding Bond Proceeds 44,905,000 2,350,000 47,255,000
Refunding Bond Payments (44,860,000) (2,400,000) (47,260,000)
Capital Grants Received 848,067 100,000 139,724 1,087,791
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (2,629,644) (864,967) (1,285,000) (645,000) (219,818) (5,644,429)
Principal Paid on Capital Lease (33,396) (38,396)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (2,427,995) (116, l39) (2,498,868) (718,078) (87,938) (5,849,018)
Sale ofCapitai Assets 1,132 7,096 1,651 9,879
Proceeds from Notes Receivable 30,000 30,000

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (18,695,838) (3,968,746) (17,620,580) (1,379) 89) 12,388,479) (44,052,832) (46,291)

(Continued)
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Related Income/Expenses on Investments
Purchase of Investments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Ca.h Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1,2008

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2009

Classi fled as:
Current Assets
Restricted Asset.

Totals

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to.!'l..S'!
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments:

Depreciation
Amortization ofCustomer Base

Landfill Postclosure Cost
Changes in the Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories

(Increase) Decrease in Customer Base
([ncrease) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

and Accrued Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payro11 Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences

Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Other Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

ClTY OF JOHNSON CITY TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fisca[ Year Ended June 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Johnson City NonmaJor Activities-

Water City Solid Johnson City Public Building Proprietary Internal
and Sewer Waste Power Board Autho.':!!L- Funds Total Service Funds

499,988 35,538 902,039 14,106 4,676 1,456,347 74,811
(21,602,855) (21,602,855)

499,988 35,538 (20,700,816) 14,106 4,676 (20,146,508) 74,811

(10,716,632) (2,048,313) (21,310,890) (90,530) (545,045) (34,711,410) (1,315,389)

22,331,270 3,965,543 41,608,512 1,692,296 2,720,025 72,317,646 10,[93,332

$ 11,614,638 1,917,230 20,297,622 1,601,766 2,174,980 37,606,236 8,877,943

$ 6,607,960 1,916,674 8,012,800 1,601,766 2,174,980 20,314,180 8,877,943
5,006,678 556 12,284,822 17,292,056

$ 11,614,638 1,917,230 20,297,622 1,601,766 2,174,980 37,606,236 8,877,943

$ 4,112,848 1,039,190 17,048,246 855,491 (1,719,006) 21,336,769 (2,312,088)

3,800,040 708,573 6,093,111 487,647 709,173 11,798,544 13,041
38,784 38,784

(37,380) (37,380)
22,037 118,306 140,343

(58,144) 158,517 (5,958,919) (3,283) (5,504) (5,867,333) 24,952
(351,758) (223,467) 1,635 (573,590) 33,44 [

38,784 38,784
99,795 1,500 101,295

323,285 (75,738) 1,510,973 (15,302) 256,849 2,000,067 609,518
50,636 29,766 18,450 98,852 13,171
46,280 11,109 223,675 293 281,357 10,565

(\67,167) 372,094 204,927

5,333 15,824 399,017 420,174
1,813 (13,430) (11,617)

$ 7,862,771 1,820,095 19,712,597 i ,324,55 3 (750,040) 29,969~976 (1,607,400)

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY. TENNESSEE

STATEl\fENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Endcd June 30,2009

Business-Type Activitl"s~JonterpriseFunds

Water
and Sewer

City Solid

Waste

Johnson City
Power Board

Johnson City Nonmajor
Public Building Proprietary

Authority Funds Total

Governmental
Activities­

Internal
Sentice Funds

100
123,225

1,317,895
392,702

4,774,038
5,006,678

1,601,766
3,001

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash E{Juivalents from Statement of Cash Flows:
Cash on Hand $
Cash in Bank
Cash on Deposit with Paying Agent
Cash on Deposit with State

Equity Pooled Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash
Cash in From Central Depository
Cash Due From Central Depository

$ 11,614,638

556
1,916,674

1,917,230

18,100
7,994,700

12,284,822

20,297,622 1,601,766
2,171,979
2,174,980

2l~201

9,719,691
1,317,895

392,702
4,774,038

17,292,056
1,916,674
2,171,979

37,606,236

8,615,955

261,988
8,877,943

w
00

!,!on-Cash..GDital and Related Financing Activities:
Water and Sewer:

Amortization of Deferred Bond Refunding totaling $55,677 was included with Interest Expense on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

- Interest paid on capital debt includes $488,389 that was capitalized.

City Solid Waste
- Amortization of Bond Issue Cost totaling $13,053 was included with Interest Expense on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

Johnson City PubliC Building AuthQrity:
- Amortization of Deterred Bond Refunding totaling $56,479 was included with Interest Expense on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

JohnSQ.!l.City Power Board:
The depreciation expense charged for the year ended June 30, 2009 was $5,693,999. Total depreciation expense was $6,093,110. The difference of$399,111 has been reflected in "other operating
expenses" as required by the Tennessee Valley Authority.

Other Nonmajor Funds:
- Amortization of Deferred Bond Refunding totaling $1,949 was included with Interest Expense on the Statement in Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

The notes to the financlaJ statements are an integral part of this -statement



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2009

ASSETS:
Cash on Hand
Cash in Bank
Accounts Receivable
Customer Deposits
Investments
Capital Assets:

Book Collection
Equipment and Furniture

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll Expenses
Compensated Absences

Total Liabi lities

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of

Related Debt
Restricted by External Contributions
Restricted by Enabling Legislation
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Johnson City Johnson City Total
Public Development Component
Library Authority Units

$ 500 500
82,403 49,533 131,936

5,361 41,000 46361
825 825

155,254 155,254

1,138,049 1,138,049
649,719 12,721 662,440

(555,5 I 8) (12,448) (567,966)

1,475,768 9 I ,63 I 1,567,399

5,810 5,810
28,842 28,842
26,326 832 27,158

68 6,642 61,810

1,232,250 273 1,232,523
49,124 49,124
21,000 21,000

188,350 14,592 202,942

$ 1,420,600 84,989 1,505,589

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF .JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

PROGRAM REVENUES
NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES

IN NET ASSETS

FunctionsfPrograms Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and

Contributions Contributions

Johnson City
Public

Library

Johnson City
Development

Authority Total

Net Assets, Ending

Net Assets, Beginning
Prior Period Adj ustment

Net Assets, Beginning (Restated)

General Revenues:
Unrestrictcd Investmcnt Earnings
Other General Revenue

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

(68,648)

0 (68,648)

13,5~ 13,500

13,500 13,500

13,5~ (55,148)

111 9,102
70,779

ill 79,881

13~ 24,733

94,905 1,504,383
(23,527) (23,527)
71,378 1,480,856

84,989 1,505,589

(68,648)

(68,648)

o

0 0

0 (68,648)

8,991
70,779
79,770

11,122

1,409,478

1,409,478

$ 1,420,600

286,530

286,530

1,585,890

1,585,890

1,872,420

15,801

64,911

15,801

64,911

80,712

288,831

288,831

1,719,449

1,719,449

2,008,280$Total Component Units

Johnson City Public Library:
General Governmcnt

Total Johnson City
Public Library

Johnson City Development
Authority:
Operations

Total Johnson City
Development Authority

J;.
o

The notes to the financial statements are an integra! part of this statement.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF' SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The City of Johnson City, Tennessee (the City) was incorporated in 1869 and operates under a Board of
Commission .... City Manager form of govell1ment. The City is part of a 12 county area in northeast
'Tennessee and southwest Virginia known as the Tri-Cities TennesseeNirginia region.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govell1mental units. The
Govell1mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for govemmental
accounting and financial reporting. The Governmental Accounting and Financial Repotiing Standards,
along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP f~)r

governmental units. The more significant of these accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting entity

The accompanying financial statements present the City (primary government) and its
component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The
City is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing
body and (l) it is able to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the
entity to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial burden on the City.
Additionally, the primary government is required to consider other entities for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The financial statements are fornlatted to allow the user to clearly distinguish between the
primary government and its component units. Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the govell1ment's operations. Discretely presented
component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
(see note below for description) to emphasize that the entities are legally separate from the City.

Blended Component Units

Johnson City Public Building Authority (PBA)-The Johnson City Public Building Authority's
Board of Directors is appointed by the City of Johnson City Commission, 'rhe PBA is
organized to engage in activities necessary to implement functions or projects delegated to the
authority by the Board of Commissioners of the City of Johnson City, including but not limited
to the designing, planning, constructing, acquisition of property, maintenance and operation of a
project commonly known as the Continuing Education Center. The PBA is reported as a
blended component unit of the City because the services it provides almost entirely benefit the
primary government. It is reported as an enterprise fund of the City because its principal
operating revenues are charges for services.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

A. Reporting entity (continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

Johnson City Public Librmy-The Johnson City Public Library is a non-profit organization under
IRC Section 501(c)3 incorporated in September 1989. The Library's Board of Directors is
appointed by the City Commission and an appropriation of at least 85% of its annual support is
provided by the City of Johnson City. The City is obligated to finance any deficits and all debt
is financed by the City. The Library property is also owned and titled to the City of Johnson
City. Separately issued financial statements may be requested from: Johnson City Public
Library; 100 West Millard Street; Johnson City, TN 37604.

Johnson City Development Authority-The Johnson City Development Authority is an
organization whose purpose is to facilitate business development within the City of Johnson
City, Tennessee. The City of Johnson City Commission appoints a majority of the Development
Authority's Board of Directors and may impose its will on the Development Authority since the
City can remove appointed members of the Development Authority's Board of Directors.
Separately issued financial statements may be requested from: Johnson City Development
Authority; 207 E. Main Street, Suite 1-B; Johnson City, TN 37605.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report infonnation on all of the activities of the primary government and its
component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
fi-mction or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include l) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE }i'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

For tile Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

c. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incuned, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund tlnancial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the CUlTent period,
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current tlscal period for local revenues, 120 days for state-shared revenues,
and 360 days for grant revenues. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due,

In general, taxes, licenses, federal and state srrants and interest associated with the current tlscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
CUlTent fiscal period. Business taxes are not considered measurable and therefore are not susceptible
to accruaL All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

The General Purpose School Fund accounts for transactions of the City School System.
The major sources of revenues for this fund are state-shared revenues and local property
and sales taxes.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt other than that payable from
enterprise funds and the general obligation debt used to construct educational facilities.

The Educational Facilities Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumu lation of resources
for the payment of principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt for the
construction of educational facilities.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

The School Capital Project Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities for the schools.

The City repOlts the following nonmajor governmental funds:

The Freedom Hall Civic Center Fund accounts for the revenues generated from the Civic
Center's operations. Fee revenues are supplemented by the General Fund to the extent of
the facilities cost.

The School Federal Projects Fund accounts for all revenues received under this law.

The Special School Projects Fund accounts for all revenues received for various special
projects for the schools.

The School Food Service Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures of school
cafeterias.

The School Site Based Fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures of the school
activity funds.

The n-ansportation Planning Fund accounts for special state and federal transportation
planning projects through state and federal revenues.

The Drug Fund accounts for drug fines awarded by court action.

The Police Grant Fund accounts for all police grants from the federal, state and local
governments.

The Police Technology Fund accounts for fees provided by moving violations to fund
safety equipment and technology for the police department.

The Community Development Fund accounts for l1:ousing and Urban Development
Funds.

The Senior Citizens Fund accounts for contributions and fund raiSing for the Senior
Citizens Center.

The Employee Scholarship Fund accounts for donations from city employees to fund
scholarships for children of eity employees who are entering college.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

Various Project Funds include the Equipment, Parks, Public Facilities and Infrastructure
Funds which account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other
than those financed by proprietary funds.

The Industrial Park Fund accounts for the Johnson City Industrial Park expansion
expenditures and revenues,

The Med Tech Park Fund accounts for the Med Tech Park expansion expenditures and
revenues,

The Permanent Fund (School Trust Fund) accounts for nonexpendable assets left to the
City by the late Paul Gollong, The fund's earnings are used for awarding scholarships to
graduating high school students,

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City's production, storage
and transportation of potable water and the City's collection, transportation, treatment
and disposal of wastewater,

The City Solid Waste Fund accounts for the activities of the City's collection of
residential garbage refuse collection and recycling activities within the City limits,

The Johnson City Power Board Fund accounts for the activities of the City's electric
distribution operations,

The Johnson City Public Building Authority Fund accounts for the activities of the PBA,
a blended component unit of the City. The PBA's main activity is to design, plan, acquire
property and construct projects delegated to the authority by the Board of
Commissioners, The primary source of revenue is rental income,
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L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

The City reports the following nonmajor proprietary funds:

The GolfCourse Fund accounts for the activities ofthe City's two 18 hole golf courses.

The Regional Solid Waste Fund accounts for the activities of the City's regional
residential garbage, refuse collection and recycling activities.

The Mass Transit Fund accounts for activities funded by federal grants from the Federal
TranspOltation Administration and state grants provided from federal funds for suppOli of
local government transportation programs.

The Stormwater Management Fund accounts for the activities of the City's storn1water
and drainage management system.

Additionally, the City repOlis the following fund type:

The Internal Service Funds (Motor Ti-ansport Fund and Insurance Fund) account for
fleet management and insurance services provided to other departments or agencies of the
govemment, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to Decem ber ], 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-vvide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other
charges between the City's water and sewer functions and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts repOlted as prof:,rram revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOlJNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of all of the City's enterprise funds and of the City's internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The water and sewer funds also recognize as operating revenue the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the systems.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this deiJnition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avai lable for use, it is the government's policy to
use restricted resources iJrst, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Internal service funds of a government (which traditionally provide services primarily to other funds
of the government) are presented, in summary fonn, as pali of the proprietary fund financial
statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are the City's governmental activities,
financial statements of internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental column when
presented at the government-wide JeveL The costs of these services are allocated to the appropriate
functional activity (police, fire, public works, etc.).

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity

1. Deposits and investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents, as shown on the proprietary fund cash flow statements, are
considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or Jess from the date of acquisition.

State statutes impose various restrictions on the City's and its component units' deposits and
investments, including repurchase agreements. These restrictions are summarized as follows:

DEPOSITS - All deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in an amount
equal to 105% of the market value of uninsured deposits.
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L SUl\1J\'1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIN1JED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (Continued)

1. Deposits and investments (continued)

INVESTMENTS - State statutes authorize the City to invest in treasury bonds, notes or
bills of the United States of America; nonconvetiible debt securities of the Federal Home
Loan Bank, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Fam1 Credit Bank and
the State Loan Marketing Association; other obligations not listed above which are
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America or any of its
agencies; Certificates of Deposit and other evidences of deposit at State and Federal
chartered banks and Savings and Loan Associations; obligations of the United States of
America or its agencies under a repurchase agreement and money market funds whose
portfolios consist of any of the foregoing investments if approved by the State Director of
Local Finance and made in accordance with procedures established by the State Funding
Board; The State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP); obligations of
the Public Housing Authority and bonds of the Tennessee Valley Authority.

Specifically, the LGIP was established under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 9, Chapter
4, Part 7. This investment pool is established for the use of idle funds of local governments
located within the State of Tennessee. These funds are placed by the participating entity
into accounts that are held and invested by the State Treasurer. The LGIP invests in time
deposits, such as Certificates of Deposit, commercial paper, United States of America
agency securities, repurchase agreements, and United States of America treasuries. By
law, the LGIP is required to maintain a 90-day or less weighted-average-maturity. The fair
value of shares held in the LGIP is the same as the value of the LGIP shares. The TN
LGIP has not been rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

The City utilizes a cash management plan for all cash in checking for all funds, except for
the school funds which have their own bank accounts. One bank account is used for
disbursements for the City. Other accounts are maintained for utility collections of the
regional systems, which are periodically transfelTed to the General Disbursement Account
and for Debt Service. The balance of cash in each fund is maintained on the City's records
and reconciled to the total in the General Disbursement Account. Cash overdrafts are
reflected in the financial statements as Cash Due to Central Depository.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (continued)

1. Deposits and investments (continued)

The cash management plan provides that the balance in the bank is invested on a daily basis at
the CellTent interest rates. Interest income is allocated to the individual funds based on the
average cash balance of the individual funds. Likewise, interest expense is charged to funds
with an overdraft. The plan is presently with First Tennessee Bank. Bids are obtained from all
banks to obtain the best possible rates.

Investments for the City, as well as for its blended component unit, are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables andpayables

Activity ben:veen funds that are representative of lending/bolTowing anangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (Le., the current
portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans), All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from
other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal
balances."

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles, The
property tax receivable and trade receivables allowance accounts are based on prior years'
collection experience,

Property taxes are levied on September I on property values assessed as of January I. The
billings are mailed by September 1st and a 1% discount is allowed through September 30th,
After December 31, the tax bill becomes delinquent and penalty and interest are assessed,
Property taxes are declared to be a lien on the property after January 10th of the year of
assessment.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

AlI inventories of governmental funds are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)
method and are recorded as expenditures at the time purchased. AlI such inventories on hand at
year"end are reported as assets and are fully reserved in the equity section of the fund financial
statements.

All inventories of proprietary funds are valued at cost utilizing the weighted average or FfFO
method and are expensed when consumed rather then when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (continued)

4. Restricted assets

Certain cash and investment balances of the City are classified as restricted assets on the
statement of net assets because they are maintained in separate accounts and their use is limited
by certain agreements and contracts with third parties. Restricted cash includes sinking fund
accounts established to meet the requirements of certain bonds issues, escrow for construction
contractors established to fund retainages of outstanding construction projects upon their
completion, and savings accounts for tax equivalent payments, capital improvements, and
unexpected expenses. Restricted investments include securities held for larger claims of a self
insurance program.

5. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads,
bridges, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities colnmns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the City as assets with an initial individual cost equal to or greater than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year for property, plant and equipment and assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $100,000 for infrastructure. The reported value excludes normal
maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do
not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original
estimate. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Significant interest and related fees incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities are included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Total interest and related fees incurred by the Water and Sewer Fund during the current fiscal
year were $2,318,816. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, $488,389 of interest and
related fees were capitalized in connection with the wastewater treatment plant upgrade.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or eqnity (continued)

5. Capital assets (continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the blended component
unit, are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Roads and bridges 40
Buildings and building improvements 30
Golf c.ourse improvements 15
Landfill improvements 25
Fire trucks 20
Utility lines 45
School buses, passenger vans 15
Machinery, equipment and heavy vehicles 10
Office equipment/automobiles 7
Computer equipment/software licenses 3

Assets of the Johnson City Power Board are depreciated over the useful lives per guidelines of
the Tennessee Valley Authority. When property is retired or otherwise disposed of, its average
cost, together with its cost of removal less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation; no
gain or loss is recognized as per federal energy regulations. The useful lives range from 3 years
to 50 years. The Power Board's depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2009 was
$6,093,110 of which $399,111 \vas charged to Other Operating Expenses.

6. Compensated absences

Policy o/City exceptfor Schools and Johnson City Power Board. Vacation benefits apply to
all full-time and regular part-time employees who have completed six months of continuous
employment. Vacation accrues as follows:

Years of Service
Under 10 years of service
10 to 15 years of service
15 years of service
17 years of service
19 years of service
21 years of service
23+ years of service

Vacation Days
10
15
16
17
18
19
20

Monthly Hourly Accrual
6.67

10.00
10.67
11.34
12.00
12.67
13.34

Vacation accruals for members of the Fire Bureau are based on a 24 hour day. Current hours
earned per month are multiplied by 1.477 to reach an hourly vacation accrual.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (continued)

6. Compensated absences (continued)

Sick leave accumulates at the rate of eight hours per month for regular full-time and on a pro­
rata basis for regular part-time employees. For Fire Bureau employees, a day equals 24 hours
and sick leave will accrue at 24 hours a month unless Fire Bureau employees are assigned to an
eight hour shift then they will accumulate at the rate of eight hours per month. Sick leave may
be accumulated with no maximum on number of days. There is no liability for unpaid
accumulated sick leave since no obligation exists for payment of accumulated sick leave upon
termination for reasons other than death or retirement. Upon retirement for an employee who
has completed 15 years of service, the sick leave accumulated is credited to the years of service
or the employee may elect to receive compensation at the rate of two days of sick leave at the
employee's regular rate for every completed year of service, not to exceed the days accumulated
in the employee's account. In the event of death; one-third of the accumulated amount is paid to
the beneficiary. It is also the City's policy to permit employees from certain departments of the
City to accumulate earned but unused compensation for excess hours worked. All
compensatory time is accrued when inculTed in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Policy of Schools. Teachers' vacations and sick leaves are in accordance with state policies.
Most other school employees do not accumulate vacation or sick leave in excess of a nomlal
year's accumulation. Vacation is earned and accumulates at one day per month. Administrative
personnel are allowed to accumulate vacation days and may earn up to 20 days per year after 10
years of service. Employees have eighteen months to use the vacation time or it is lost. Five
days of vacation can be converted to sick time for can)'over for retirement. Unused sick time is
not compensated. Accrued vacation has been recorded for the twelve month administrative
personnel in the government-wide and fund financial statements. It is estimated that any accrual
for ten month employees would be immaterial.

Policy ofthe Johnson City Power Board. Employees earn various vacation days determined on
years of service. Vacation days can be accumulated to a maximum of 40 days, which are
payable upon separation of employment. Sick leave is granted after 90 days of employment.
The employee earns one day for each one full month employed. Sick leave can be accumulated
with no limitation as to the number of days. No obligation exists for payment of accumulated
sick leave upon termination for reasons other than death or retirement. On date of retirement or
death, the Power Board is obligated for 75% of accumulated days. A liability for compensated
absences and related fringe benefits is reflected in the statement of net assets and in the
proprietary fund financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (continued)

7. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the tl.JTld financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are defened and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method or the straight line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are repolted as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the cunent period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
repolted as debt service expenditures.

8. Fund equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans
that are subject to change.

9. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the June 30, 2008 financial statements in order for
them to conform to the June 30, 2009 financial statement presentation.

10. Use ofestimates

The preparation of financial st.atements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances - total
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "capital assets used in
governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds."
This difference does not include capital assets from the internal service funds. The details of this
$212,007,332 difference are as follows:

Governmental funds capital assets
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Less: Internal service funds, net capital assets
Net adjustment to increase fund balance-total governmental funds

to arrive at net assets-governmental activities

$ 369,420,307
(157,357,652)
( 55,323)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds." The
details of this $109,943,572 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable (net of deferred refunding)
Notes payable
Capital Lease
Net adjustment to reducefund balance-total governmental funds

to arrive at net assets-governmental activities

$ 108,323,495
284,000
368,450

$ J.Q&,215,945

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in
net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.
One element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful Jives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays of general capital assets in the current period exceeded depreciation." This difference does
not include depreciation expense of $13,041 relating to internal service funds. The details of this
$17,084,155 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances­
total governmental funds to a1Tive at changes in net assets
ofgovernmental activities
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2. RECONCIL14,TION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND 'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED):

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
(continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the net effect of various miscellaneous
transactions involving capital assets (I.e. sales, trade-ins and donations) is to decrease net assets."
In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is reported. However, in the
governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. The details of this
$(32,730) difference are as follows:

$ 1,153,428
(Ll~9_J2,~)

Gain on sale
Less: Sales proceeds
Net adjustment to decrease net changes infund balances "total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets ofgovernmental activities $( 32.130)

Another element of that reconciI iation states that "revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds". The details of this
$125,663 difference are as follows:

Deferred property ta.xes as of June 30, 2009
Deferred propelty taxes as of June 30, 2008
Deferred other taxes as of June 30,2009
DefelTed other taxes as of June 30,2008
Net adjustment to increase net changes infund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets ofgovernmental activities

$ 1,370,762
(1,045,391)

526,819
(726,527

$

$ 73,692,741
(79,432,383)

54,019
(1,567.794)

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt (e,g.. bonds)
provides current financial resources to gove.rnmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes financial resources of governmental funds, Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities, This amount is the amount by which
repayments exceeded proceeds." The details of this $(7,253,417) difference are as follows:

Principal repayments
Proceeds from bonds and capital lease
Amortization of deferred refunding
DefelTed refunding
Net adjustment to decrease net changes infund balances -total governmental
fimds to arrive at changes in net assets ofgovernmental activities $ (7,253.417)

55



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

3. STEWARDSHIP. COJ\'1PLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

A. Budgetary information

Annual budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds (Freedom Hall, School Federal
Projects, Special School Projects, School Food Service, Transportation Planning, Drug Fund, Police
Grant Fund and Community Development) and the Debt Service Fund are adopted on a basis consistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). An annual
budget is also adopted for the General PUlvose School Fund, which is adopted on the modified accrual
basis plus encumbrances. All annual appropriations lapse at year end.

The City Manager is required by charter to present to the Board of Commissioners an estimate of
expenditures and revenue of the City for the ensuing fiscal year. The estimates are to be compiled from
detailed information obtained from the departments of the City. The Board of Commissioners then
prepares a tentative appropriation ordinance. Three readings of the appropriation ordinance must be
approved on or before June 30, after which date the new budget goes into effect

As a management control, annual budgets are prepared for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds
(excluding the Senior Citizens, Employee Scholarship, Homeless, Public Aid Funds, and School Site
Based Fund), Debt Service Fund, and Proprietary Funds (excluding the Johnson City Power Board and
Johnson City Public Building Authority). Appropriations for the General Fund and Special Revenue
Funds are authorized at the department or function level except for the Community Development Fund,
which is authorized on the project level on an annual basis to satisfy the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development requirements. The remaining funds' budgets are authorized at the Fund level.
Supplemental appropriations may be authorized by ordinance during the year.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the General Purpose School Fund. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do
not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored
during the subsequent year.

Fund balance for the General Purpose School Fund shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Governmental Funds differs from the Fund balance shown on the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual General
Purpose School Fund due to encumbrances as follows:

General Purpose
School Fund

Fund Balance-Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Governmental Funds

Less: Encumbrances

Fund Balance-Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance Budget and Actual
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For the :Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED):

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2009, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the listed departments
within the following governmental funds:

Educational Facilities Debt Service:
Debt Service Expenditures

Freedom IIall Civic Center Fund:
Civic Center Enteriainment

Special School Projects:
Education

C. Deficit fund equity

Over spent
ArllQVn!

5,279

840

2,048

The following funds had deficit net assets/fund balance at June 30,2009:

Educational Facilities Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Funds:
Industrial Park Fund
Infrastructure Fund

Special Revenue Funds:
Community Development Fund

Enterprise Funds:
Golf Course Fund

$ (41,914)

(1,445,910)
(1,480,410)

(7,173)

(828,301)

The deficit in the Educational Facilities Debt Service Fund will be eliminated by future
reimbursements.

The deficit in the Industrial Park Fund will be eliminated by future reimbursements.

The deficit in the Infrastructure Fund will be eliminated by future reimbursements.

The deficit in the Community Development Fund will be eliminated by future reimbursements.

The deficit in the Golf Course Fund is due to expenses consistently exceeding revenues. It will be
eliminated by future operations and transfers from the General Fund.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS:

A. Deposits and investments

Cash deposits on the statement of net assets include demand deposits, c·ertificates of deposit,
savings accounts, cash on deposit with paying agents, cash on deposit with the State of Tennessee
and cash deposited in escrow accounts.

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk.

The City's policy for custodial credit rate risk on deposits is to follow state guidelines.

At year end, the City had $26,929 of cash on hand which has been included in cash and cash
equivalents. The City's carrying amount of deposits was $106,025,807 and the bank balance was
$117,153,907. Of the City's bank balance, $69,861,188 was covered by the State of Tennessee
Collateral Pool, which is a multiple financial institution collateral pool, or by amounts insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and $45,713 was covered by the National
Credit Union Share Insurance Fund. State statutes require collateral pledged by each financial
institution to equal a certain percentage of the uninsured public deposits it holds. Members of the
pool can be assessed if the collateral is inadequate to cover a loss. This is similar to depository
insurance. Of the remaining City balance, $47,247,006 represents cash in trust accounts which are
insured by the FDIC.

In addition to the above deposits, the City has $10,465,468 on deposit with the State of Tennessee
at June 30, 2009.

Investments

Custodial Credit Risk.

The City's investment policy is to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall investment
portfolio. The City will emphasize the safety of capital first, maintain sufficient liquidity to meet
obligations second, and gain the highest possible yield third. All investments made by the City
will be in accordance with applicable state guidelines. The City does not allow for an investment
in securities maturing more than two years from the date of issue.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

At June 30,2009, the City's investments were as follows:

Primaty Government

Investment Type: Reported Fair

Amount Value

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) $ 10,465,468 10,465,468

Money Market Funds 1,184,560 1,184,560

Certificates of Deposit-Cash 267,915 267,915

Reported as Cash in Bank 11,917,943 11,917,943

Certificates of Deposit-Investments 4,605,000 4,605,000

U.S. Government Securities 29,375,695 29,375,695

Reported as Investments 33,980,695 33,980,695

Total Primary Government $ 45,898,638 45,898,638

The LGIP, certificates of deposit, and money market investments have been included in cash in
bank since they are comprised of short term investments.

The TN LGIP has not been rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Interest Rate Risk:

Under its loan agreement, the Public Building Authority of Sevier County, TN (the "Authority"), at
the request of the City, has entered into an interest rate swap agreement for all of the outstanding
Local Government Improvement Bonds, Series D-9-A.

Objective oj the interest rate swap In order to protect against the potential of rising interest rates
and to balance its mixture of variable and fixed rate debt, the City requested the Authority, on its
behalf, to enter into an interest rate swap in connection with its $29.085 million Series D-9-A
variable-rate bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the City's variable interest
rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate. The Series D-9-A bonds have since been refunded with
a portion of the proceeds of the Series V-K-1 bonds and the interest rate swap is now associated
with the Series V-K-1 bonds.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

Terms. Under the swap, the Authority pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 3.746 percent and
receives a variable equal to the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Index (the
"SIFMA"). The bonds hedged by the interest rate swap agreement had an original outstanding
principal amount of $29.085 million. At no time will the notional amount of the interest rate swap
agreement exceed the outstanding principal amount on the associated hedged bonds. The related
swap agreement matures on June 1,2012. As of June 30, 2009, rates were as follows:

Interest Rate Swap

Fixed Payment to Counterparty

Variable Payment from Counterparty

Net Interest Rate Swap Payments

True Interest Costs

Synthetic Interest Rate on Bonds

Fixed

Terms Rates

3.746%

-0.350%

3.396%

3.550%

6.946%

Fair value. As of June 30, 2009, the swap had a negative fair value of ($1 ,593,929). The negative
fair value of the swap may be countered by reductions in total interest payments required under the
variable-rate bond, creating lower synthetic rates. Because the rates on the govemment's variable­
rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a corresponding fair value
increase. The fair value model calculates future cash flows by projecting forward rates, and then
discounts those cash flows at their present value.

Credit risk. As of June 30, 2009, the City was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a
negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes
positive, the City would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative's fair value. The
swap counterparty was rated "Aa" at the time of the swap. If the counterparty's credit rating is
downgraded, the counterparty is required to post collateral with a third-party custodian.

Basis risk. As noted above, the swap exposes the City to basis risk should the rate on the
underlying bonds increase above SIFMA, thus increasing the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a
change occurs that results in the underlying rate on the bonds to be below SIFMA, then the
synthetic rate on the bonds will decrease.

Termination risk. The derivative contract uses the Intemational Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard tennination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The
Schedule to the Master Agreement includes an "additional termination provision." The Authority
or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perfonn under the terms of
the contract. If the swap is terminated, the variable-rate bond would no longer can)' a synthetic
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4. D:ETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

interest rate. Also, if at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the Authority
would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap's fair value. Likewise, if the
swap has a positive fair value at termination, the counterparty would be liable to the Authority for a
payment equal to the swap's fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. As of June 30, 2009, debt service requirements of the
variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same, for
their term were as follows. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap
payments will vary.

.Y~Iiable Rate Bonds
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2021

Principal

$ 375,000

375,000

400,000

425,000

2,700,000

18,550,000

5,550,000
$ 28,375,000

Interest

1,007,313

994,000

980,688

966,488

951,400

3,086,725

230,750
8,217,364
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Net Interest Rate

Swap Payment

963,615

950,880

938,145

924,561

910,128

2,952,822

220,740

7,860,891

'rotaI

2,345,928

2,319,880

2,318,833
2,3] 6,049

4,561,528

24,589,547

6,001,490

44,453,255
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor and internal service
funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts" are as
follows:

General Educational School Other Total
Purpose Facilities Capital Project Governmental Governmental

General School Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
Receivables

Taxes $ 29,560,022 29,560,022
Accounts 1,027,754 21,126 568,850 10,945 9,079 1.637,754
Notes 42298 42,298
Intergovernmental 5,364,617 11,986,131 1,465,3 10 18,816,058

(1 ross receivables 35,952,393 12,007,257 568,850 10,945 1,516,687 50,056,132

Less: Allowances for
Uncollectibles (164,7]3)

Net total receivables $ 35,787,680 ]2,007,257

Water City Johnson City Johnson City Other Total
and Solid Power Publ ic Building Proprietary Proprietary

Sewer Waste Board
Receivables

Accounts $ 2,064,293 704,328 14,837,316 3,284 266,324 17,875,545

Notes 172,500 ]72,500

Intergovernmental 45,781 487,097 532,878

Gross receivables 2,] 10,074 704,328 15,009,8 ]6 3,284 753,421 ]8,580,923

Less: Allowances for
Uncollectibles (1,]31,562) (257,425) (1,101,169) (146,411) (2,636,567)

Net total receivables $ 978,512 446,903 13,908,647 607,010 15,944,356

Total Total Internal Total

Governmental Proprietary Service Primary

Funds Funds Funds Government
Receivables

Taxes $ 29,560,022 29,560,022

Accounts 1,637,754 17,875,545 43,686 19,556,985
Notes 42,298 172,500 214,798
Intergovernmental 18,816,058 532,878 19,348,936

Gross receivables 50,056,132 18,580,923 43,686 68,680,741

Less: Allowances for
Uncollectibles (164,713) (2,636,567) (2,801,280)

Net total receivables $ 49,891,419 1 56 43,686 65,879,461
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

B. Receivables (Continued)

Uncollectible amounts ofthe General Fund are reported under general governmental expenditures.
Uncollectible amounts of Nonmajor Governmental services are reported under Public Welfare.
Uncollectible amounts for Water and Sewer, City Solid Waste and Nonmajor Proprietary services
are reported under operating expenses. Uncollectible amounts for power services are netted
against revenues. Total uncollectible amounts related to revenues of the current period are as
follows:

Uncollectibles related to: General Services

Nonmajor Governmental Services

Water and Sewer Services

City Solid Waste Services

Nonmajor Proprietary Services

Power Services

$

$

6,741

80

144,887

43,256

56,542

118,306

369,812

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and
unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Property taxes receivable (General Fund)
Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund)
Other taxes receivable (General Fund)
Property taxes receivable (General Purpose School Fund)
Ticket sales prior to event date (Freedom Hall)
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements

(Transportation Planning, Police Grant and
Community Development)
Total deferred / unearned revenue for governmental funds

Unavailable
$

1,370,762
526,819

$ 1.897,581

Unearned
27,883,067

9,473,520
93,743

76,244
37,526,574

Property taxes which are delinquent at year end are eamed but not available. The tax year 2009
property taxes are unearned and unavailable, but are recorded as receivable on the levy date, as
described in Note I.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

.Primary Government
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Adjustments Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 17,005,094 1,021,634 (207,324) 17,819,40·1

Construction in Progress ___16,693,027 21,122,857 (17,007,821 ) 20,808,063

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 33,698,121 22,144,491 (17,215,\45) 0 38,627,467

Capi\al assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 138,705,187 9,610,715 (469,251 ) 147,8'\ 6.651

Equipmen\ and Vehicles 31,835,545 3,772,917 (2,026,583 ) 32,895 33,614,774

Infrastructure 141,332,585 7,998,830 149,BU15

Total capital assets, being depreciated 311,873,317 21,382,462 (2,495,834) ___._32.895 __330,7?2,8'0 _

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (67,573,406) (3,800,203 ) 430,246 (70,943,363)

Equipment and Vehicles (22,573,22 5) (2,063,108) 2,025,205 (29,461 ) (22,640.589)

Infrastructure (60,446,827) (3,326,873) (63,773,700)

Total Accumulated Depreciation ( 150,593,458) (9,190,184) 2,455,451 (29,461) (157,357,652)

Total capital assets, being depredated, net 161,279,859 12,192,278 (40,383) 3,434 173,435,188

Governmental activities capital assetsT net 194,977,980 34,336,769 JI7,255,5~~
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C. Capital assets (continued)

Government

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Balance

$ 13,698,752

16,883,555

30,582,307

Additions

326,635

19,171,060

19,497,695

Deletions

(1,033,397)

(1,033,397)

Adjustments

o

Balance

14,025,387
35,021,218

49,046,605

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and other improvements
Plant in service
Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and other improvements
Plant in service
Vehicles and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

49,500,593 330,835

304,583,449 9,063,436 (1,867,866)

28,442,084 5,889,194 (525,215)

382,526,126 15,283,465 (2,393,081 )

(10,848,448) (1,222,037)

(104,016,593) (8,235,962) 2,170,031

(l7,640,722) (2,340,543) 492,403

(132,505,763) (11,798,542) 2,662,434

250,020,363 3,484,923 269,353

$ 280,602,670 22,982,618 (764,044)

(J 6,828)

( 16,828)

35,722

(22,328)

13,394

(3,434)

(3,434)

49,831,428

311,779,CJI9

33,789,235

395,399,682

(12,034,763)

(110,082,524)

(19,511,190)
(141,628,477)

302,817,810

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary govemment as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government

Education

Public Welfare

Public Works

Public Safety

City Service

Total Depreciation Expense-Govemmental Activities
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$

$

642,827

3,465,275

415,J 64

4,040,431

409,728

216,759

J84
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C. Capital assets (continued)

Business-Type Activities:

Water Sewer

City Solid Waste

Johnson City Power Board

Johnson City Public Building Authority

Golf Course Fund

Regional Solid Waste

Mass Transit

Stormwater Management

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities

$ 3,800,039

708,573

6,093,110

487,647

113,809

206,534

330,579

58,251

$ 11,798,542

D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30,2009, is as follows:

Due to/from Other Funds:
Receivable Fund

General

General Purpose School

Special School Projects

Johnson City Power Board

Total

Payable Fund

Public Building Authority

School Federal Projects

Special School Projects

General Purpose School

General Fund

Water/Sewer

General Purpose School

Amount

$ 493,512

346,277

160,327

19,351

175,816

201,358

132,857

$ 1,529,498

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (I)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are
recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments betvv'een funds are made.

Advances to/from otherfunds.'

Receivable Fund
General

Payable Fund
Public Building Authority
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers (continued)

Advances to;Jrom otlterfwuls (Continued):

The balance payable to the General Fund relates to loans made to the PBA to fund operations. The PBA paid $50,000 in principal during the
year ended June 30,2009.

Interfund Transfers:
Transfers In:

Government."11 Activitjes Business-Type Activities

General Educational School Debt NonmajoT Internal City Water Nonmajof
General Purpose Facilities Capital Servke Governmental Service Solid and Proprietary

CP Fund School Debt Service Pmject Fund Funds Funds Wa.~te Sewer Funds Total
~

TransferLOut:

Governmental Activities

General Fund $ 7,832,675 393,000 6,584.371 5.872,712 263,491 1,061,215 22,007,464
General Purpose School Fund 6,750 1,035,400 821,442 1,863,592
Educational Facilities Debt Service 44,000 44.000
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 10.520 297,758 308,278

BusIness-Type Activities

Johnson City Power Board 2,702.090 2.702.090
Water and Sewer 441,048 441,048

City Solid Waste 51,000 51,000
Nonmajor Proprietary FlinGS 148,792 20,180 ___1_6_8.972

Totals S 3.1 93,888 7.843,195 1,(135,400 393,000 6,584,371 6,99: .912 263,491 148,792
-

71,180 1,061,215 27,586,444

Transfers are used to I) move revenues from the fund with collections authorization to the debt service fund as debt service principal and
interest payments become due, 2) move restricted amounts fi-om borrowings to the debt service fund to establish mandatory reserve accounts,
3) move unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

K Lease Revenue

Lease Revenue

The City acts as a lessor for various City properties. The City collects rents on these properties and
maintains signed lease agreements with the various tenants. The revenue is reflected in the fund
that owns the property. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City earned revenue from the
leases in the amount of $283,436.

F'. Long-Term Debt

Governmental ActivjtiQll~

Notes Payable:

General obligation notes currently outstanding and the funds from which they will be paid are as
follows:

Debt Service Fund:
Capital Outlay Note ­

School Buses

Date
Issued

12/20/2004 $

68

Amount
Issued

620,000

Interest
Rate

Variable
$

Outstanding

June 2009

284,000
284,000
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4. DETAILED NOn~S ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Governmental Activities (continued):

Notes Payable (continued):

Notes payable for school buses issued December 20,2004, debt service requirements to maturity in 2012
are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest rota I
2010 $ 91,000 9,798 100,798

2011 95,000 6,658 101,658

2012 98,000 3,381 101,381

$ 284,000 19,837 303,837

Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds currently outstanding and the funds from which they will be paid are as
follows:

Date Amount Interest Outstanding

Educational Facilities Debt Service FUQQ;. Issued Issued Rate June 30. 2009

Sales Tax and Tax Refunding

Bonds, Series 1997 5/1/1997 $ 4,812,803 5.25%-5.6% $ 3,091.106

Sales Tax Revenue and Unlimited

Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1998 7/]5/1998 3,280,000 4.10%-4.75% 2,055,000

Local Government Public

Improvement Bonds-

Series V-K-l 3/12/2009 28,485,000 4.53% 28,485.000

$ 33,6311 06

69



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM:ENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Sales Tax and Tax Refunding Bonds Series 1997 debt service requirements to maturity in 2013 are as
follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 664,686 680,314 1,345,000

2011 780,713 899,287 1,680,000

2012 809,837 1,045,163 1,855,()()O

2013 835,870 1 130 2,040,000

$ 3,091,106 3,828,894 6,920,000

Sales Tax Revenue and Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds issued July 15, 1998 debt service
requirements to maturity in 2016 are as f(}llows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 255,000 100,097 355,097

2011 270,000 86,710 356,710

2012 280,000 72,535 352,535

2013 295,000 59,375 354,375

2014 305,000 45,363 350,363

2015-2016 650,000 46,550 696,550

$ 2,055,000 410,630 2,465,630
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Local Government Public Improvement Bonds Series V-K-l issued March 12,2009, debt service
requirements to maturity in 2011 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 1,250,341 1,250,341

2011 28,485,000 1,289,750 29,774,750

$ 28,485,000 2,540,091 31,025,091

Total annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental activities general obligation bonds in
the Educational Facilities Debt Service Fund are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 919,686 2,030,752 2,950,438

2011 29,535,713 2,275,747 31,811,460

2012 1,089,837 1,117,698 2,207,535

2013 1,130,870 1,263,505 2,394,375

2014 305,000 45,363 350,363

2015-2016 650,000 46,550 696,550

$ 33,631,106 6,779,615 40,410,721
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F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Govemmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

General Obligation

Public Improvement Refunding Bonds,

Series 1998

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2004A

General Obligation Reftll1ding
Bonds, Series 2004B

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2006

Date Amount Interest Outstanding

Issued Issued Rate June 30, 2009

7/15/1998 $ 20,060,000 4.10%-4.75% $ 5,570,000

9/2312004 11,460,900 3.00%-4.40% 6,004,5] 5

J2/29/2004 7,625,000 3.00%-4.40°1t, 6,490,000

3/3012006 6,230,000 3.50%-4.125% 5,665.000

Local Government Ptlblic
Improvement Bonds­

Series V-K-I

General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009

'rhe Tennessee Municipal

Bond Fund, Series TCSLP 2008

3112/2009

6/3012009

119/2009

72

26,645,000

11,390,000

25,000,000

2.50%-5.00%

3.00%-5.00%

5.00°1.,

26,645,000

11,390,000

12,417,222
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

General Obligation Public Improvement Refunding Bonds issued July 15, 1998 debt service
requirements to maturity in 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 690,000 271,270 961,270

2011 725,000 235,045 960,045

2012 760,000 196,983 956,983

2013 790,000 161,262 951,262

2014 830,000 123,738 953,738

2015-2016 1,775,000 127,299 1,902,299

$ 5,570,000 1,115,597 6,685,597

General Obligation Refunding Bonds issued September 23, 2004 debt service requirements to maturity in
2023 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 323,895 232,070 555,965

2011 338,844 222,354 561,198

2012 348,810 211,510 560,320

2013 363,759 200,175 563,934

2014 378,708 187,443 566,151

2015-2019 2,147,673 714,735 2,862,408

2020-2023 2,102,826 232,662 2,335,488
$ 6,004,515 2,000,949 8,005,464
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F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Qovemmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

General Obligation Refunding Bonds issued December 29, 2004 debt service requirements to maturity in
2025 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 305,000 255,748 560,748

2011 315,000 246,599 561,599

2012 325,000 235,574 560,574

2013 335,000 224,198 559,198

2014 350,000 212,474 562,474

2015-2019 1,950,000 858,250 2,808,250

2020-2024 2,375,000 431,124 2,806, I24

2025 535,000 23,541 558,541

$ 6,490,000 2,487,508

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 issued March 30, 2006 debt service requirements to
maturity in 2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 415,000 226,212 641,212

2011 435,000 209,613 644,613

2012 450,000 192,212 642,2]2

2013 470,000 174,213 644,213

2014 490,000 156,587 646,587

2015-2019 2,775,000 472,338 3,247,338

2020 630,000 25,987 655,987
$ 5,665,000 1,457,162 1 ]62
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL -FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Local Government Public Improvement Bonds, Series V-K-l issued March 12, 2009 debt service
requirements to maturity in 2025 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 1,660,000 1,063,535 2,723,535

2011 4,110,000 1,055,556 5,165,556

2012 1,500,000 850,056 2,350,056

2013 1,590,000 775,056 2,365,056

2014 1,645,000 727,356 2,372,356

2015-2019 9,420,000 2,588,181 12,008,181

2020-2024 6,140,000 756,819 6,896,819

2025 580,000 24,713 604,713

$ 26,645,000 7,841,272 34,486,272

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 issued June 30, 2009 debt service requirements to
maturity in 2026 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 775,000 394,993 1,169,993
2011 795,000 406,350 1,201,350
2012 830,000 382,500 1,212,500

2013 835,000 357,600 1,192,600

2014 875,000 332,550 1,207,550

2015-2019 4,125,000 1,189,138 5,314,138

2020-2024 2,085,000 507,763 2,592,763

2025-2026 1,070,000 97,450 1,167,450
$ 11,390,000 3,668,344 ]5,058,344
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

The 'I'ennessee Municipal Bond Fund, Series TCSLP 2008 issued January 9, 2009 debt servIce
requirements to maturity in 2029 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
June 30

2010
20] 1

20]2

2013

2014

2015-2019
2020-2024

2025-2029

Less: Amount not drawn

Principal
$ 1,080,000

1,134,000
1,] 92,000

1,251,000

] ,313,000

7,619,000
6,860,000

4,551,000

25,000,000
(12,582,778)

$ 12,417,222

Interest
1,250,000
1,]96,000

1,139,300

1,079,700
],017,150

4,032,700
2,200,200

750

12,619,800

12,619,800

Total
2,330,000
2,330,000

2,331,300

2,330,700
2,330,]50

11,651,700
9,060,200

5,255,750
37,619,800

(12,582,778)
25,037,022

At June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance of this bond issue is $12,417,222. The City expects to draw the
remaining $12,582,778 during the year ending June 30, 20 IO.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ,FUNDS (CONTIN1JED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Governmental Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Total annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental activities general obligation bonds
are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2010

201 I

2012
2013
2014

2015-2019
2020-2024

2025-2029

Less: Amount not drawn

Principal

$ 6,168,581

37,388,557
6,495,647

6,765,629
6,186,708

30,461,673
20,192,826

6,736,000

120,395,621

(12,582,778)
$ 107,812,843

Interest

5,724,580

5,847,264
4,325,833

4,235,709
2,802,661

10,029,191
4,154,555

850,454

37,970,247

37,970,247

Total

11,893,161

43,235,82 I
10,821,480

11,001,338
8,989,369

40,490,864

24,347,381

7,586,454

158,365,868
(12,582,778)
145,783,090

At June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance of governmental activities general obligation bonds is
$107,812,843. The difference relates to amount not drawn on the Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund.
Series TCSLP 2008 issued January 9, 2009. The City expects to draw the remaining $12,582,778 during
the year ending June 30,2010.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities:

Bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of facilities for the enterprise funds and to be paid from
enterprise funds are recorded in the applicable enterprise fund. Bonds of utility districts acquired by the
City are reported in the appropriate fund. Maturities on July 1 are considered as maturing on the
preceding June 30th.

Notes Payable:

General obligation notes to be repaid from enterprise funds currently outstanding and the funds from
which they will be paid are as follows:

Water and Sewer:

Date

Issued

Amount

Issued

Interest

Rate

Outstanding

June 2009

Note Payable ­

Limestone Cove

Note Payable ­

Watauga Flats

Note Payable­

Limestone Cove

3/13/2003

4/20/2004

4/20/2005

$ 450,000

380,000

125,000

4.65%

4.38%

4.25%

$ 4 18,542

357,504

118,991
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Notes Payable (Continued):

TotalInterestPrincipal

Note payable for Limestone Cove issued March 13, 2003 debt service requirements to maturity in 2041
are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2024

2025-2029

2030-2034

2035-2039

2040-2041

$ 5,937

6,219

6,513

6,824

7,145

41,145

51,852

65,355

82,383

103,832

41,337

19,287

19,005

18,711

18,400

18,079

84,975

74,268

60,765

43,737

22,288

1,741

25,224

25,224

25,224

25,224

25,224

126,120

126,120

126,120

126,120

126,120

43,078

$ 418,542 381 799,798

Note payable for Watauga Flats issued April 20, 2004 debt service requirements to maturity in 2042 are
as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 5,295 15,260 20,555

2011 5,263 15,305 20,568

2012 5,456 15,112 20,568
2013 5,741 14,827 20,568
2014 5,998 14,570 20,568

2015-2019 34,206 68,634 102,840
2020-2024 42,525 60,315 102,840
2025-2029 52,948 49,892 102,840
2030-2034 65,874 36,966 102,840
2035-2039 81,956 20,884 102,840
2040-2042 52,242 3,246 55,488

$ 357,504 315,011 15
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINlJED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

BusinQm;-Type Activities (Continued):

Notes Payable (Continued):

Note payable for Limestone Cove issued April 20, 2005 debt service requirements to maturity in 2043 are
as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 1,624 5,024 6,648

20] 1 1,694 4,954 6,648

20]2 ],754 4,894 6,648

2013 1,844 4,804 6.648

20]4 1,924 4,724 6,648

2015-2019 10,930 22,310 33,240

2020-2024 13,503 19,737 33,240

2025-2029 16,708 16,532 33,240

2030-2034 20,659 12,58] 33,240

2035-2039 25,543 7,697 33,240

2040-2043 22,808 1,882 24,690

$ 118,991 105,139 224,130

Total annual debt service requirements to maturity for business-type activities notes payable are as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 12,856 39,571 52,427

2011 13,176 39,264 52,440
20]2 ]3,723 38,7 J 7 52,440

2013 14,409 38,031 52,440
20]4 15,067 37,373 52,440

2015-2019 86,281 175,919 262,200
2020-2024 107,880 154,320 262,200
2025-2029 135,011 127,]89 262,200
2030-2034 168,916 93,284 262,200
2035-2039 21 1,331 50,869 262,200
2040-2043 116,387 6,869 123,256

$ 895,037 80] 1,696,443
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable:

General Obligation bonds to be repaid from enterprise funds currently outstanding and the funds from
which they will be paid are as follows:

Date

Issued

Amount

Issued

Interest

Rate
Outstanding

June 2009

Local Government Public

Improvement Bonds­

Series V-K-1 3/12/2009 $ 9,520,000 2.50%-5.00% $ 9,520,000

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2009

City Solid Waste:

Solid Waste Refunding Bonds

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2004A

Local Government Public

Improvement Bonds­

Series V-K-1

Buffalo Valley Golf Course:

Golf Course Revenue and

Tax Refunding Bonds

Johnson CitrJ'_ubJic BQjlding Authority:

Public Facility
Refunding Bonds

Series 2006A

6/30/2009

7Il5/] 998

9/23/2004

3/12/2009

7/15/1998

6/29/2006

81

35,385,000

1,640,000

39,100

2,350,000

2,465,000

16,655,000

Variable

3.00%-4.40%

2.50°/'0-5 _00%

4.10%-4.75%

4.04%-5.22%

35,385,000
$ 44,905,000

$ 1,025,000

20,485

2,350,000

$ 3,395,485

$

$ 14,555,000
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

l?.1!.sin~~!i:IypeActi.yities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Local Govemment Public Improvement Bonds, Series V-K-l issued March 12,2009 debt service
requirements to maturity in 2015 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 550,000 366,450 916,450

2011 580,000 364,250 944,250

2012 615,000 335,250 950,250

2013 650,000 304,500 954,500

2014 685,000 285,000 970,000

2015 6,440,000 257,600 6,697,600

$ 9,520,000 1,913,050 11,433,050

TotalInterestPrincipal

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 issued June 30, 2009 debt service requirements to
maturity in 2031 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2010

2011
2012
2013

2014

2015-2019
2020-2024

2025-2029
2030-203 ]

$ 1,450,000

1,530,000

1,535,000
1,565,000

1,590,000
8,190,000

6,635,000
8,735,000

4,155,000

1,356,698

1,432,063
1,386,163

1,340,113

1,293,163

5,589,363
4,014,475

2,345,775

315,250

2,806,698

2,962,063
2,92],]63

2,905,113

2,883,] 63

13,779,363
10,649,475

11,080,775
4,470,250

$ 35,385,000 19,073,063 54,458,063
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Solid Waste Refunding Bonds issued July 15, 1998 debt service requirements to maturity in 2016 are as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest 'rotal

2010 $ 125,000 49,892 174,892

2011 130,000 43,330 173,330

2012 140,000 36,505 176,505

2013 145,000 29,925 174,925

2014 155,000 23,037 178,037

2015-2016 330,000 23,750 353,750

$ 1,025,000 206,439 1,231,439

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004A issued September 23, 2004 debt service requirements
to maturity in 2023 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 1,105 792 1,897

2011 1,156 759 J,915

2012 1,190 722 1,912

2013 1,241 683 1,924
20]4 ],292 639 1,93 ]

2015-2019 7,327 2,438 9,765

2020-2023 7,174 794 7,968
$ 20,485 12
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities_i~ontinued):

Bonds Payable (Continued);

Local Government Public Improvement Bonds, Series V-K-] issued March ]2, 2009 debt service
requirements to maturity in 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 265,000 89,843 354,843

2011 290,000 86,050 376,050

2012 300,000 71,550 371,550

2013 325,000 56,550 381,550

2014 350,000 46,800 396,800

2015-2016 820,000 49,600 869,600

$ 2,350,000 400,393

Golf Course Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds issued July 15, 1998 debt service requirements to
maturity in 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

20]0 $ 190,000 75,233 265,233

2011 200,000 65,257 265,257

2012 210,000 54,758 264,758

2013 220,000 44,887 264,887

2014 230,000 34,438 264,438

2015-2016 495,000 35,625

$ 1 31 198
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-rYj2e Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Public Facility Refunding Bonds, Series 2006A issued June 29, 2006 debt service requirements to
maturity in 2023 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 665,000 666,431 1,331,431

2011 700,000 638,801 1,338,801

2012 725,000 609,971 1,334,971

2013 825,000 576,898 1,401,898

2014 875,000 539,779 1,414,779

2015-2019 5,420,000 1,980,969 7,400,969

2020-2023 5,345,000 493,621 5,838,621

$ 14,555,000 5,506,470 20,061,470

Total annual debt service requirements to maturity for business-type activities general obligation
bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 3,246,105 2,605,339 5,851,444

2011 3,431,156 2,630,510 6,061,666

2012 3,526,190 2,494,919 6,021, I09

2013 3,731,241 2,353,556 6,084,797

2014 3,886,292 2,222,856 6,109,148

2015-2019 21,702,327 7,939,345 29,641,672

2020-2024 11,987,174 4,508,890 16,496,064

2025-2029 8,735,000 2,345,775 11,080,775

2030-2031 4,155,000 315,250 4,470,250

$ 64,400,485 27,416,440 91,816,925
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Revenue bonds to be repaid from enterprise funds currently outstanding and the funds from which they
will be paid are as follows:

'\vater and Sewer:

Date

Issued

Amount

Issued

Interest

Rate

Outstanding

June 30, 2009

Water and Sewer Revenue and

Tax Refunding Bonds 7lI5!l998 $ 19,325.000 4.10%-4.75% $ 9,680,000

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax

Series 2006 Refunding Bonds

Johnson City Power Board:

3/30/2006 1,795,000 3.50%A.12% 1,635,000

$ 11,315,000

Revenue Bonds Series A and B,

2007 Refunding

Electric System Revenue

5/112007

6/30/2008

86

33,515,000

28,000,000

4.00%-5.10% $ 31,075,000

4.00%-5.00% 28,000,000

$ 59,075,000
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUl\TDS (CONTINUED):

F Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds issued July 15, 1998 debt service requirements to
maturity in 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 1,270,000 472,145 1,742,145

2011 1,340,000 405,469 1,745,469

2012 1,410,000 335,121 1,745,121

2013 1,475,000 268,849 1,743,849

2014 1,545,000 198,788 1,743,788

2015-2016 2,640,000 174,087 2,814,087

$ 9,680,000 1,854,459 II

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Series 2006 Refunding Bonds issued March 30, 2006 debt
service requirements to maturity in 2020 are as follows.

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 120,000 65,275 185,275

2011 125,000 60,475 185,475

2012 130,000 55,475 185,475

2013 140,000 50,275 190,275

2014 140,000 45,025 185,025
2015-2019 800,000 135,925 935,925

2020 180,000 7,425 187,425
$ 1 41 2,054,875
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Power Board Revenue Bonds, 2007 Refunding, Series A and B, debt service requirements to maturity in
2032 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 1,645,000 1,367,965 3,012,965

2011 1,715,000 1,300,800 3,015,800

2012 1,780,000 1,232,200 3,012,200

2013 1,850,000 1,161,000 3,011,000

2014 1,925,000 1,087,000 3,012,000

2015-2019 9,235,000 4,140,500 13,375,500

2020-2024 7,380,000 2,134,100 9,514,100

2025-2029 3,235,000 944,850 4,179,850

2030-2032 2,310,000 198,900 2,508,900

$ 31,075,000 13,567,315 44,642,315

TotalInterestPrincipal

Power Board Electric System Revenue Bonds, Series 2008, debt service requirements to maturity in 2033
are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2024

2025-2029

2030-2033

$ 690,000

720,000

750,000

775,000

810,000

4,555,000

5,600,000

7,075,000

7,025,000

1,277,438

1,249,838

1,221,038

1,191,038

1,160,038

5,288,187

4,243,175

2,764,187

853,575

1,967,438

1,969,838

1,971,038

1,966,038

1,970,038

9,843,187

9,843,175

9,839,187

7,878,575

$ 28,000,000 19,248,514 47,248,514
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

:F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (CoDtjn1!.~Q1

Bonds Payable (Continued):

Total annual debt service requirements to maturity for business-type activities revenue bonds are
as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2024

2025-2029

2030-2033

Current Refunding:

Principal

$ 3,725,000

3,900,000

4,070,000

4,240,000

4,420,000

17,230,000

13,160,000

10,310,000

9,335,000

$ 70,390,000

Interest
3,182,823

3,016,582

2,843,834

2,671,162

2,490,851

9,738,699

6,384,700

3,709,037

1,052,475

35,090,163

Total

6,907,823

6,916,582

6,913,834

6,911,162

6,910,85]

26,968,699

19,544,700

14,019,037

10,387,475

1 163

On March 12,2009, the City issued $67,000,000 Local Government Public Improvement Bonds, Series
V-K-l for the purpose of refunding $27,690,000 General Obligation Bonds, $29,925,000 of Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds, $9,805,000 of General Obligation Bonds used for Water and Sewer and $2,605,000 of
General Obligation Bonds used for Solid Waste. The new bonds bear interest rates from 2.5% to 5,()%.
The average rate is 4.183%. The bonds were refunded with a premium of$2,001,135 which was offset to
the deferred bond refunding. Total bond issue costs were $746,135 and were paid from bond proceeds.
The refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition prices and the net on the old debt as a
gain, due to the premium, of $211,957 in the Water and Sewer Fund, $53,179 in the Solid Waste Fund
and $438,968 which is reported in the government-wide financial statements as an increase to bonds
payable and is being added to operations from 7 to 17 years using the straight-line method, which does
not differ significantly from the effective-interest method.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Business-Type Activities (Continued):

Current Refunding (Continued):

On June 30, 2009, the City issued $46,775,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 for the
purpose of refunding $46,460,000 General Obligation Bonds E-2-A, III C-l and III C-2. The Water and
Sewer Fund had used $35,150,000 of these funds and the General fund had used $11,310,000 of the
funds. The new bonds bear interest rates from 3.0% to 5.0%. The average rate is 4.473%. The bonds
were refunded with a reoffering premium of $633,587 which was offset to the deferred bond refunding.
Total bond issue costs were $498,587 and were paid from the bond proceeds. The refunding resulted in a
difference between the reacquisition prices and the net on the old debt of $290,687 in the Water and
Sewer Fund and a gain of $177,314 which is reported in the government-wide financial statements as an
increase to bonds payable and is being added to operations over 27 years. The Water and Sewer debt
difference is being charged to operations over 31 years. The amortization of both is on the straight-line
method, which does not differ significantly from the effective-interest method.

Advanced Refunding-Prior Years:

The City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds ofthe new bonds in
an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.
On June 30, 2009, the following bonds outstanding are considered defeased:

General Obligation Public
Improvement Bonds and
Water and Sewer Revenue and
Tax Bonds

Year
Refunded

1998

90

Balance
June 30. 2009

$ 21,740,000



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY; TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

:1:". Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Capital Leases - Governmental Activities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City entered into a lease agreement for financing a
vehicle for Transportation Planning. The lease was entered into July I, 2008 with minimum lease
payments of $23,000. Based on the value of the vehicle, there is no interest associated with this
lease. Interest should have been imputed but would have been immaterial and was therefore, not
necessary. This lease is to be repaid over 72 months.

Fiscal

Year

2010

2011

2012
20]3

2014
Present Value of Minimum Payments

$

$

3,840
3,840

3,840
3,840

3,800
19,160

The City entered into a lease for an upgrade to computer equipment on January 1, 2009. The
present value of the minimum lease payments was $472,] 61 to be repaid over 48 months.
Components of the equipment have two separate interest rates. Specifically, equipment with a cost
of $320,744 of the lease is financed at 3.58% and the remaining equipment with a value of
$]51,417 is financed at 4.65%. The future minimum lease obligations as of June 30, 2009 are as
follows:

Fiscal Year

20]0

2011
2012
Total Minimum Lease Payments

Less: Interest

Present Value of Minimum Payments

91

$

$

125,478

125,478
125,478
376,434

27,144

349,290



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Dcbt (Continued):

The assets acquired through capital leases are reflected at the government-wide level. The net
book value of assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Computer Equipment

Vehicle

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total

Capital Leases - Business-Type Activities

$

$

472,161

23,000

(80,336)

41

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the City entered into two lease agreements for
financing golf carts for the two golf courses. The leases were entered into July I, 2006 for
$115,500 and $77,000, respectively. The net present value was calculated at 5.22% and the leases
are to be repaid over 60 months. The future minimum lease obligations as of June 30, 2009 are as
fol1ows:

Fiscal Year

2010

2011

Total Minimum Lease Payments

Less: Interest

Present Value of Minimum Payments

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Golf Carts

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total

9Z

$

$

$

$

43,824

43,824

87,648

4,590

83,058

192.500
(96,250)

96,250



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued):

Long-tenn liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

Governmental activities:
General Obligation Bonds

Less: Deferred Amounts

for Refunding

Total Bonds

Notes Payable-Land

Capital Outlay Note

Capital Lease

OPEB Liability and

Termination Benefits

Compensated Absences
Governmental Activity

Long-term Liabilities

Business-type activities:
Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds

Revenue Bonds
Less: Deferred Amounts

for Refunding, Premiums

and Discounts

Total Bonds Payable

Notes Payable

Capital Leases
General Obligation

OPEB Liability

Compensated Absences

Landtl11 Postclosure Cost

Business-type Activity

Long-tenn Liabilities

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance one year

$ 102,112,462 78,937,222 (73,236,841 ) 107,812,843 6,168,581

(1,003,123) (54,019) 1,567,794 51 (182,914)

101,109,339 78,883,203 (71,669,047) 108,323,495 5,985,667

241,189 (241,189)

372,000 (88,000) 284,000 91,000

495,161 (126,711) 368,450 105,453

390,848 65,494 456,342

2,266,221 1,792,598 (1,590,243) 2,468,576

$ 104,379,597 8],236,456 (73,715,190) 111,900,863

$ 66,994,395 47,255,000 (49,848,910) 64,400,485 3,246,105

73,900,000 (3,510,000) 70,390,000 3,725,000

(1,133,236) (290,690) 757,498 (666,428) (73,782)
139,761,]59 46,964,310 (52,601,412) 134,124,057 6,897,323

121,454 (38,396) 83,058 40,448
906,799 (11,762) 895,037 12,856

391,626 404,622 796,248
2,649,066 1,205,744 (924,383) 2,930,427 903,464

598,080 (37,380) 560,700 37,380

$ 144,428,184 (53,613,333) 139,389,527 7,891,471

NOTE: Interest rates on variable interest rate bonds are commensurate with local prevailing rates as
determined by the Tennessee Local Development Authority on an annual basis.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL }<'UNDS (CONTINUED):

G. Closure and Post Closure Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and to perform celtain maintenance and monitoring functions for thirty years after
closure. The Bowser Ridge Landfill closed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 and the Iris Glen
Landfill began receiving solid waste during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995, The deferred postclosure
costs recorded are for the Bowser Ridge Landfill. Since the Landfill closed during the year that
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 18, which requires the recording of these
costs, went into effect, no investments have been set aside to cover these costs, All costs will be funded
by the City government. The City of Johnson City has filed financial assurance with the State of
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation for the Bowser Ridge Landfill in the form of a
contract in lieu of performance bond in the amount of $975,884 for closure and postclosure costs, An
estimate of the required amounts was made by an environmental auditor for the future years, with
consideration given to inflation and other potential changes, A separate operation and maintenance
contract with Waste Management Systems, Inc, is in effect for the Iris Glen Landfill. The contract states
that Waste Management is responsible for the closure and postclosure costs for Iris Glen, During the year
ended June 30, 2009, the City paid Waste Management $2,174,616 for Landfill Services.

H. Segment Information

A segment is an identifiable activity (or grouping of activities) reported as or within an enterprise fund or
another stand-alone entity that has one or more bonds or other debt instruments outstanding, with a
revenue stream pledged in support of that debt. Summary financial information as of June 30, 2009, for
segments of the Golf Course Fund and Regional Solid Waste (see Note I.C. for description of services
provided) is presented below.
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CITY QF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

H. Segment Information (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS:

Cun-ent Assets

Capital Assets (Net)

Other Assets (Net)

Total Assets

Regional

Golf Solid

Course Fund Waste Fund Total

$ 112,601 1,693,251

2,688,672 1,605,182

1

2,814,916 3,298,433

LIABILITIES:

CUiTent Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

2,245,869

1,397,348

3,643,217

135,346

158,520

2,381,215

1

3,801,737

tlE:LA.S.S.5.IS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of

Related Debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

1,060,614 1,605,182 2,665,796

(1,888,915) 1,534,731 (354,184)

$ (828,301) 3,139,913 11 2
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Regional

Golf Solid

Couse Fund Waste Fund Total

5> 1,025,70] 2,3 ]3,041 3,338,742

3,624 3,624

(113,809) (206,534) (320,343)

(1,]02,561) (1,664,926) (2,767,487)

(187,045) 441,581 254,536

20,562 20,562

(] 12,221) (112,22])

(1,949) (1,949)

CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

H. Segment Information (continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Charges for Services (Net)

Other Revenue

Depreciation and Amortization

Other Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Investment Income

Interest Expense and Commissions

Amortization

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets

Operating Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Begilming Net Assets

Ending Net Assets =$,,==~================== =============

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Regional

Golf Solid

Course Fund Waste Fund Total

Net Cash Provided by (Used for):

Operating Activities $ 48,006 654,61 ] 702,617

Noncapital Financing Activities 401,2] 5 (135,980) 265,235

Capital and Related Financing Activities (433,093) (1,232,222) (1,665,3] 5)

Investing Activities 4,348

Net Increase (Decrease) (86) (693,029) (693,] ]5)

Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,170 2,339,888 2,341,058

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,084 ],646,859 1,647,943
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION:

A. Risk Management

The City carries insurance coverage through the Tennessee Municipal League (TML) Risk Management
Pool for general liability, automobile coverage, and errors and omission coverage. The City also carries
auto physical damage coverage with the TML Risk Management Pool. There was no reduction in
insurance coverage from the prior year and the City has not had any settlements in the last three years
vlhich were not covered by insurance. The City pa11icipates in a self-insured retention plan through TML
for the liability program. All other insurance programs written through TML are provided through
conventional insurance coverage. Although TML is a risk management pool and the policy contains an
assessment clause, no assessment has been levied during the time the City has participated in this
program. With the TML coverage, the City has an annual aggregate limit of $600,000 for liability
retention plan. As of June 30,2009, the general liability program had $594,218 in claims incurred during
the fiscal year for the City, but not yet settled. These amounts are not recorded in the financial statements
until settlement is made. For the July 1,2008 to July 1,2009 policy period, the City received a dividend
of $63,256 from TML.

The City carried workers' compensation coverage through the Tennessee Municipal League (TML) Risk
Management Pool prior to October 15,2002, with an aggregate limit for the period of 7/1 /02-1 0/15/02 of
$600,000. After October 15, 2002, the City provided workers' compensation coverage through a self­
funded plan. The City carries stop-loss insurance with an individual specific amount of $500,000 and an
aggregate limit of 80% of expected claims. The total paid out for workers' compensation during 2008­
2009 was $881,089 for the City and $289,019 for the Schools. These totals include payments for claims
from injuries incurred in previous years. A reconciliation of claims for the years ended June 30, 2009 and
2008 are as follows:

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 Variance

City Schools Total

Claims lncUiTed $ 540,0]5 ]22,001 662,0]6 468,978 ]93,038

Claims Paid 280,425 61,733 342,158 236,872 105,286
Claims Ending $ 259,590 60,268 319,858 232,106 87,752

The above represent current year liabilities and are reflected in the Internal Service Funds. Prior year
amounts have been reflected as a liability in the Internal Service Funds for a total liability of $1,890,000.

In addition to the above insurance, the City provides medical insurance to employees as well as post
employment health care benefits through a partially self.-funded health insurance plan. PaJ1icipants in the
plan pay premiums as determined by the City to offset a portion of the eost of the plan. The City carries
stop-loss insurance with an individual specific limit of $150,000 and an aggregate limit of ]20% of
expected claims. A reconciliation of claims for the year ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
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NOTES TO THl<~ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

A. Risk Management (continued):

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 Variance
City Schools Total

Claims Accrued, Begirming $ 493,256 455,741 948,997 1,034,771 (85,774)
Claims Incurred 6,929,862 7,971,613 14,901,475 12,762,490 2,138,985
Claims Paid 6,918,028 8,000,294 14,918,322 12,848,264 2,070,058

Claims Accrued, Ending $ 505,090 427,060 932,150 948,997

The above liabilities are reflected in the Internal Service Funds.

There are additional estimated losses for both automobile and general incidents that have been reflected
as Iiabilities in the Internal Service Funds in the amount of $864,000.

The Power Board is self-insured for certain perils. The self-insurance program is not accounted for in a
separate fund.

Since July 1, 1986, the Power Board has been self-insured for the general liability, comprehensive general
automobile liability, fire and casualty, and errors and omissions coverage. There have been two claims in
the amount of $179,750 paid from the fund, which was originally established at $1,000,000 and has
accumulated to $2,080,664 at June 30, 2009. The Power Board has workman's compensation and
employee group health insurance with outside companies.

B. Prior Period Ad.iustments

Prior Period Adjustment - General Fund (Police Technology)

Prior Period Adjustment - Capital Projects-Equipment (Police Technology)

Prior Period Adjustment Police Technology Fund

$ (242,00Q)

$ (639.4002

A prior period adjustment was recorded between the General Fund, the Capital Projects ­
Equipment Fund, and the Police Technology Fund. The adjustment is a reclassification of fund
balances between governmental funds.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

C. Contingencies

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable,in the opinion of the City's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.

The City has entered into several construction contracts in the various funds, which were not
completed at year end. The larger of these are for road eonstruetion, water and sewer lines, pmver
lines and schools. These amounts will be paid with bonded debt.

The City entered a lease agreement with the Johnson City Public Building Authority (PBA), an
enterprise fund of the City, on December 15, 1997 to lease a facility known as the Continuing
Education Center. The lease expires in 2023 in connection with the final payments on the PBA's
bond issues. The annual rent due is the amount necessary to pay the maturing principal and interest
due on the bond issues and any other expense or debt of the PBA that remains unpaid during the
fiscal year. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City paid $1,337,961 to the PBA to lease the
Continuing Education Center.

D. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a defelTed compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The plan assets are in custodial accounts and are not subject to the claims of the City's
general creditors and are not reflected in funds of the City.

E. Termination Benefits

The City has an involuntary termination plan in accordance with the City Manager's contract. 'rhe
estimated liability uncleI' the contract is $100,634 at June 30, 2009 and is recorded in the
government-wide financial statements.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

F. Post-employment health care benefits

Plan Description:

In ]984 the City Commission passed a resolution which offers post-employment health care benefits to all
employees who retire from the Cit)' after 20 years service until their 65th birthday. The quarterly charge
for employees is $354 for individual and $909 for family. There are 77 City employees covered by this
arrangement. Employees who attain age 65 and retire after 40 years of service are provided health care
benefits at no cost for life. At present, two City employees meet the eligibility requirements. The co­
insurance rate of reimbursement depends on the plan the employee is covered by. The Preferred Netvvork
has a $550 deductible with an 80% co-insurance rate. The Select Netvvork has a $475 deductible and a
90% co-insurance rate. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, contributions rcceived from active
employees was $1,357,059 and contributions received from retirees were $2] 8,668.

Johnson City Schools:

The Johnson City Schools have two arrangements for post-employment health care benefits. If the school
employee retires with full benefits (30 years or age 60), has 1°years of service with the Johnson City
Schools and has carried insurance for the past 5 consecutive years, then the quarterly charge is $0 for
individual and $292 for family. Ifthe school employee does not retire with full benefits but has 20 years
of service with the Johnson City Schools and has carried insurance for the past 5 consecutive years, then
the quarterly charge is $333 for individual and $856 for family. There are approximately 1]4 school
employees participating in the post-employment health care benefit arrangements. The co-insurance rate
of reimbursement depends on the plan the employee is covered by. The Preferred Network has a $350
deductible with an 80% co-insurance rate. The Select Network has a $275 deductible and a 90% co­
insurance rate. During the year ended June 30, 2009, premiums of $9]5,949 were collected from active
employees and $70,605 was collected from retirees.

Funding Policy:

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of Johnson City and Johnson City Schools
are based on pay-as-you go financing requirements.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

5. OTHER INFORlVIATION (CONTINUED):

F. Post-employment health care benefits (continued)

AnnualOPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The City's other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuariaJly determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (of
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years, The following table shows the components of
the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the
City's OPEB obligation,

FYE
6/30/2009

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
I. Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
2. Interest on net OPEB Obligation
3. Adjustment to ARC
4, Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) (1+2'+3)
5. Contribution made (assumed end ofyear)*
6. Increase in net OPEB Obligation (4 - 5)
7. Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year
8. Net OPEB Obligation - end of year (6 + 7)

*Contributiol1 made was assumed to equal Expected Benefit Payments

$ 944,032
13.861

T'he annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal year 2009 is as foJlmvs:

Fiscal Percentage Net

Year A.nl1ual Annual OPEB OPEB

Ending OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation

6/30/2008 $ 702,818 58.5% $ 291,808

6/30/2009 $ 948,053 93.0% $ 355,708
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

F. Post-employment health care benefits (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

As of July J, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan "vas not funded. Thc actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $17,664,283. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $29,043,557, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (LJAAL) to
the covered payroll was 61 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of rcported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts detennined
rcgarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The following methods and
assumptions were used.

In the July 1, 2008 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.75 percent investment rate of return which is equivalent to the expected return
on the general assets for the City and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10 percent initially in 2008,
reduced by decrements of one-half a percent to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent in 2019. There is a 30 year
closed amortization of the UAAL increasing at 5.0% a year (the payroll growth rate).
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

F. Post-employment health care benefits (continued)

Johnson City PowerBQ~

Plan Description:

a. Plan Types:

b. Eligibility:

c. Benefit/Cost Sharing:

d. Spouse Benefit:

Presently employees have the choice of two insurance plans (a co-pay plan
and a deductible plan). The deductible plan is the primary plan for JCPB. At
age 65 each retiree covered will move to Medicare coverage Part A and B.

30 years of service or age 60 with 5 years of service.

80% paid by the Board

Spouse pays 100% of the medical premium.

e. Surviving 5pouse Benefit: No

f Annual Medical Premium: Pre-65 Retiree
Pre-65 Retiree plus Spouse
Medicare Eligible Single

$3,733
$7,833
$2,094

g. Medicare Part B

h. Life

Funding Policy:

The Board reimburses the retiree for payment of the Medicare Part B
premium: $1,122 for 2008.

On retirement, each retiree received a paid up life insurance policy.

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Johnson City Power Board are based on pay-as­
you go financing requirements.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The Power Board's other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is ealculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(of funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table show's the components
of the Power Board's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the Power Board's OPEB obligation.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

F. Post-employment health care benefits (continued)

Johnson City Power Bogrd:

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued):

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
I. Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
2. Interest on net OPEB Obligation
3. Adjustment to ARC
4. Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) (1 +2+3)
5. Contribution made (assumed end ofyear)*
6. Increase in net OPEB Obligation (4·5)
7. Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year
8. Net OPEB Obligation. end of year (6 + 7)

*Contributiot1 made was assumed to equal Expected Benefit Payments

7/01/2008-
6/30/2009

$ 724,497
16,644
1

724,217
319,595
404,622

391,626
$ 796,248

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal years 2008 and 2009 are as follows:

Fiscal

Year

6/30/2008

6/30/2009

Percentage Net

Annual AnnualOPEB OPEB

OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation

$ 690,315 43.3% $ 391,626

$ 724,217 44.1% $ 796,248

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

As of July 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $8,294,562.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

104



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

F. Post-employment health care benefits (continued)

Actuarial A;Jethods and Assumptions:

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-tenn perspective of the calculations. The following the methods and
assumptions were used.

Funding Interest Rate

2007 Medical Trend Rate

Ultimate Trend Rate

Year Ulimate Trend Rate Reached

Actuarial Cost Method

Remaining Amortization Period at June 30, 2009

G. Pension Plan

City ofJohnson City:

Plan Description

4.50%
10.00%

5.00%

2012

Entry Age Normal

28 years

Employees of the City are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are
determined by a formula using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service. Members
become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service.
A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are
available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury
occurring while the member was in the perfonnance of duty. Members joining the system after July 1,
1979 become vested after five years of se.rvice and members joining prior to July I, 1979 were vested
after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34­
37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the City participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are
liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit improvements
are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief goveming body.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

G. Pension Plan (continued)

<::;ITY OF JOHNSON CITY (CONTINUED1.

The 'rCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP, That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury
Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN
37243-0230 or can be accessed at h11n://tI~asury.state.tn.us/t<::I$.IPS/.

Funding Policy

The City has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its employees by assuming employee
contributions up to 5,0% of annual covered payroll.

'l'he City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2009 was 18.35% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set by
state statute. The contribution requirement for the City is established and may be amended by the TCRS
Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2009, the City's annual pension cost of $7, 191 ,211 to TCRS was equal to the
City's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the July I,
2007 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of retum on investment of present and future assets of
7.5 percent a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent (graded) annual
rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation on
salaries), (c) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (d) projected post
retirement increases of 3.0 percent annually. The achlarial value of assets was detemlined using
techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of total investments over a
five-year period. The City's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar
amount on a closed basis, 'I'he remaining amortization period at July 1, 2007 was 8 years. An actuarial
valuation was performed as of July 1, 2007, which established contribution rates effective July 1,2008.

Annual Pension
Cost (APC)

Fiscal Year
Ending

Trend Information
Percentage

ofAPC
Contributed

Net Pension
Obligation

June 30, 2009
June 30, 2008
June 30,2007

$ 7,191,211
6,769,990
6,254,779
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

G. Pension Plan (continued)

City ofJohnson Citv (Continued):

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 81,68 percent funded. T'he
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $146.99 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $120.06
million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $26,93 million, The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $34.87 million, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 77.23 percent The schedules of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the financial statements, present
Inu Itiyear trend infon11ation about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the AALs for benefits, The annual required contribution (ARC) was calculated using
the aggregate actuarial cost method, Since the aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or
separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities, information about funded status and funding progress
has been prepared using the entry age actuarial cost method for that purpose, and this information is
intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.

(Dollar amounts in tJlousands)
(a)

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

July 1,2007

Actuarial

Value of

Assets

$ 120,065

(b)

(AAL)

Actuarial

Accrued

$ 146,993

(b)--(a)

(UAAL)

Unfunded

AAL

$ 26,928

(alb) (c) ((b-a)!c)

UAAL as a ~'O

Funded Covered of Covered

Ratio Payroll Payroll

81.68% $ 34,866 77.23%

Johnson City Schools:

Plan Description

The Johnson City Schools contribute to the State Employees, Teachers, and Iligher Education Employees
Pension Plan (SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS), TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as
death and disability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries, Benefits are determined by a
fOn1lUla using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service, Members become eligible
to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced
retirement benefit is available to vested members who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of
service. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service who become
disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. 'rhere is no service requirement for disability that is
the result of an accident or injury occLln'ing while the member was in the performance of duty. Members
joining the plan on or after July 1, 1979 are vested after five years of service.
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5. OTHER INFORlVIATION (CONTINUED):

G. Pension Plan (continued)

Johnson City Schools (Continuef!L

Members joining prior to July I, 1979 are vested after four years of service, Compounded cost of living
adjustments (COLA) are provided each July based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
(Cpr) during the previous calendar year except that (a) no COLA is granted if the CPI increases less than
one-half percent; (b) a COLA of I percent will be granted if the CPI increases between one-half percent
and one percent; (c) the maximum annual COLA is capped at three percent Benefit provisions are
established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated ('rCA).
State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Ad hoc increases may only be authorizcd
by the General Assembly.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the SETHEEPP, That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Depaltment, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville,
TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed atv;rww.trea§ury.state.tn,us.

Funding Policy

All teachers arc required by state statute to contribute 5.0% of salary to the plan. The employer
contribution rate for the Johnson City Schools is established at an actuarially determined rate, The
employer rate for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 was 6.42% of annual covered payroll. 'rhe
employer contribution requirement for the Johnson City Schools is established and may be amended by
the TCRS Board of Trustees. The employer's contributions to TCRS for the years ending June 30,2009,
2008, and 2007 were $3,341,786, $3,128,468, and $2,883,947, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

Johnson Cit)! Pmver Board:

Plan Description

Employees of the Power Board are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement
System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are
determined by a fommla using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service. Members
become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service.
A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are
available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury
occurring while the member was in the performance of duty, Members joining the system after July 1,
1979 become vested after five years of service and members joining prior to July 1, 1979 were vested
after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

G. Pension Plan (continued)

Johnson City Power Board (Continued):

34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the Power Board pmiicipate in the TCRS as individual entities
and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit
improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP. 'That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury
Depmtment, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN
37243-0230 or can be accessed at http://treasury,state.tn.us/tcrs/PS/ .

Funding Polh.y

The Power Board requires employees to contribute 5.0 percent of earnable compensation.

The Power Board is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2009 was 14.00% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan
members is set by state statute. The contribution requirement for the Povver Board is established and may
be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2009, the Power Board's annual pension cost of $1,334,487 to TCRS was
equal to the Power Board's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined
as pm't of the July 1, 2007 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present
and future assets of 7.5 percent a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75
percent (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the
effects of inflation on salaries), (c) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base,
and (d) projected post retirement increases of 3.0 percent annually, The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effect of shOIi-term volatility in the market valuc of total
investments over a five-year period. The Power Board's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2007
was 8 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1,2007, which established contribution rates
effective July 1, 2008.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

G. Pension Plan (continued)

JOHNSON CITY POWER BOARD (CONTINUED):

Trend Information

Fiscal Year

Ending

June 30, 2009

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2007

Annual Pension

Cost (APC)

$ 1,334,487

1,292,419

1,235,076

Percentage

of APC

Contributed

100%

100%

100%

Net Pension

Obligation

$

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 78.83 percent funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $35.45 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $27.95
million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $7.50 million. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $8 million, and the ratio of the
LJAAL to the covered payroll was 88.99 percent. The schedules of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the financial statements, present
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the AALs for benefits. The annual required contribution (ARC) was calculated using
the aggregate actuarial cost method. Since the aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or
separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities, information about funded status and funding progress
has been prepared using the entry age actuarial cost method for that purpose, and this information is
intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

(a) (b) (b)-(a) (alb) (c) «b-a)/c)
(AAL)

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial (UAAL) UAAL as a %
Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets Liability AAL Ratio Payroll
July 1,2007 27,950 $ 35,454 $ 7,504 78.83% $ 8,432 88.99%
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

H. Joint Ventures

The Washington County Johnson City Animal Control Center (ACC) is an animal shelter jointly owned
by Johnson City and Washine,rton County, Tennessee. Johnson City has control over budget and financing
of the joint venture only to the extent of representation by the board members appointed and is
responsible for funding 50% of any deficits from operations. Johnson City contributed $158,000 to the
operations during the year ended June 30,2009.

The Washington County - Johnson City EMS, Inc. (EMS) receives revenue from Washington County and
Johnson City, as well as patient billings. Johnson City contributed $583,495 to the operations during the
year ended June 30, 2009.

Johnson City is responsible for funding at least 30% of operations of the Johnson
City/Jonesborough/Washington County Economic Development Board, Inc. (EDB). Johnson City
contributed $139,244 and the Johnson City Power Board contributed $76,965 to the operations during the
year ended June 30,2009.

The Tri-Cities Airport (TCA) is jointly administered by Cities of Johnson City and Bristol, Tennessee,
Bristol, Virginia and Washington and Sullivan Counties, Tennessee. The City of Johnson City
contributed 20 percent of the start-up costs of the Airport in 1943 and has made no further contributions.
The City is represented by three of the twelve commissioners. A scparate enterprise fund is maintained
for the Airport and the administrators do not record any balances for the Airport.

The Johnson City Athletic Club (JCAC) receives revenue from the City of Johnson City, the Johnson City
Housing Authority (JCHA), interest income and private donations. Both the City and JCllA have agreed
to donate $45,000 annually to the Club for its operations. The City has advisory authority with regard to
operations including recommendations of annual and capital budgets of the joint venture only to the
extent of representation by the board members appointed. The Club is responsible for its debt and is
entitled to surpluses. The City of Johnson City contributed $37,950 for operations during the year ended
June 30, 2009.

The Tri-County Industrial Park is ajoint venture between the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, the City of
Bristol, Tennessee and Sullivan County, Tennessee. The purpose is to promote regional economic
development in the quad-city area. The joint venture owns vacant parcels of land used for industrial and
economic development. The City of Johnson City holds a 25% interest in the proceeds from all sales of
vacant lots. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City received $6,476 from vacant lot sales.
Financial statements are not prepared for the Tri-County Industrial Park.
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5. OTHER INFORMAIION (CONTINUED):

H. Joint Ventures (continued)

Completed financial statements for each of the individual joint ventures (excluding the Tri-County
Industrial Park) may be obtained at the administrative offices of:

Animal Control Center
525 Sells Avenue
Johnson City, TN 37601

Emergency Medical Services
296 Wesley Street
Johnson City, TN 37601

Tri-Cities Airport Commission
P.O. Box 1055
Blountville, TN 37617

Economic Development Board
603 East Market Street
Johnson City, TN 37601

Johnson City Athletic Club
P.O. Box 59
Johnson City, T'N 37605

Audited information as of June 30, 2009 is presented below for the following organizations except for the
JCAC. The JCAC year end presented is September 30, 2008. The information does not include the Tri­
County Industrial Park. All are presented on the accrual basis.

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Depreciation

AmOltization

Other Income (Expense)

Capital Contributions

Net Income (Loss) Transferred

to Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning

Net Assets, Ending

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Total Net Assets

ACC EMS EDB TCA JCAC

$ 95,912 6,876,706 388,343 5,818,444 45,026

(496,607) (8,310,651 ) (402,491 ) (5,431,972) (78,181)

(2,855,601) (940)

(13,501)

371,359 1,865,257 25,972 781,318 3,413

7,485,388

(29,336) 431,312 11,824 5,784,076 (30,682)

364,115 3,073,972 898,760 50,165,338 143,367

$334,779 3,505,284 910,584 55,949,414 112,685

$373,616 6,152,651 964,084 65,325,593 114,904

38,837 2,647,367 53,500 9,376,179 2,219

$ 334,779 3,505,284 910,584 55,949,414 112,685

112



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:

A. Johnson City Public Library

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The Johnson City Public Library (the "Library") receives support from the City of Johnson City,
Tennessee and from Washington County, Tennessee. The Library is operated by the Library Board and
was incorporated in September 1989. The Library is a non-profit organization under IRC Section 501 (c)
(3), but operates as a component unit of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee. As a component unit of a
municipality, the Library uses governmental fund accounting and does not follow Financial Accounting
Standards Statements No. 116 and 117.

a. ,Government->l'ide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (I.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on all the nonfiduciUly activities of the Johnson City Public
Library. Governmental activities, which norn1ally are supported by intergovernmental
revenues and taxes, are reported separately. The Library has no business-type activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include I) charges to customers, who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function. Other items which do not meet this definition
are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental f\.mds. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

b. Measurement Focus. Basis o{Accounting, and Financial Statement Prese[1tatLQI1

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded whcn earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related
cash flows, Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COl\1PONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Governmental fund financial statements are report.ed using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the Library considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

Interest and reimbursements associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the Library.

The government reports the following major governmental fund:

The generaljzmd is the Library's primary operating fund. It accounts for
all financial resources of the general government, except for those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Library's policy
to use unrestricted resources first, and then restricted resources as they are needed.

c. Cash and Investments

Cash includes deposits with financial institutions in checking accounts and petty cash. Cash
is repOlied at carrying value, which reasonably estimates fair value. Investments are recorded
at market value in accordance with GASB Statement No.3 1.
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

d. ~~{JJ2jtal Assets

Capital Assets, which include the book collection, equipment, and furniture, are reported in the
governmental column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the Library as equipment and furniture with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year and additions to the book collection. The
book collection has been viewed as one item. The Library only capitalizes fiction and non­
fiction works. Audio visual items and periodicals do not have long useful lives and are not
capitalized. The book collection of the Johnson City Public Library is part of the infrastructure
of the organization. The initial value of the complement of books was $1,13 8,049.
Subsequently, additions and replacements vvill be expensed unless those additions and
replacements exceed a significant percentage of the initial complement (amounts over
$100,000).

Equipment and furniture are recorded at historical cost. Donated equipment and fumiture
items are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The book collection
value, prior to implementation of GASB 34 in 2002, has been estimated by an average cost per
book based upon 2002 expenditures. New additions to the collection amount have been
recorded based upon actual costs.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Equipment and furniture are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Computers
Equipment
Furniture

3-5 years
5 years
7 years

The book collection has not been depreciated. Books are viewed as inexhaustible assets that
should not be depreciated. The collection has an economic benefit or service potential that
provides for extraordinarily long lives. Efforts are usually made to preserve and protect these
assets in a manner greater than that for similar assets without such cultural, aesthetic, or
historical value.

The building of the Library is an asset of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee and is not owned
by the Johnson City Public Library.
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

e. Accumulated Unpgid VacatiQ!1JJ!1d..!iick...fJJJ.

General policy ofthe Library does not a]]ow employees to accumulate vacation days in excess
of a normal year's accumulation. The amount of liability for accrued vacation pay was
determined by computing the total number of hours earned as of June 30, 2009 at the current
rate of pay. Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of 3.693 hours per pay period or 96 hours per
year.

In the fund financial statements, govemmental funds report reservations of fund balance.
Fund balance is further classified into reserved and unreserved. Reservations of fund balance
consist of amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the Library. All
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Any budget amendments require board
approval. The budget was amended during the 2009 fiscal year for the General Fund.

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
certain estimates and assumptions that directly affect the results of reported assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenditures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Library has various deposits at banks and a certificate of deposit at June 30,2009. All deposits are
insured by FDIC insurance. Amounts in excess of FDIC insurance are secured by the financial
institution through the State Collateral Pool. Various restrictions on deposits and investments,
including repurchase agreements, are imposed by state statutes. These restrictions are summarized as
follows:

DEPOSITS All deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized 111 an amount equal to
105% ofthe market value of uninsured deposits.
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

2. peposits and Investments (Continued):

INVESTMENTS - State statutes authorize the Library to invest in treasury bonds, notes or bills of the
United States; nonconvertible debt securities of the Federal Home Loan Bank, The Federal National
Mortgage Association, The Federal Farm Credit Bank and the State Loan Marketing Association;
other obligations not listed above which are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United
States or any of its agencies; Certificates of Deposit and other evidences of deposit at State and
Federal chartered banks and Savings and Loan Associations; obligations of the United States or its
agencies under a repurchase agreement and money market funds whose portfolios consist of any of
the foregoing investments if approved by the State Director of Local Finance and made in accordance
with procedures established by the State Funding Board; The State of Tennessee Local Government
Investment Pool; obligations of the Public Housing Authority and bonds of the Tennessee Valley
Authority.

The Library does not have a policy for interest rate risk or for other credit risk other than pledging
securities for amounts in excess of the FDIC coverage.

The Library had $500 cash on hand and the following balances in the bank at June 30, 2009:

Cash in Bank

Certificate of Deposit
Total
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Per Bank
$ 103,629

155,254
$ 258,883

Per Books

82,403

155,254
237,657
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

3. Capital Assets

Beginning Ending

Balance Increase Decrease Adjustments Balance

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Book Collection $1,138,049 1.138.049

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Equipment 125,650 38,266 (29,210) 35,566 170,272

Furniture 515,013 (35,566) 479,447

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 640,663 38,266 (29,210) 0 649,719

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Equipment (42,387) (26,263) 18,194 (26,078) (76,534)

Furniture (504,267) (795) 26,078 (478,984)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (546,654) (27,058) 18,194 0 (555,518)

Total Capital Assets,

Being Depreciated, Net 94,009 11,208 0 94,201

Governmental Activities,

Capital Assets, Net $1,232,058 11,208 0 1,232,250

Depreciation expense of $27,058 was charged to the general government function in the statement of
activities.
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY !>RESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

4. Budgetary Infonnation:

Certain categories within the General Fund were over budget for the year. A list of the categories and
the amount overspent based upon the budget is as follows:

Salaries
Social Security
Utilities
Youth Services Programs
Equipment Replacement
Security

$ 990
32

600
58

5,565
225

The Library has an Employee Custodial Fund in accordance with the amended Section 457B of the
Internal Revenue Code. The funds are owned by the employees of the Library and cannot be used to
satisfy any claims of the creditors of the Library.

-rhe Library also has a 403B plan in which employees may pa.rticipate through payroll deductions. The
Library made matching contributions to the plan totaling $23,310 for the fiscal year ending June 30,2009.

6. Risk Management Activities:

The Library carries insurance coverage for worker's compensation, general liability and contents, and
coverage for officers and directors. There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the
coverage provided. '1'here have been no claims in the current year or in the previous three years which
were not covered by insurance.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, a Community Enhancement grant totaling $7,500 was
awarded for implementation of a Job Center and $2,640 was received on the Harris fund grant for the
Friendly Visitor Program.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUIW):

A. Johnson City Public Library (continued)

8. Commitments:

In August 2004, the Library entered into an operating lease for the lease of a phone system. The lease has
an initial term of 60 months with a monthly rental payment of $740. Total rent paid during fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009 was $9,620. In November 2006, the Library entered into a lease for a Toshiba
copier. This lease has a term of 60 months with payments of $491 per month. The total amount paid
during fiscal year ended June 30,2009 was $5,893. The following is a schedule of future rental payments
as identified in the lease agreement:

2010
2011

The Library has a significant dependence on two other entities. Those entities and their related pOl1ion of
revenue in the General Fund are as follows:

City of Johnson City, Tennessee
Washington County, Tennessee

85%
6%

Compensated absences are earned based on position and years of service up to 20 working days per year.
Up to 8 days per year may be can'ied over from the end of the calendar year to the end of the fiscal year.
CaIl)'over amounts are also allowed based on position and years of service and the carryover amount is
forfeited after the end of the next fiscal year. The balance at June 30, 2009 was $26,326.

B. Johnson City Development Authority

1. Summ£JY,9f Significant AccountingJ:olicies:

Nature of Operations - Johnson Cit)' Development Authority and Affiliate (the "Authority") is a
component unit of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee. The Authority's purpose is to facilitate business
development within the City. The Authority was established by the Johnson City Commission and
became operative in February 1990.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES Ol<~ THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Significant Policies - The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In the government-wide
nnancial statements, governments are required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do
not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The significant accounting principles and
policies utilized by the Authority are described below.

Government-Wide Statements - The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
present financial information about the Authority's organizational activities. These
statements include the financial activities of the organization in its entirety. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal transactions. Governmental
activities generally consist of programs funded by grants from state and local governments.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenue for each function of the Authority's organizational activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with and are clearly identifiable to a pmiicu lar function.
Program revenue includes (a) an annual operating appropriation from the City; (b) charges
and fees for Authority-organized events; and (c) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenue that is not
classified as program revenue, including interest income, is presented as general revenue.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund statements provide information about the Authority's
funds. A separate statement for governmental fund types is presented. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column.

'T'he Authority reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the Authority's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
activity that is not required to be accounted for in the special revenue fi.ll1d. All general
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to a special revenue fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures and capital improvement costs not
paid through other funds are paid from the general fund.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. 'NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

a, Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for activities associated with various grant
programs funded by grants from the City and the State of Tennessee that focus on improving
the appearance of business areas in the City,

'There are no non-major governmental funds,

b, Measurement Focus and Basis oillccountiJ1g

The government-wide and fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when
the related cash transaction takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority
gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include
grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from grants and donations is recognized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Interest eamings
on temporary investments are recognized in the fiscal period earned.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenue is recognized when measurable and available. "Measurable" means that
amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, For this
purpose, the Authority considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period, Expenditures are recorded when the related funcl
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

The unreserved portions of fund balances reflected for the governmental funds are available
for use within the specific purposes of those funds,
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain repOlied amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Capital assets are reported at actual cost. Donated assets are reported at estimated fair market
value at the time received. Capital assets are recorded in the government-wide financial
statements, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

The Authority's capitalization threshold (the dollar value above which asset acquisitions are
added to the capital asset accounts) for purchases of property and equipment is $500. The
Authority depreciates property and equipment over five years using the straight-line
depreciation method.

f Federal, State. and Local Agencv Grant Fund'i

Program funds authorized under federal, state, ancl local agency grants are requisitioned from
such agencies primarily for reimbursement of aIlmvable costs incurred up to amounts
contracted for under each grant. These funds are accounted for at the time allowable costs are
incurred. The grant periods for individual grants do not necessarily coincide with the fiscal
year of the Authority. Since the Authority receives funds on a cost-reimbursement basis, a
receivable (due from grantor agencies) may exist at the Authority's balances sheet date.

g. Annual Leave

Annual leave is expensed during the period it is earned. The Authority's policies allow
employees to accrue leave time and carry it over into future program years. The liability for
annual leave recognized in the statement of net assets represents accrued annual leave for all
of the Authority's employees at June 30,2009.

h. hlcome Taxes

The Authority is a component unit of a local government, and as such, is exempt from federal
and state income taxes.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COIVfPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued);.

As a component unit of a local government, the Authority is required to provide a budgetary
comparison as required supplementary information with its annual financial statements.

2. Cash;

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's bank deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

The Authority's bank deposits are maintained in banks participating in the Tennessee Collateral Pool
for Public Deposits and are, consequently, fully insured.

Cash at June 30, 2009, consisted of the following:

Cash Deposited in Financial Institutions $

Bank
Balance

49,920 $

Canying
Value

49,533

At June 30, 2009, the Authority had applied for and was due reimbursement from the State of
Tennessee in the amount of $20,000 for expenditures incun-ed in connection with a Main Street
Innovation Grant.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY I>RESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

4. TIF Receivable:

The Authority is responsible for administering the City's tax increment financing program for
rehabilitation distressed business zones within the City. Under this program, the Authority collects the tax
increment, the difference between property taxes collected on higher assessed values on new or
rehabilitated real estate improvements and the prior assessed value of the real estate when it was
unimproved or a blighted propel1y. At June 30,2009, the Authority was owed $21,000 by the City which
represents $1,600 for the 2007 'fIF increment and $19,400 for the 2008 TIF increment. See note 7 - prior
period adjustment for infon11ation concerning excess accrual of the TIF receivable in the prior year's
financial statements. No revenue or receivable related to TIF has been recorded in the Authority's
governmental funds financial statements since none of the TIF monies due from the City were received
within sixty days subsequent to year end.

5. Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2009, consisted of:

Beginning
Balance

Governmental Activities:
Increase Decrease

Ending
Balance

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Office Equipment and Furniture

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Office Equipment and Furniture

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities,
Capital Assets, Net

$

$

$

125

12,721

12,721

546

546

12,72\

0 0 12,72 \

(273) (12,448)

(273) 0 (12,448)

(273) 0 273

0 273



5=ITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

6. Accrued Compensated Absences:

The Authority provides employees with two weeks of paid vacation per year. Unused vacation can be
carried over to the following year. A liability for accrued compensated absences is presented on the
Authority's statement of net assets.

The Authority provides employees with eight days of sick leave per year. Employees are not eligible to
be compensated for the unused portion of sick leave and are unable to carryover unused sick days to the
following year.

7. Net Assets:

The Authority's net assets at June 30, 2009, consisted of:

Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted by enabling legislation:

TIP revenues
Restricted by external contributors:

Fayade grant revenues
Unrestricted

$ 273

21,000

49,124
I
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6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

8. Grants:

The Authority applies for and receives grant funds for various projects targeted at improving the
commercial areas of the City. Grant revenues recognized by the Authority during the year were:

Grantor

State of Tennessee
State of Tennessee
State 0 I' Tennessee
City ofJohnson City
Other Sources

Total grant revenue recognized

Grant

Three Star Priority Grant
Main Street Energy Efficient Lights
Main Street Innovation Grant
Fayade Grant

Statement of
Activities

$
19,757
39,445
20,000

Statement of

Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in

2,500
19,757
39.445
20,000

2,237

Recorded in financial statements
TIF revenue
Contributions

$ 102.339 83.939
(19,400)

(1,500)

$ 81,439

The Three Star Priority Grant was recorded as revenue and a grant receivable in the Authority's prior year
government-wide financial statements. However, the grant monies were not received within sixty days
following June 30, 2008, so this grant was not recognized in the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2008. The monies were received in the current fiscal year and were recognized as revenue in the
governmental funds financial statements when received.

All other grant revenues and receivables, if applicable, were recognized in the current fiscal year since
any grant receivable due the Authority had been received within sixty days following June 30,2009.

9.

The Authority maintains a SIMPLE plan for employees who elect to participate. The plan allows
participating employees to contribute pre-tax monies from their salaries and requires an annual matching
contribution by the Authority of up to 3% of the employee's salary based on their contribution rate. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Authority recorded $2,321 of matching contributions as an
expense.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

6. NOTES OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City l>evelopment Authority (Continued)

]O. Leases:

Operating leases - The Authority leases office space from an entity that is owned by two board members.
The lease is a one year lease which "viII end within the Authority's 20 I 0 fiscal year. Monthly rent on the
Authority's office space is $825 per month. A security deposit of $825 was paid to the lessor prior to the
Authority occupying the property. The Authority also leases office equipment utilizing either operating
or capital leases.

The minimum lease payments under operating leases for which the Authority is obligated are as follows:

Year Amount
2010 $ 12,120
2011 2,010
2012 1,430

Total $ 15,560

Capital Lease - There was one insignificant capital lease entered into in a prior year that the Authority has
treated as an operating lease for financial reporting purposes.

II. Prior Period Adjustment:

The Authority recorded $25,127 of revenue, net of an allowance for uncollectables, and a related
receivable for 'I'll" increment monies due from the City for the 2007 property tax year during the year
ended June 30, 2008. It was subsequently determined that the TIF increment due from the City for the
2007 property tax year was $1,600. The prior period adjustment presented in the combined statement of
activities represents the difference between the amount recorded in the Authority's financial statements
for the year ended June 30,2008, and the actual amount due from the City for that period.

12. Related Party-Imnsact!Q!l.§;

The Authority receives an annual operating appropriation from the City which is used to fund the
Authority's basic operations. The amount of the annual appropriation for the year ended June 30, 2009,
was $184,191. This represented 61% of revenues recognized in the government-wide financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2009, and 65% of the revenue recorded in the governmental fund
financial statements.

Additionally, far;;ade grant and TIF revenues recognized in the Authority's financial statements
represented 19% and 14%, respectively of the govemment-wide and governmental fund revenues for the
year. When all sources of City-related revenue are combined, the City accounted for 80% of the
government-wide and 79% of the govemmental fund revenue for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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6. NOTES OF' THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COJVIPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED):

B. Johnson City Development Authority (Continued)

13. Risk Management Activities:

The Authority canies insurance for general liability and to cover destruction or damage to its property and
equipment. There were no claims filed against the Authority in the cunent fiscal year or either of the two
preceding years which were not covered by insurance.

14. Downtown Johnson City Foundation, Inc.:

The Authority was involved in incorporating Downtown Johnson City Foundation, Inc. (the
"Foundation") during the year ended June 30, 2008. The Foundation was formed for the purpose of
securing grant revenues from sources which will not make grants directly to a governmental or quasi­
governmental agency. The Foundation expects to apply for and receive grants and obtain contributions
that complement the purpose of the Authority. The Foundation has applied for exempt status with the
Internal Revenue Service but had not received a detennination letter by the date the Authority's financial
statements were issued.

During the current fiscal year, the Foundation received $1,500 of contributions. The financial statements
of the Foundation have been combined with the financial statements of the Authority for the year ended
June 30, 2009.

Condensed t1nancial statements for the Foundation are presented below.

Downtown Johnson City Foundation, Inc.
Condensed Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Assets
Cash

Net Assets

Revenues
Expenses

Increase in net assets

129
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$

$

$
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the :Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

7. OTHER MATTERS:

On January 23, 2007, Washington County issued $130,360,000 in bonds to fund capital needs within the
Washington County and Johnson City Schools. School debt proceeds received by the County are shared
with the City based on Student Average Daily Attendance. The City's portion of the proceeds to be
received is valued at $47,386,830. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City received
$11,617,308. These proceeds were deposited in the School Capital Project Fund. The remaining amounts
available to be received of the proceeds by the City of Johnson City were $928,107. This balance is
expected to be received during fiscal year 20 10.

On January 9, 2009, the City entered into a Loan Agreement with The Public Building Authority of the
County of Montgomery, Tennessee in the amount of $25,000,000. These funds will be drawn down to
make capital improvements within the General Government. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009,
the City had drawn down $12,417,222. These proceeds were deposited in the Infrastructure, Public
Facilities, Equipment and School Capital Project Funds. The remaining funds available to be drawn by
the City are $12,582,778 as of June 30, 2009. This balance is expected to be received during fiscal year
2010.

8. SUBSEQUENT FEDERAL FUNDING:

The City was awarded $4,523,123 and the Schools were awarded $3,003,600 in federal funding under the
Recovery Act for the City's fiscal year 2010. Federal funds have specific compliance and accounting
requirements. The Board should obtain an understanding of requirements, ensuring timely compliance
and organized record retention. The State of Tennessee Comptroller's website contains several links to
documents addressing various aspects of the ARRA funding. The link to the site is:
http://Vv'w\v.tn.gov/comptroller/shared/arra.htm.

9. NEW ACCOUNTING 81'ANDARDS:

There are several new GASH Statements that have been issued that will be effective in future years. The
City has not yet evaluated the effects, if any, of adopting these standards.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
REQUIH.ED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORlVIATION

ANALYSIS OF 'FUNDING PROGRESS FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule of Funding Progress for the City of Johnson City 80020

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

(a) (b) (b) - (a) (a!b) (c) ((b-a)!c)

(AAL)

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial (UAAL) UAAL as a %

Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets Liability AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

July 1,2007 120,065 $ 146,993 $ 26,928 81,68% $ 34,866 77,23%

'rhe Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the Schedule of
Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method, The requirement to present the Schedule of
Funding Progress using the Entry Age actuarial cost method was a change made during the year of the
most recent actuarial valuation date, therefore only the most current year is presented,

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Johnson City Power Board 80022

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

(a) (b) (b)-(a) (afb) (c) ((b-a)/c)

(AAL)

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial (UAAL) UAAL as a %

Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets Liability AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

July 1,2007 $ 27,950 $ 35,454 $ 7,504 78,83% $ 8,432 88,99%

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the Schedule of
Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. The requirement to present the Schedule of
Funding Progress using the EntlY Age aetuarial eost method was a change made during the year of the
most recent actuarial valuation date, therefore only the most CUlTent year is presented.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLANS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

City of Johnson City - Schedule of Funding Progress - Postemployment Healthcare Plan

(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

July 1,2007
July 1,2008

$
$

Actuarial
Value of

Assets
(a)

Actuarial

Accrued
Liability (AAL)

(b)

$ 15,479

$ 17,664

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)

(b-a)

$ J5,479

$ 17,664

Funded

Ratio
(alb)
0.0%

0.0%

Covered

Payroll
(c)

$ 28,203
$ 29,044

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered

Payroll

54.9%

60.8'X,

Amounts presented above include the Johnson City Schools.

Note: Data is not available for the preceding year.

Johnson Cit\' Power BQard -- Schedule of Funding Progress - PostemploYm~Dl H~..,±ltbcar~Plan

(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

July 1,2007 $

Actuarial
Value of

Assets
(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)

$ 8,295

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(b-a)

$ 8,295

Funded
Ratio
(alb)

O.O'Yo

Covered
Payroll

(c)
N/A

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered
Payroll
«b-a)/c)

N/A

Note: Data is not available for the two preceding years.
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt other than that payable from enterprise funds and the general obligation
debt used to construct educational facilities,

Educational Facilities Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt for the construction of educational facilities,

School Capital Project Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities for
the schools.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues:
Investment Earnings

Total Revenues

E?wend it!.IIT...s;~

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
interest and Fiscal Charges
Other Fees

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

QllleLEinanfjnlI Sourc~_§j.lL~;
Transfers In
Bond Issue Proceeds and Debt Refunding
Redemption of Refund Bonds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July 1,2008

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 1,500 1,500 3,741 2,241

1,500 1,500 3,741 2,241

5,003,331 3,285,616 3,285,364 252
4,329,166 3,338,763 2,223,805 1,114,958

30,000 430,089 1

9,362,497 7,054,4~~

(9,360,997) (7,052,968) (6,250,375) 80~,593__

9,332,496 7,358,463 6,584,371 (774,092)
37,335,594 37,335,594

(37,669,590) (37,669,590)

9,332,496 7,024,467 6,250,375 (774,092)

(28,50 I) (28,50 I) 28,501

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ (28,501) (28,50 I) o 28,501

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

I~_yenues:

Taxes $ 2,092,194 2,092,194 1,918,898 (173,296)
Investment Earnings 24,300 24,300 (19,506)

Total Revenues 2,116,494 2,116,494 1,923,692 (192,802)

-'3J:.:!2§jlditures:
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 1,542,299 1,052,299 1,052,551 (252)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,914,392 2,204,552 2,209,347 (4,795)
Other Fees 292,889

Total Expenditures 3,456,691 3,549,508 3,554,787

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (l ,340, 197) (1,433,014) (1,631,095) (198,081)

Ql~LEjnan£i!1gS9]Jr.f_eiL(J)2~

Transfer Out (44,000) (44,000) (44,000)

Transfer In 1,099,181 1,099,181 1,035,400 (63,781 )
Bond Issue Proceeds and Debt Refunding 29,727,657 29,727,657
Redemption of Refunded Bonds (29,925,000) (29,925,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,055,181 857,838 794,057 (63,781)

Net Change in Fund Balances (285,016) (575,176) (837,038) (261,862)

Fund Balance, July 1, 2008 1,106,774 839,654 795,124 (44,530)

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 821,758 264,478 (41,914) (306,392)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pmi ofthis statement.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SCHOOL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Investment Earnings $ 975,244 975,244
Intergovernmental Revenue 9,000,000 11,617,308 2,617,308

Total Revenues ° 9,000,000 12,592,552 3,592,552

Expenditures:

Capital Outlay 393,000 9,393,000 9,241,481 J 51,5] 9

Total Expenditures 393,000 9,393,000 9,241,481 1 1 19

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (393,000) (393,000) 3,351,071 3,744,071

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer In 393,000 393,000 393,000
Bond Issue Proceeds and Debt Refunding 2,845,049 2,845,049

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 393,000 393,000 2,845,049

Net Change in Fund Balances 6,589,120 6,589,120

Fund Balance, July 1, 2008 35,826,059 35,826,059

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ ° 0 42,415,179 42,415, I79

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure
for particular purposes.

Freedom Hall Civic Center Fund is used to account for the revenues generated from the Civic
Center's operations. Fee revenues are supplemented by the General Fund to the extent of the facility's
cost.

School Federal Projects Fund accounts for all revenues received under this law.

Special School Pro.jects Fund accounts for all revenues received for various special projects I~)r the
schools.

School Food Service Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures of school cafeterias,

School Site Based Fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures of the site based funds of the
school activity funds.

Transportation Planning Fund is used to account for special state and federal pass through state
revenues.

Drug Fund accounts for drug tInes awarded by coul1 action,

Police Grant Fund accounts for all the police grants from the federal, state and local governments.

Police Technology Fund accounts for fees provided by moving violations to fund safety equipment
and technology for the police dep1l11ment.

Community Development Fund accounts for Housing and Urban Development Funds,

Senior Citizens Fund accounts for contributions and fund raising for the Senior Citizens Center.

Employee Scholarship Fund accounts for donations from City employees for scholarships to City
employee children who are entering college.

Capital Project Funds, which include Equipment, Parks, Public Facilities, and In!r'astructure, are used to
account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds.

Industrial Park Fund accounts for Johnson City Industrial Park expansion expenditures and
revenues.

Med Tech Park Fund accounts for Med Tech Park expansion expenditures and revenues,

Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings,
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government's programs.

School Trust Fund is used to account for principal trust amounts named and related interest income.
The interest is to be used for scholarships for graduating high school students.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2009

Permanent Total
Special Capital Fund - Nonmajor

Revenue Project School Trust Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Funds

ASSETS:
Cash in Bank $ 1,114,961 208,378 1,323,339
Cash on Deposit with State of Tennessee 53,063 53,063
Cash Due from Central Depository 2,023,883 5,253,485 7,277,368
Accounts Receivable 3,584 5,495 9,079
Due from Other Funds 19,351 19,351
Due from Federal Government 294,017 294,017
Due from State of Tennessee 1,171,293 1,171,293
Notes Receivable 42,298 42,298
1nvcntories 228,955 228,955

Total Assets $ 4,898,342 5,312,043 208,378 10,418,763

LL~.!3IL1TIES Aj\iD FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Cash Due to Central Depository $ 288,521 1,874,902 2,163,423

Accounts Payable 243,204 1,400,072 1,643,276

Accrued Payroll Expenditures 327,972 327)972

Accrued Expenditures 10,556 10,556

Due to Other Funds 506,604 506,60,1

Unearned Revenue 169,987 169,987

Retainage Payable 383.985
Total Liabilities

FungJ1,alances:

Reserved for Inventories 228,955 228,955
Reserved for Police Technology 1,032,231 1,032,231
Reserved for School 'I'rust 208,378 208,378
Reserved for Senior Citizens 15,000 15,000

Reserved for Specified Capital Projects 1,702,655 1,702,655

Unreserved:

Designated fbI' Special Projects 348,712 348,712
Designated for Compensated Absences 52,392 52,392
Designated for Specified Capital Outlays 2,876,749 2.876,749
Undesignated 1,674,208 (2,926,320) (1,252,112)

Total Fund Balances 3,351,498 1,653,084 208,378 5,212,960

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 4,898,342 5,312,043 208,378 10,418,763

See Independent Atlditors" Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENIJES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Pc'rmanent Total
Special Capital Fund - Nonmajor

Revenue Project School Trust Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Funds

Revenhl.;;.~~

Taxes $ 499,718 499,718
Federal Government 7,783,334 7,783,334
State of Tennessee 744,716 744,716
Local Governments 46,417 46,417
Charges for Services 1,178,721 1,178,721
Fines and Forfeitures 69,049 69,049
Investment Earnings 20,037 1,867 24,421
Revenue from Use of Propert)! 2,32 I ,844 2,330,866
Miscellaneous 751,335 ______1_,2~2, 18~_

Total Revenues 1

Expenditures:
Current:

Publie Safety 649,709 649,709
Public Welfare 725,486 725,486
Senior Citizens 108,383 108,383
Scholarships Awarded 6,000 6,000
Entertainment and Operation 2,650,419 2,650,419
Highway and Transportation Planning 203,211 203,211
Education 6,169,273 6,169,273
School Food Service 3,014,025 3,014,025
Miscellaneous 21,645 21,645

Capital Outlay 254,448 14,792,887 15,047,335
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 319,031 319,031
Interest and Fiscal Charges 7 99.617

Total Expenditures 13,796,599 15,21],535 6,000 29,014,134

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (881,146) (14,229,433) (4,133)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (Net) 1,159,304 5,524,330 6.683.634
Capital Lease 23,000 23,000
Sale of Real Estate 1,076,476 1,076,476
Bond Issue Proceeds and Debt Refunding 10,727,584 10,727,584
Redemption of Refunded Bonds (1,330,410) (1,330,410)

Total Other Financing Sources 1,182,304 15,997,980 ° 17,180,284

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONIVlAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Pemlanent Total
Special

Revenue
Funds

Capital
Project
Funds

Fund·
School Trust

Fund

Nonrmljor
Governmental

Funds

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1,2008

Prior Period Adjustment: Police
Transfer from Police Technology

to Capital Project Fund
Purchase Method Inventory Adjustment
Prior Period Transfer of Funds
Fund Balances, July 1,2008 (Restated)

Fund Balances, June 30, 2009

2,071,473 523,937 212,51 I 2,807,92 I

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY. TENNESSEE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2009

Freedom

HaH Total

Civic Transportation Police Police Community Senior Employee Special

Center School Planning Drug Grant Technoiogy Development Citizens Scholarship Revenue

Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,875 1,112,586 500 1,114,96]

Ca~h Due from Central Depository 189,805 25,156 488,311 1,049,9]7 269,691 1,003 2,023,883
Accounts Receivable 3,584 3,584

Due from Other Funds 19)51 19,351

Due from Federal Govemment 84,967 209,050 294,017
Due from State of l'ennessee ],042,331 45,618 9,937 73,407 1,17],293

Local Grants Receivable

Notes Receivable 42,298 42,298

Inventories 228,955 228,955
Total Assets $ 191,680 2,403,223 70,774 488,811 98,488 1,049,917 324,755 269,691 1,003 4,898,142

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.,;

Liabilities:
>-' Cash Due to Central Depository $ 78,490 210,031 288,521w
<0 Accounts Payable 28,994 96,879 10,987 8,097 196 17,686 76,992 3,373 243,204

Accrued Payroll Expenses 11,260 310,322 3,783 2,607 327,972
Accrued Expenses 10,556 10,556

Due to Otber Funds 506,604 506,604

Uneamed Revenue 93,743 14,400 19.546 42,298 169,987

Total Liabilities 144,553 913.805 29,170 8,097 98.232 17,686 331,928 3,373 0 1,546,844

Fund Balances:

Reserved for Inventories 228,955 228,955

Reserved for Police Technology 1,032,231 1,032,231

Reserved for Senior Citizens 15,000 15,000

Unreserved:
Designated for Special Projects 348,712 348,712

Designated for Compensated Absences 47)27 3,518 1,747 52,392

Undesignated 908,233 39,857 480,714 256 (7,173) 251,318 1,003 1,674,208

Total Fund Balances 47,127 1,489,418 41,604 480,714 256 1,032,23 j (7,173) 266,318 1,003 3,351,498

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 191/180 2,403,223 70,774 488,811 98,488 1,049,917 124,755 269,691 1,003 4,898,342

See Independent Auditors' Report



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1009

Freedom

Hall Total

Civic Transportation Police Police Community Senior Employee Special

Center School Planning Drug Grant TechoDlogy Development Citizens Scholarship Revenue

Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Revenues:

Federal Government :£ 6,938,391 10,996 225,765 608,182 7,783,334

State ofTennessee 516,086 134,473 4,975 89,182 744,716
Local Governments 46,417 46,417

Charges for Services 1,178,295 426 1,178,721

Fines and Forfeitures 69,049 69,049

Investment Earnings 17,441 2,571 25 20,037

Revenue from Use of Property 2,321,844 2,321,844

Miscellaneous 98,070 186,930 434 376,61 ~ 19O 79,513 9,583 751,335

Total Revenues 2,419,914 8,650,213 145,469 255,979 277,591 376,615 697,980 82,084 9,608 12,915,453

Expell<;l.it.llres:
Current:

Public Safety 100,005 320,481 229,223 649,709

Public Welfare 725,486 725,486

Senior Citizens 108,383 108,383

Entertainment and Operation 2,650,419 2,650,419
,jO. Highwdy and Transportation Planning 203,211 203,211
0

Education 6,169,273 6,169,273

School Food Service 3,014,025 3,014,025

Miscellaneous 21.645 21,645

Capital Outlay 214,498 39,950 254,448

Total Expenditures 2,650,419 9,397,796 203)11 100,005 360,431 229,223 725,486 108,383 21,645 13,796,599

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (230,505) (747,583) (57,742) 155,974 (82,840) 147,392 (27,506) (26,299) (12,037) (881,146)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transters (Net) 234,735 827,637 31,647 (19,105) 82,951 3,439 (2,000) 1,159,304

Capital Lease 23,000 23,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 234,735 827,637 54,647 (19,105) 82,951 3.439 (2,000) 0 0 1,182,304

Net Change in Fund Balances 4,230 80,05~ (3,095) 136,869 III 150,831 (29,506) (26,299) (12,037) 301,158

Fund Balances, July I. 2008 42,897 1,3 II ,897 44,699 343,845 145 22,333 292,617 13,040 2,071,473

Purchase Method tnventory Adjustment 97,467 97,467

Pnor Period Transfer elf Funds 881,400 881,400

Fund Balances, July t 2008 (restated) ~2,897 1,~09.J64 44,699 343,845 1~5 881 AOO 22,333 292,617 13,040 3,050,340

Fund Balances. June 30. 2009 $ 47,127 1,489,418 41,604 480,714 256 1,032,231 (7,173) 266,318 1,003 3)51,49S

See Independent Auditors' RcpO'1



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

COMBINING BALANCE $HEET
SCHOOL FUNDS

June 30,2009

School Special School School
Federal School Food Site Total
Projects Projects Service Based School

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSET~;

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 763,693 348,893 1,112,586

Due from Other Funds 19,351 19,351

Due from State of Tennessee 697,282 166,431 178,618 1,042,331

Inventories
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Accounts Payable $ 96,672 26 181 96,879

Accrued Payroll Expenses 254,333 25,429 30,560 310,322

Due to Other Funds 346,277 160,327

Total Liabilities 697,282 185,782 30,560 181 913.805

E!md Balanccii:

Reserved for Inventory 228,955 228,955

Unreserved:

Designated for Special Projects 348,712 348,712

Designated for Compensated Absences 3.518

Undesignated 908.233

Total Fund Balances 0 0 12 1,489,418

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 697,282 185,782 1,171,266 348,893 2,403,223

See Independent l\uditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITlJRES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SCHOOL FUNDS

Revenues;

Federal Government

State of Tennessee
Charges for Services

Investment Earnings

Total Revenues

ml:!lditures:
Current:

Education

School Food Service

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

pther Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers (Net)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1,2008

Purchase Method Inventory
Adjustment

Fund Balances, July 1,2008 (Restated)

Fund Balances, June 30, 2009

For the Fiscal YearEllded June 30, 2009

School Special School Schoo]
Federal School Food Site Total
Projects Projects Service Based School

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 4,917,560 56,484 ] ,964,347 6,938,391
481,519 34,567 516,086

1,178,295 ],178,295

17,441 1 I
4,917,560 538,003 3,194,650 0 13

4,801,036 599,849 768,388 6,169,273
3,014,025

107,768 106,730

4,908,804 599,849 3,120,755 768,388

8,756 (61,846) 73,895 (768,388) (747,583)

(8,756) 61,846 774,547 827,637
(8,756) 61,846 ° 774,547 827,637

0 0 73,895 6,159 80,054

969,344 342,553 l,311,897

97,467 97,467

0 0 11 342,553 1,409,364-----

0 0 18

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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nTY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

June 30, 2009

Various Project Funds

Public Industrial Med Tech Total
Equipment Parks Facilities Infrastructure Park Park Capital

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Project Funds
ASSETS:

Cash on Deposit with State of Tennessee $ - 53,063 53,063
Cash Due from Central Depository 667,881 435,795 1,273,060 2,876,749 5,253,485
Accounts Receivable 5,495 5,495

Total Assets $ 667,881 435,795 1,273,060 58,558 ° 2,876,749 5,312,043

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Cash Due to Central Depository $ 429,513 1,445,389 1,874,902
Accounts Payable 56,207 90,594 527,280 725,470 521 1,400,072

>--"

"" Retainage Payable 383,985 383,985w

Total Liabilities 56,207 90,594 527,280 1,538,968 1,445,910 () 3,658,959

Fund Balances
Reserved for Specified Capital Projects 611,674 345,201 745,780 1,702,655
Unreserved:

Designated for Specified Capital Outlays 2,876,749 2,876,749
Undesignated (1,480,410) (1,445,910) (2,926,320)

Total Fund Balances 611,674 345,201 745,780 (1,480,410) (1,445,910) 2,876,749 1,653,084

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 667,881 435,795 1,273,060 58,558 ° 2,876,749 5,312,043

See Independent Auditors' Report.



OTY Of JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDrTURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Various Project Funds

Public Industrial Med Tech Total

Equipment Parks Facilities Infrastructure Park Park Capital
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Project Funds

Revenues:
Taxes $ 499,718 499,718
Investment Earnings 177 942 1,398 2,517
Revenue from Use of Property 9,022 9,022
Miscellaneous 17,183 42,200 411,462 470,845

Total Revenues 17,183 42,377 412,404 9,022 501,116 982,102

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 3,809,434 167,279 2,507,322 8,279,805 19,478 9,569 14,792,887
Debt Service:

>-'
Principal Retirement 319,031>I>- 319,031

>I>-
Interest and Fiscal Charges 99,617 99,617

Total Expenditures 3,809,434 167,279 2,507,322 8,279,805 19,478 428,217 15,211,535

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (3,792,25 1) (124,902) (2,507,322) (7,867,401) (10,456) 72,899 (14,229,433 )

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Various Project Funds

Equipment
Fund

Parks
Fund

Public
Facilities

Fund

Infrastructure

Fund

Industrial
Park

Fund

Med Tech
Park

Fund

Total
Capital

Project Funds

""01

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers (Net)
Sale of Real Estate
Bond Issue Proceeds and Debt Refunding
Redemption of Refunded Bonds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1,2008

Prior Period Adjustment:
Transfer from Police Technology to Capital Projects

Fund Balance, July 1,2008 (restated)

Fund Balances, June 30, 2009

3,059,863

1,223,750

--

4,283,613

49~)62

759,712

(639,400)

]20,312

$ 611,674

369,500 1,694,538 400,429 5,524,330
76,476 1,000,000 1,076,476

2,010,404 6,163,020 1,330,410 10,727,584
(1,330,410) (1,330,410)

369,500 3,704,942 6,563,449 76,476 1,000,000 15,997,980

244,598 1,197,620 (1,303,952) 66,020 1,072,899 1,768,547

100,603 (451,840) (176,458) (1,5 11,930) 1,803,850 523,937

(639,400)

100,603 (451,840l. (176,458) (1,511,930) 1,803,850 (115,463 )

345,201 745,780 (1,480,410) (1,445,910) 2,876,749 1,653,084

See Independent Auditors' Report.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FREEDOM HALL CIVIC CENTER FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

Revenue from Use of Property $ 1,422,500 2,317,500 2,321,844 4,344

Miscellaneous 42,000 97,000 98,070 1,070

Total Revenues 1,464,500 2,414,500 2,419,914 5,414

ExQenditures:

Civic Center Entertainment and Operation 169,579 2,649,579 2,650,419

Total Expenditures 169,579 2,649,579 2,650,419 (840)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures 1,294,921 (235,079) (230,505) 4,574

Other Financing S_Q1!I£"~"~J.u.~e.?1;

Transfer In 233,000 233,000 234,735 1,735

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 233,000 233,000 234,735 1,735

Net Change in Fund Balances 1,527,921 (2,079) 4,230 6,309

Fund Balance, July 1,2008

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 1,565,845 35,845 47,127 11,282

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SCHOOL FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2.009

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Federal Government $ 6,019,812 6,403,169 4,917,560 (l,485,609)

Total Revenues 6,019,812 169 4,917,560 (1,485,609)

Expenditures:

Education 5,744,480 6,109,703 4,801,036 1,308,667

Capital Outlay 107,768 1

Total Expenditures 6,0]9,812 6,391,768 4,908,804 1,482,964

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures 0 11,401 (2,645)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfer to General Purpose School Fund (10,756) (10,520)

Transfer From Special Revenue Fund I

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 (10,756) (8,756) 2,000

Net Change in Fund Balances 645 (645)

Fund Balance, July I, 2008

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 0 645 0

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL SCHOOL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Revenues:

Federal Government
State of Tennessee
Local Governments

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Education
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 74,924 74,924 56,484 (18,440)

495,708 499,208 481,519 (17,689)
4,319 (4,319)

570,632 578,451 538,003 (40,448)

582,582 597,801 599,849 (2,048)

2,000

584,582 597,801 599,849 (2,048)

(13,950) (19,350) (61,846) (42,496)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfer In
Transfer from Other Special

Revenue Funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July], 2008

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $

13,950

13,950

o

13,950

5,400

19,350

o

13,950

47,896

61,846

o

42,496

42,496

o

See Independent Auditors' Report,
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Variance with

Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

Federal Government $ 1,813,000 1,813,000 1,964,347 151,347
State of Tennessee 34,567 34,567

Charges for Services 1,295,000 1,295,000 1,178,295 (116,705)
Investment Earnings 15,000 15,000 17,441 2,441

Total Revenues 3,123,000 3,194,650 71,650

Expenditures:

School Food Service 3,100,000 3,100,000 3,014,025 85,975

Capital Outlay 100,000 100,000 ]06,730 (6,730)

Total Expenditures 3,200,000 3,200,000 3,120,755 79.245

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (77,000) (77,000) 73,895 150,895

Fund Balance, July 1, 2008 1,010,631 1,010,631 969,344 (41,287)

Purchase Method Inventory Adjustment 97,467 97,467

Fund Balance, July 1,2008 (Restated) 1,010,631 1,010,631 1,066,811 56,180

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 1,140,706 207,075

See Independent Auditors' Report
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRANSPORTAnON PLANNING FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues:
Federal Government

State of Tennessee

Total Revenues

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 217,180 134,473 (82,707)

18,200 ]0,996 (7,204)

0 235,380 145,469 (89,911)

~xpenditures:

Highway and Transportation Planning

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

o

281, 173

281,173

203,211

203,211

(57,742)

77,962

77,962

(1 1,949)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer In

Capital Lease

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance July I, 2008

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $

o

60,973

29,000 31,647

23,000 23,000

52,000 54,647

6,207 (3,095)

60,973 44,699

80 41

2,647

2,647

(9,302)

(16,274)

(25,576)

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DRUG FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenu~..:.

Fines and Forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Variance with

Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 142,000 142,000 69,049 (72,951)

186,930 186,930

142,000 ]42,000 255,979 ] 13,979

Expenditures:

Public Safety

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

Other Finan<,;iDK$..Q1lrce.<i (Uses):

Transfer Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July 1, 2008

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009

128,000 128,000 100,005

]28,000 128,000 100,005

14,000 14,000 155,974

(40,000) (40,000) (19,105)

(40,000) (40,000) (19,105)

(26,000) (26,000) 136,869

295,680 295,680 343,845

$ 269,680 269,680 480,714

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE"

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE GRANT FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Federal Govemment $ 198,537 265,199 225,765 (39,434)

State of Tennessee 2,484 7,459 4,975 (2,484)

Local Governments 45,000 46,417 1,417

Investment Eamings 1,365 1,365 (1,365)

Miscellaneous 300 434 134

Total Revenues 202,386 3 I9,323 277,591 (41,732)

menditures:
Public Safety 214,774 368,21 I 320,481 47,730

Capital Outlay 38,500 39,950 I

Total Expenditures 214,774 406,711 360,43 I 46,280

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures (12,388) (87,388) (82,840) 4,548

Other Financing_Sources (Use~
Transfer In - Drug Fund 32,442 107,442 82,951 (24,491 )

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 32,442 107,442 82,951 (24,491 )

Net Change in Fund Balances 20,054 20,054 III (19,943)

Fund Balance, July 1,2008 138,405 7,405 145 (7,260)

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 158,459 27,459 256 (27,203)

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE TECHNOLOGY FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Miscellaneous $ 300,000 376,615 76,615

Total Revenues 0 300,000 376,615 76,615

Expenditures:

Public Safety 250,000 229,223 20,777

Total Expenditures 0 250,000

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures 0 50,000 147,392 92

Other FinanciD.g_~ourc_~UUse0:.

Transfer In 3,439

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 a 3,439 3,439

Net Change in Fund Balances a SO,OOO 150,831 100,831

Fund Balance, July 1,2008

Prior Period Adjustment: Police

Technology Transfer from General Fund 242,000 242,000

Transfer from Capital Project Fund 639,400 639,400

Fund Balance, July 1,2008 (Restated) 0 0 881,400 881,400

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 0 50,000 1,032,23 I 982,231

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts
Revenues:

Federal Govemment $ 484,135 484,135 608,]82 124,047
State ofTennessee 84,935 84,935 89,182 4,247
Charges for Services ],000 1,000 426 (574)
Miscellaneous 32,000 32,000 190 (31,810)

Total Revenues 602,070 602,070 697,980 95,910

Expenditures:

Public Welfare 736,191

Total Expenditures 736,191 736,191 725,486 10,705

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (134,] 2]) (27,506) 106,615

Other FinalI5'Lng Sources (Uses):

Transfer In - General Fund (2,000) (2,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0

Net Change in Fund Balances (134,121) (134,121) (29,506) 104,615

Fund Balance, July 1, 2008 26,965 26,965 22,333 (4,632)

Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 $ (107,]56) (107,156) (7,173) 99,983

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business, where the intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the
determination of net income is an important measurement of performance.

Golf Course Fund accounts for the activities of the City's two 18-hole golf courses.

Regional Solid Waste Fund accounts for the activities of the City's regional residential garbage,
refuse collection and recycling activities.

Mass Transit Fund accounts for the activities funded by federal grants D'om the Federal
'T'ransportation Administration and state grants provided from federal funds for support of local
government transportation programs,

Storm water Management Fund accounts for the activities of the City's storm water and drainage
management system.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STAD;.MENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMA,JOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
,June 30, 2009

Golf
Course
Fund

Regional
Solid
Waste

Fund

Mass
Transit
Fund

Stonnwat.e,r
Management

Fund

Total
Nonmajor

PropriNi'I!)'
Funds

A~SETS;

Current Assets:
Cash in Bank
Cash Due from Central Depository
Accounts Receivable (Net)
Due from Federal Government
Due from State Government
inventories
Prepaid Expenses

Toml Current AS5{~tS

$ 1,084

108,517

1,646,859
46,392

1,917
277,348

13,967
362,84 I
124,256

247,772
59,554

3,001
2,17] ,979

119,913
362,84 ]

124,256
108,5 I 7

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:

Land
Buildings
fmprovements Other than Buildings
Equipment and Vehicles

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress

Net Capital Assets
Other Assets:

Bond Issue Costs (Net)
Total Noncurrent Asset.s
Total Assets

i,927,942 205,990 97,882 2,231,814
758,351 204,192 1,967,346 305,456 3,235,345
955,529 186,356 1.14 I,885
822,946 2,410,135 2,829,205 84-2,647 6,904,933

(1,776,096) (1,009,145) (2,799,915) (84,331) (5,669,487)
3,260 3,260

2,688,672 1,605,182 ? ,388,:182 __,,LL6.'!"~ 7,847,750

LIABILITIES;

Cum:mt Liabilities:
Cash Due to Central Depository
Accounts PaYil.ble
Accrued Payroll Expenses
Aocmed Expenses

Compensated Absences-Cune·nt Portion
Leases Payable ~ Current Portion
Bonds Payable ~ Current Portion

Total Current Liabilities

1,936,370 I,9J6,370
14,122 92,365 82,711 52,552 241,750
26,522 20,814 61,275 8,498 117,109
11,179 11,179
27,228 22,167 42,316 6,622 98,333
40,448 40,448

.NQ.n..qlttI~.!J.tLif:lQiJJ\jJi.?~

Deferred Revenue
Compensated Absences
Leases Payable
Bonds Payable

Less: DefelTed Debt Refunding
Special Commission Bonds

Total NOnCll-ITellt Liabilities
Total Liabilit.ies

·15,221
7,238

42,610
1.355,000

(52,721)

1,397,348
3,643,217

5,893

l7.281
23,174

158,520

11.249

11,249
197,551

1,760
45,221
26,140

42,610
1,355,000

(52,721 )

1,605,1821,060,614 2,388,982 1,164,914 6.2t9.692

-=. ,"".,,;:;::-':7:':"+-._. --::~~"""':_'--~~""";:_---_:_2'C.3'_:7"',8"'9_:_4 466,488
~===~~~h=====~~~.~"==~~,:;~~~=~),j,Q.2"!\.()L---------'"'6:68(i80

NET ASSET~~

Invested tn Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

See Independ~ntAuditors' R(~port
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NON MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Regional Total
Golf Solid Mass Stonnwater Nonmajor

Course Waste Transit Management Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services (Net) 1,025,70 I 2,313,041 306,654 1,475,807 5,121,203
Other Revenue 3,624 20,379 18,68 I 42,684

Total Operating Revenues 1,029,325 2,313,04 I 327,033 1,494,488 5,163,887

Q.nerating Expenses:

Administration 98,000 66,150 164,150

Personnel Services 749,004 630,184 1,930,792 301,022 3,61 1,002

Contractual Services 13,891 490,535 11,321 132,165 647,912
Matcrials and Supplies 66,630 75,314 178,878 89,418 410,240

Repairs and Maintenance 80,648 351,412 467,051 17,138 916,249

Sad Debt Expense 28 16,071 24 40,4 I9 56,542

Items for Resale 55,050 55,050
Other Operating Expenses 137,310 3,410 102,786 69,068 312,574

Depreci ati on and Amortizati on 113,809 206,534 330,580 58,251 709,174

Total Operating Expenses 1,216,3 70 1,871,460 3,02 I ,432 7J3,63..L __1i,.882,893

Operating Income (Loss) (187,045) 441,581 (2,694,399) 720,857 (1,719,006)

J::!.Q[!:Qpgrati!lKR&l'~nles(ExJ2l'ng_U

Investment Income 20,562 329 20,891

Operati ng Grants 1,702,482 1,702,482

Interest Expenses and Commissions (112,221) (112,221 )

Amortization - Bond Cost (1,949) (1,949)

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 1,651 1,651

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (114,170) 20,562 1,704,133 329 1,610,854

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers

and Capital Contributions (30 I ,21 5) 462,143 (990,266) 721,186 (108,152)

TranSfers an\! Capital.(;QD!ribulions;

Transfers In 40 I,215 660,000 1,061,215

Transfers Out (168,972) (168,972)

Federal Capital Grant Revenue 129,158 129,158

State Capital Grant Revenue 10,566 10,566

Total Transfers and Capital Contributions 401,215 (168,972) 799,724 ° 1,031,967

Change in Net Assets 100,000 293,171 (190,542) 721,186 923,815

Net Assets, July 1,2008 (928,301) 2,846,742 3,162,302 681,6'2 5,762,365

Net Assets, ,I une 30,2009 (828,30 I) 3,139,913 2,971,760 1,402,808 6,686,180

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NON MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Interfund Services Used

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from NoncaDital Financing Activities:
Transfers to Other Funds
Purchase of/receipt for Equipment· Interfunds
Advances from Other Funds
Operating Grants Received

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noneapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows Irom Capita] and Related Fin~n9iDKA£tiyjti<eCL

Purchase of Capital Assets
Capital Grants Received
Principal Paid on Capita] Debt
Principal Paid on Capital Lease
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Sale of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related
Finaneing Activities

,(;;ash FIO\Y§_from Investing Activities:
Interest and Related Income/Expenses and Investments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities

Netlncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I, 2008

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30,2009

Regional Total
Golf Solid Ma~s Stannwater Nonrnajor

Course Waste Transit Management Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

1,018,282 2,297,523 316,033 1,456,575 5,088,413
(757,154) (623,884) (1,914,031 ) (297,190) (3,592,259)
(138,464) (571,766) (247,336) (217,240) (1,174,806)

(74,658) (447,102) (439,544) (109,924) (1,07] ,388)

48,006 654,611 (2,284,878) 832,221 ..----J.Z5O,(40)

(168,972) (168,972)
32,992 32,992

401,215 660,000 1,061,215
1,663,563___________ __ I'§iS;J,?i'L

401,215 __...Jll?,9801 2,323,563 2,588,798

(126,759) (1,192,404) (48,412) (816,127) (2J 83,702)
139,724 139,724

(180,000) (39,818) (219,818)
(38,396) (38,396)
(87,938) (87,938)

1,651 1,651

(433,093) (1,232,222) 92,963 -i§,16,] 27) _ (2,388,479)

(16,214) 20,562 328 4,676

( 16,214) 20,562 ° 328 4,676

(86) (693,029) 131,M8 16,422 (545,045)

1,170 2,339,888 147,6]7 231 ,350 2,720,025

Classified as Current Assets
Totals

$
$

1,084
1,084

] ,646,859
1,646,859

279,265__ 247,772 2,174,980
279,265-'247,772----ii74!J8()'

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Regional Total
Golf Solid Mass Storrnwater Nonrnajor

Course Waste Transit Management Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

1Zeconci]j~0Q!LQ[QPemtillRIm:ome (LQ,'31to Net
Cash Provided by (Used forl Operating Activities;,
Operating Income (Loss) $ ( 187,045) 441,581 (2,694.,399) 720,857 (1,719,006)
Adjustme,nts:

Depreciation 113,808 206,534 330,580 58,251 709,173
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 2,4]5 553 (10,978) 2,506 (5,504)
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories' 1,635 1,635
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 1,500 1,500
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

and Accrued Expenses 137,272 (356) 73,158 46,775 256,849
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroll Expenses (714) 3,682 13,249 2,233 18,'150
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences (7,435) 2,617 3,512 1,599 293
Increase (Decrea~e) in Deterred Revenue (J3,430) (13,430)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing A.£ti.Yi..ti~~

Buffalo Valley Golf Course:
- Amortization of Deten'ed Bond Refunding totaling $1,949 was included with Interest Expense on the Combining Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Asset",

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents from Statement of Cash Flows
Cash in Bank $ 1,084
Cash Due From Central Depository

See Independent Auditors' Report
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to another department or agency on a cost reimbursement basis.

Insurance Fund accounts for self-insured health and workers' compensation insurance.

Motor Transport Fund accounts for the maintenance and repair of the City's fleet of various motor
vehicles.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2009

Total
Motor Internal

Insurance Transport Service
Fund Funds

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash in Bank $ 8,615,955 8,6 I5,955
Cash Due from Central Depository 261,988 261,988
Accounts Receivable (Net) 43,686 43,686
Inventories 418,977 418,977

Total Current Assets 8,877,943 462,663 9,340,606

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:

Equipment and Vehicles 696,793 696,793
Less: Accumulated Depreciation _ (64J,47°1

Net Capital Assets ° 55,323 55,323

Total Assets 8,877,943 517,986 9,395,929

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Cash Due to Central Depository 130,557 130,557
Accounts Payable 67,315 211,543 278,858
Accrued Payroll Expenses 3,803 59,003 62,806

Compensated Absences-Current Portion 50,618 50,618
Other Liabilities 3,686,150 3,686,150

Total Current Liabilities 3,757,268 451,721 4,208,989

Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 13,456 13,456

Total Non-Current Liabilities ° 13,456 1

Total Liabilities 3,757,268 465,177 4,222,445

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of

Related Debt 55,323 55,323
Unrestricted 5,120,675 (2,514) 5, 118,161

Total Net Assets $ 5,120,675 52,809 5,173,484

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS­

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Yeai' Ended ,June 30, 2009

Total
Motor Internal

Insurance Transport Service
Fund Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services (Net) $ 14,533,607 5,746,948 20,280,555
Other Revenue 868,766

Total Operating Revenues 2~zl±9,321 _

Operating Expenses:
Personnel Services 164,907 1,893,623 2,058,530
Contractual Services 17,507,314 91,546 17,598,860
Materials and Supplies 35,750 35,750
Repairs and Maintenance 3,626,508 3,626,508
Other Operat.ing Expenses 128,720 128,720
Depreeiation and Amortization 13,041 13,041

Total Operating Expenses 17,672,221 5,789,188 ___l3,4~!2409,_

Operating Income (Loss) (2,273,597) (38,491) (2,312,088)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Ineome 74,811

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 74,811 0 74,811

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (2,198,786) (38,491) (2,237,27!l

'Transfers:
'fransfers In 263,491

Total 'fransfers 263.491

Change in Net A,ssets (1,973,786) (1,973.786)

Net Assets, July 1,2008 7,094,461 52,809

Net Assets, June 30, 2009 $ 5,120,675 52,809

See Independent Auditors' Report,
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CITY OF ,JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE ,FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Insurance
Fund

Motor
Transpor1

Fund

Total
Internal
Service
Funds

15,398,624

(164,092)
(16,849,732)

Cash Flows from QI)§ratjng Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Interfund Services Used

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncarital Financing Activities:
Loans from Other Funds

Net Cash Provided by Noncapilal
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of Capital Assets

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1,2008

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2009

370,080 15,768,704
5,405,569 5,405,569

(1,870,702) (2,034,794)
(3,850,671) (20,700,403)

______=_ ~(4:c::6o::,4C'_7::L6) (46,476)

(1,615,200)

225,000

225,000

74,811

74,811

(1,315,389)

10,193,332

(Contlllued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY. TENNESSEE
COMBlNJNG STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE HINDS
For tile Fiscal Year Ended ,Inne 30, 1.009

Insurance
Fund

Motor
Transport

Fund

Total
Intemal
Service
Funds

EJ;.£9.nciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided hy (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments:

Depreciation and Amortization
Changes in AsseLs and Liabilities:

(lncre-ase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroll Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences

$ (2,273,597)

2,429

655.153

815

(38,491)

13,041

24,952

33,441
(74,738)
26.674
12,356
10,565

(2,312,088)

13,041

24,952
33,441

(72,309)
681,827

13,171

10,565

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

B-M'.QDfiJl.'Jli9.Q of Cash and Cash EguivaJQDJ~.fLQ!D3tatement of.Q'J~!lJ:lQJY.e.

Cash in Bank $

Cash Due from Central Depository
8,615,955 8,61.\,955

261,988
---8,877,943

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

USED IN THE OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERAnON OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COM]'ARATIVE SCHEDULE BY SOURCE]
June 30, 2009

Governmental Funds Capital Asset~;

Land

Buildings

Equipment and Vehicles

Infrastructure

Construction in Progress

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source;

General Fund

General Purpose School Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Construction in Progress

$

$

$

2009

17,819,404

147,846,651

32,917,981

149,331,415

20,808,063

368,723,514

2]5,734,284

2,620,5] 6

]27,231,989

2,328,662

20,808,063

2008

17,005,094

138,705,187

31,185,045

141,332,585

16,693,027

344,920,938

197,221,538

2,635,451

119,303,819

9,067,103

] 6,693,027

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 14 344,920,938

I This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets

reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service

funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF' JOHNSON CITY, TKNNESSF:E
CAPITAL ASSETS USED [N THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY'
June 30, 2009

Equipment Construction
Land Buildings and Vehicles Infrastructure in Progress Total

Function and Activity
General Government:

General Administration $ 7,392,423 15,112,955 1,349,104 23,854,482
Infonnation Technology 1,449,347 1,449,347

Total General Governement ___7,392,423 15,112,955 2,798,451 0 0 25,303,829

Education:
General Operations 7,491,794 115,133,842 2,620,516 7,748,294 132,994,446
Food Service 2,985,395 2,985,395
Student Transit 3,249,597 3,249,597

Total Education 7,491,794 115,133,842 8,855,508 0 7,748,294 139,229,438

Public Welfare and Recreation 251,453 6,419,553 2,604,282 4,526,566 2,878,801 16,680,655

Public Works:
Public Services 910,767 193,848 6,989,290 144,804,849 8,976,572 [61,875,326

>-' Recycling 462,980 462,980m

"'" Total Public Works 910,767 656,828 ___6,989,290 144,804,849 8,976,572 [62,338,306

Public Safety:
Police 5,999,451 1,204,396 7,203,847
Fire 3,629,485 5,402,711 9,032,196
Civil Defense 226,218 226,218

Total Public Safety 0 3,629,485 11,628,380 0 1,204,396 16,462,261

City Service:
Library [,772,967 6,893,988 8,666,955
Community Development 19,070 19,070
Metropolitan Transportation Planning 23,000 23,000

Total City Service L772,967 6,893,988 42,070 0 0 8,709,025

Total Governmenta[ Funds
Capital Assets $ 17,819,404 147,846,651 32,917,981 149,331,415 20,808,063 368,723,514

I This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly. the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from
the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmentai activities in the statement of net assets.

See Independent Auditors' Report



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNI\1ENTAL FliNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FliNCTION AND ACTIVITY'
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Funds Capital

Assets Assets
Function andj\ctiYity June 30,2008 Additions Deletions Adjustments June 30, 2009
General Government:

General Administration $ 23,883,186 251,272 (261,005) (18,971) 23,854,482
Information Technology 966,455 1,449,347

Total General Government 24,849,641 25,303,829

Education:
General Operations 124,262,854 9,226,290 (481,112) (13,586) 132,994,446
Food Service 2,890,820 300,578 (206,003) 2,985,395
Student Transit 3,195,974 414,198 (360,575) 3,249,597

Total Education __JiQ}49,648 9,941,066 (1,047,690) (13,586) 139,229,438

Public Welfare and Recreation:
Public Well'are and Recreation .._._~180,564 _.-..!.2.44,983 (75,306) 30,414 16,680,655

Total Public Welfare 15,180,564 1,544,983 (75,306) 30,414 16,680,655

Public Works:
Public Services 152,048,347 10,244,272 (493,443) 76, I50 161,875.326
Recycling 462,980 462,980

Total Public Works 152,5 11,327 10,244,272 (493,443) 76, ISO 162,338,306

Public Safety:
Police 5,936,173 1,781,195 (528,958) 15,437 7203,847
Fire 7,093,026 1,992,113 (69,010) 16,067 9,032,196
Civil Defense 303,079 (76,861 )

Total Public Safety 13,332,278 3,773,308 (597,968) (45,357)

City Service:
Library 8,666,955 8,666,955

Community Development 30,525 (I J,455) J9,070
Metropolitan Transportation Planning 23,000 23.000

Total City Service 8,697,480 23,000 ° (11,455) 8,709,025

Total Governmental Funds
Capital Assets $ 344,920,938 26,257,862 (2,488, J8 J) 32,895 368,723,514

I This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal
service funds are excluded from the above amounts, Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the statement of net assets,

See Independent Auditors' Report,
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CFDA
Number

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Pro&,-am NameiGrant Number

CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Grantor Agency /

Pass Through Agency
Balance

July 1,2008
Cash

Receipts Expenditures Adjustments
Balance

6130/2009

a;

'"

General Fund:
Pass Through State of TeUtle,fsee:

10.675 Urban & Conununity Forestry Program

Pass Through Other OrgtlUiZiltion.f:

93.044 Title IIl-B.!ll-D, & !fl-E
JOClTY-2007-HOOT-08

93,044 Title Ill-B. ill-D. & 111·£
JOClTY-2008-HOOT-09

Total General Fund

Transportation Planning Fund:
Pass 171Fouglt State of Tennessee:

20.514 Project TN-90-XOI2· PlannintyJResearch
Sec. 5303 - 000612306

20.205 Intelligent Vehicle Highway Systems
Admin -lTS-9447 (402)

20.205 H.ighway Planning and Constmction
Z-05-024246

Total TranspoltAtion Planning Fund

u.s. Dept. ofAgricutture

Urban & Community Forestry $ 11,000 11,000
Sub-lOta/ Pass 171rough Stale ojTennessee 0 11,000 11,000

U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Sen~ces

First TN Dev. District (from State of TN) (7,199) 6,719 480
U.S. Dept of Health and Human Services

First TN Dev. Dislrict (from State afTN) 46,607 47,200 (593) •
Sub-lotal Pass Through 01her Orgam'zaliol1s (7,199) 53,326 47,200 480 (593)

(7,199) 64,326 58,200 480 (593)

U.S. Department ofTranspartation
TN Dept. of TranSpOliation (9,349) 24,320 20,336 (5,365) •

U.S. Department of Transponation

TN Dept of Transportation (3,694) 7,472 7,674 (3.896) •
U.S, DepaIlment of Transponation

TN Dept. of TranspOltation (24,878) 102,658 114J36 (36,356) •

Sub-lOla! Pass Through .')'{a{e ofTcnHessee (37,921) 134,450 142J46 0 (45,617)

*' Receivable ** Unused Revenue

(Continued)



CfDA

Number Program Name/Grant Number

CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDlTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Forthe Fiscal Year En<led JuneJO, 2009

Grantor AgeI1CY /

Pass Through Agency

Balance
July 1,2008

Cash
Receipts Expenditures Adjustments

Balance
6130/2009

PRJMARY GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED):

f.Q1is:s GrantsFund~

Direct PnJgrallLs:

16.607 Bullet Proof Vest Program

#2000-BU-BX-0 I 007843

16.738 Byrne JAG I - JC!Wash Co Law Enfor

#2005-FI882-TN-DJ

16.738 Byrne JAG 11- JCfWash Co Law En for

#2006-DJ-BX-0740

16.738 Byrne JAG 111- JC!Wash Co Law Enfor
#2007-F1253-TN-DJ

16,738 Byme JAG IV - JCiWash Co Law Enfor

#2008-DJ-BX-0365
16,595 Central City Community Weed ,md Seed

#2007-WS-Q7-D270

u.s. Dept. of Justice

U.S, Dept of Justice

U,S, Dept ofJustice

U.S, Dept ofJustice

U.S. Dept ofJustice

U.S, Dept of Justice

Sub-total Direct Programs \ ........,

2,373

1,412

3,470 443

9,962 10,784

5,835

159,261 (57,955) *'
176,478 0 (40,893)

U. S, Dept. of Education
Jolmson City Schools 19,402 45,682

Suo-fotal Poss Through Local Agency 19A02 45,682

en
-..l

Pass Through State ofTenne3'see:
16580 Hyrne - Alcohol/Crime Investigator

#Z-99-088453-00
16.580 Byrne - Comprehensive Crime Initiative

#Z-99-08845J-00

Pass Through weal Agellcy_·

84.184 Safe Schools/Healthy Students Program

Total Police Grants Fund

U.S. Dept ofJustice
TN Dept ufFinance & Admin.

U,S, Dept. ofJustice
TN Dept. of Finance & Admin.

S'ub-totol Poss l1irough Stale ofTennessee \ ...."',

(51,524) 234,091

37,517
37,517

259,677

(9,937) •

° (9,937)

(26,280) •

(26,280)

0 (77,110)

Community Development Fund:
Direc.t Prognwls:

[4.2 t.8 Conununity Developlnent Block Grant
B-MC-47-0008

Total Community DeVelopment Fund

U.S. Dept. ofHousmg & Urban Dev.
(130,2 i 5) 608,182 (209,050) *'

Sub-fotal Direct Programs (13-0,215) 608,182 0 (209,0"::;0)

..;c Receivable "" Unused Revenue

(Contmued)



CFDA
Number Program NatnelGrant Nunlber

CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the FIscal Ye..· Ended June 30, 1009

Grantor Agency I
Pass Through Agency

Balance

July 1, 2008

Cash

Receipts Expenditures Adjustments
Balance

6/30/2009

en
00

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED):

Mass Transit Fund:
Direct Programs:

20516 Job Access - Operating
TN-37-X058

20507 Project #TN-90-X264 and #TN-90-X276

Operating
20.507 Project #TN-90-X216, #TN-90-X25I,

#TN-90-X264, #TN-90-X276,

#TN-90-X233 - ('Aipita!

Total Mass Transit Fund

School Federal Proiects Fund:
PaJ:f Through State 01 Tennessee:

84.002 Adult Basic Education
Z-07-D33707-Q0

84.048 Carl Perkins

84,184L TITLE rV.A Youth Violence & Drug Use Prevention

16,299 Drug-Free Communities Support Plan

84.213C Even Start Literacy

84.027 IDEA, Project

84.027 Preschool Incentive, Project

84.010 Title 1, Project

S4318X Title ll, Pan D

84.367A Title 0, Part A
Total Title l!

84.365A Title 1II, ESL

84.298A Title V, fnnovative Programs
.84. J86A Title V, Safe & Drug Free Schools & Communities

84.186B Titie V, Youth Viloence

Total Title V

U.S, Department ofTranspoI1ation

(23,486) 21,662 36,554 (38,378) •

U.s. Department of Transportatton
(234,838) 162,343 290,146 70,363 (292,178) •

U.S. Depattment of Transportation

(165,697) ]56,768 36,141 12,885 (32,185) •

Sub-toto; Direct Prof!.rams (424,021) 340,773 362,841 83,248 (362,841)

[424,021) 340,773 362,841 g3,24-8 (362,841)

Department of LabOf and Workforce
Development (25,118) 271,299 280,32 I (34,150) •

U.S. Department of Educatlon (66,486) 177,104 120,619 __(_10,001) •

U,S. Department of Eductlli-on 152,270 196,670 (44,400) •

Department of Human Services (10,500) 44,831 34,331

U.S. Department of Education 7,000 41,945 62,500 (13,555) •

U.S Department cfEdw:.miQD (351,545) 1,43g,528 1,328,340 (241.357) •

U.S. Department ofEducarion (13,872) 40,036 28,843 (2,679) •

U.S. Department of Education (210.496) 1,525,812 1,4 11,044 (95,728) •

V,S. Department of EdUCBiJOn (204) 13,608 13,574 (170) ..

U.S Department ofCducation (72.145) 373,246 347,597 (46,496) •

(72,349) 386,854 361,171 0 (46,666)

U.S. Department of Education (12,756) 32,302 ~f?2_~;;_8 ------
(17,292) •

U.S. Department of Education (7,734) 7,734

U.S. Department of EducatIOn (15,280) 37,087 24,298 (2,491) •

U.S. Department of EducatJOll (47,901) 102)20 90,000 (35,581) *
___(70,915) 147.141 114,298 0 (3g,072j

>;. Receivable .... Unused Revenue

(Continued)



crTY OF JOHNS_a.N CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENnrWR£S OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

CFDA
Number Prog@!l1 Name/Grant Number

Grantor Agency i
Pass Through Agency

Balance
July 1,2008

Casb
Receipts Expenditures Adjustm('111.s

Balance
6/30/2009

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED):

(5,525) •

(1,137) •

o

(12,757) •

(89,296) •

(44,651) •

(697,266)

o

309,042 268,790

64,861 ___5_5,056

127~~846

3,456 3,750

359,038 ~689

307,742 307,742
1,237,797 1,237,797

36,889 36,889

34,567 34,567
38] ,920 381,920

1,998,9]5 ~915

'71")1250 6,904,021

(843)

(53,009)

(15,330)

(18,266)

US Department of Education

S'u!J-fOwl Pass Through State afTennessee (914,495),~... ,.

U.S. Department ofEducatioll

u.s. Depanment of Education

Corporation fOf National and Community

U.s. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Department of Agriculture

Tenilessee Department of Agriculture
Tennessee Department {)f Agriculture

84.184L Heroes Element 4,5

10.533 National School Breakfast Program
10.555 National School Lunch Program
10.500 National School Snack Program
10.550 USDA: Commodity Supplemental

Feeding - Commodities Match
Feeding - Commodities Distributed

Total National School Programs

34.196 TITLE X, Part C,,\kKinney Homeless Grant

94.004 Learn and Serve

84.287C 21st Century Community Learning Center

SchoQll'edeml Projects Fund (Continued):
Pass Thr(Jugh State ofTen1lessec

84.215 TN's First Frontier Teaching American History

Total School Federal Project

m
(J)

Johnson City Power Board
Direct Programs:

11.300 Public Works Program
04-01-05832

U.S. Department ofCommerce
]00,000 100,000

Tut.1 JolllJsou City Power Boord Sub-toto! Direct Programs 100,000 JOO,OOO 0 0

TOTAL FEDER"'L GRANTS-PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (1,565,375) 8,524,237 8,435,067 83,728 (1,392,477)

NOTE A: BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal av/ards mc1udes the federal grant activity of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee and is presented all tbe accrual
basis of accounting, TIle information in this :schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements ofOI\-1B Circular A-133~Audits o.rS!aJe~<;. Local Governments,

and Non-Profit Organizafions Therefore. some amounts prese,]ted in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparanon of. the bask

financial statements.

N.QIt:.Jl;EQ.QP DlSTIU!.lJLTiON
Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule of expenditures offedcra! awards at the fair market value of -commodities received and used. The balance amounts

represent inventory on hand. Non-monetary assistance has no! been included III the financial statements.

,.. Receivable H Unused Revenue

See Independent Auditors' Rcpon.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY. TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
FOI- the Fi~cal Ye3r Ended June 30,2009

CFDA

Number Program Name/Grant Number

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Grantor Agency f Pass Tlu·ough Agency
Balance

July 1,2008

Cash

Receipts Expenditures Adjustments

Balance

JUlle 30, 2009

(1,667)

-J
o

General Fund:
Direct I'rugrmlts:

NfA State Boarding oCPrisoners

N/A Corrununity Enhancement Grant

Pass Through Otlter Organizations:

NfA Juvenile Court State Supplement

Z-06-D20439-00

N/A Senior Center Operations

JOClTY-2007-HOOT-08

N/A Senior Center- Operations
JOC1TY-2008-HOOT-09

Total General Fund

Police Grant Fund:
Direct Progral1Lf~'

20.601 Comprehensive Alcohol Risk Reduction
#Z-09-2 I4620-00

Tennessee Dept of COITection $ (114,460)

Tennessee Dept. ofState 3,000

Sub-towi Direct Programs (II 1,460)

TN Commission on Children & Youth

Washington County, TN

TN Commission on Aging

First TN Development District

TN Commission on Aging

First TN Development District

Suo-total Pass Through OlherOrgaiJizations (1,667)

(113,127)

TN Dept. of Transportation
Governor's Highway Safety Oft1ce

1,246,562

1,246,562

1,667

20,000

21,667

1,268,229

4,638

i,363,729

3,000

1,366,729

4,5GO

20,000

24,500

1,391,229

3,272

o
o

(231,627) •

(231,627)

(4,500) •

(4,500)

(236,127)

(3,584) •

20.601 Govemor's Highway Safety Office

#Z-08-023987-00

TN Dept. ofTransportatiQo
Govemor's Highway Safety Office (25,463) 28,960 3,497

N/A Community Enhancement Grant

Pass Through Other Organizatitms:

N/A Project Safe NeIghborhood!

interdiction PlusiC-09-0 199

NfA Project Safe Neighborhoodl

Community Anti'vlo1enceiC-09-D195

Total Police Grants Fund

Community Development Fund:
Direct Programs:

NfA Emergency Shelter Grant

Z-05-020660-G I

Total Community Development Fund

Tennessee Dept. ofState

Sub-total Direct Programs (25,463)

u. S. Attorney's Office

City of Knoxville
U. S. Attomey's Office

City of Knoxville

Sub-fotal Pass Through Otho- Organizations 0
(25,463)

TN DepL of Hwnan Services
(12,470)

(12,470)

4,975

38,623

38,623

2g,2~~4

28.244

4,975

16,744

127

607

734

17.478

89,132

89,182

o

tJ

(3,584)

(i27) •

(607) •

(734)

(4,318)

(73,403) •

(73,408)

'"' Receivable H Ul11.lsed Revenue

(Continued)



CITY Of JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE A WARDS

For the Fi8Gil Year Ended June 30. 20D9

CFDA Balance Cash Balance
Number Program Name/Grant Number Grantor Agency I Pass ll1fOUgh Agency July 1, 2008 Receipts Expenditures Adjustments June 30, 2009

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED):

[\rIa55 Transit:

NfA Job Access - Operating Tennessee Department ofTransportatioll

GG-07-12842, GG-06-12594 (5,694) 4,783 18,277 (19,188) •

N/A Project- Operating Tennessee Department ofTransportation

2-08-21340; 2-09-213797 (2,224) 2,224 102,994 (\02,994) •

N/A Proje<ot - Capital Tennessee Department ofTTI111Sportation
GG-06-12083; GG-07-12961;
GG-07-23861; GG-08-23860;

GG-07-12923; GG-09-26229 (16,240) 15,123 2,984 2,028 (2,073) •

Total fVlass Transit Fund (24,158) 22,130 124,255 2,028 (124,255)

Water & Sewer Fund:
Direct Programs:

N/A Water System Improvements U.S. Department of Economic and

American Water Heater Company Community Development (75,147) 593,288 563,922 (45,781) •

..... N/A Water System [mprovcIneufs US Department of Eronomic and
--..l Bayless Road Project Community Development (234,250) 234,250.....

Total Water & Sewer Fund (309,397) 827,538 563,922 0 (45,781)

Special School Projects Fund:

Pass Tilroug/l Slate ofTemlessee;

!'I/A Lottery Pre-K Tennessee Department of Education (71,637) 228,582 228,498 (71,553)

93,645 Family Resources Tennessee Department of Education (11,187) 35,508 33,300 (8,979)

Lottery for Education: Afterschool Pgm Tennessee Department of Education (28,367) 28,367

Lottery for Education: Afterschool Pgm Tennessee Oeparunent of EducatiDn (57,983) 112,713 75.,557 (20,827) •

Lottery for Education: Afterschool Pgm Termessee Department of Education (95,333) 95)33

Total LEAPS (181,683) 236,413 75,557 0 (20,827\

84126 Vocational Rehab U.s, Department of Education (2,360) 12,940 i 5,038 14,458)

NiA Safe Scl100ls Tennessee Dcpar1mcnt of Education (8,810) 31:649 31,667 (8,828)

., Receivable ** Unused Revenue

(Continued)



CITY OF .JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
For the FisCltl h,"' Ended June 30, 2009

CFDA
Nmuber Program Nmne!Grant Number

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT,

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED):

Special School Projects Fund (Continued);
Pass Through State of Tel1nessee:

Grantor Agencv I Pass Through Agency

Balance

July 1,2008

Cash

Receipts Expenditures Adjustments

Bnlance
June 30, 2009

TOTAL STATE GRANTS·PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

-.]

tv

Enforcing Underage Drinking

Coordinnted School Health

Total Special School Projects Fund

COMPONENT UNtTS

Johnson City Public Library:
Direct Programs:

N/A CommunIty Enhancement

Total Johnson City Public Libraf)'

Corporation for National and Community
Service

Tennessee Department of Education

State ofTcnncssce

(27,888) 51,072

(37,115) 111.060

(340,680) 707,224

(825,295) 2,891,988

7,500

7,500

40,912

108,002

532,974

2,719,040

7.500
7,500

2,028

I]

(17)28)

(34,057)

(166,430)

(650,319)

o

Johnson City Development Authority
Direc{ Programs:

NlA Three·Star Priority Grant

GG-08-24477-00

NtA Iv1ain Street Energy Efficient Liglns
<3<3-08-23571-00

Total Johnson City Development Authority

TOTAL STATE GRANTS·COMPONENT UNITS

TOTAL STATE GRANTS

U.5. Department of Economic and

Community Development
U.S. Deprutrnent of Economic and

Community Development

* Receivable

(2,500) 2,500

19,757 19,757

(2,500) 22,257 19,757

(2,500) 29,757 27,257

(827,795) 2,921,745 2,746,297

or_ .. Unused Revenue

o

2,028 (650.319)

See Independenl Audilors' Report



STATISTICAL SECTION

This paIi of the City of Johnson City, TN comprehensive annual financial repori presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the
government's overall financial health.

Contents:

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend inj"orrnation to help the reader
understand how the governments.financial pei:formance and lvell­
being have changed over tline.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government's most significant local revenue source, the propert)'

Debt Capacitv

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government's current levels «j" outstanding
debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the

fil/ure.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules ofleI' demoE!J'aphic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within '.vhich the
government'sf/nancial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the government's
.financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities itperforms.

Other Statistical Schedules
These statistical schedules present information that is required to
be presented by the State c<f Tennessee as supplementcll:V
injimnation.

P~lge

173

181

185

191

194

197

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial report for the relevant year.



Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Assets

Business-Type Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total BusineSS-Type Activities Net Assets

OTt OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED

(accrual basis of acconnting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

2001 2003 2004 1005

'£ 65,828,986 69,634,761 68,066,836 69,035,062
5,802,936 6,423,195 1,339,792 1,235,783
8,812,085 12,932,492 27,064,737 38,368,429

'£ 80,444,007 88,990,449 96,471,365 \08,639,274

$ 130,726,623 143,691,479 151,024,946 164,362,698
3,789,232 1,546,874 595,205 501,521
8,694,385 7,817,725 9,307,410 8,347,415

$ 143,210,240 153,056,07& 160,927,561 173,211,634

1006

67,480,139
1,108,571

51,502,610
120,09\,320

170,338,354
660,326

14,036,942
185,035,622

I-'

-.j

w

Primary Government

1nvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
UnrestrIcted

Tot31 Primary Government Net Assets

Governmental Actlvities
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted
TDtal Governmental Activities Net Assets

Busi ness-Type Acti vities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Business-Type Activities Net Assets

Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted
Total Pnmary Government Net Assets

Inl;)flnation not available prior to 2002

$ 196,555,609 213,326,241 219,091,782 233,397,760 237,818,493
9,592,168 7,970,069 1,934,997 1,737,304 1,768,897

17,506,470 20,750,217 36,372,147 46,715,844 65,539,552
$ 223,654,247 242,046,527 257,398,926 281,850,908 305,126,942

2007 200S 2009

S 67,467,865 93,255,452 \12,491,762
6,625,729 208,378

57,777,385 75,895,859 68,394,096
$ 131,870,979 169,151,311 181,094,236

$ 181,475,490 187,286,30 I 208,312,172

483,449 482,776 \,785,757

14,10\,598 20,336,22 I 15,865,673

196,060,537 208, I05,298 225,963,602

$ 248,943,355 280.54] ,753 320,803,934

7,109,178 482,776 1,994,135

71,878,983 96)32,080 84,259,769

'£ 327,931,5\6 377,256,609 407,057,838

See Independent Auditors' Report



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE HSCAL YEARS NOTED
(accrual basis of accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 11,404,279 10,381,350 7,249,216 7,518,525 7,102,418 10,246,706 12,982,708 13,517,750
Public Safety 17,178,099 17,322,254 17,676,316 18,254,020 19,537,869 20,196,334 23,050,291 23,320,230
Public Works 9,034,320 10,666,838 1l,581,458 10,648,651 11,740,047 11,954,349 11,759,714 14,699,318
Public Welfare 4,735,469 5,640,206 5,485,982 6,211,203 6,309,383 6,551,969 5,455,063 7,305,539
City Services 1,343,376 1,361,193 2,090,545 1,818,017 1,789,975 2,105,771 2,262,984 3,078,092
Education 43,763,902 45,705,523 48,542,847 51,957,017 54,448,620 57,396,706 61,434,692 63,517,290
Interest on Long-Tenn Debt 5,789,746 5,208,576 4,713,367 4,760,654 3,040,993 7,140,164 4,144,293 5,767,393

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 93,249,191 96,285,940 97,339,731 101,168,087 103,969,305 115,591,999 121,089,745 ~205,612

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer 16,047,642 15,871,722 16,885,803 17,309,426 18,616,496 21,053,584 21,710,919 22,830,928
City Solid Waste 6,523,049 6,603,231 6,737,417 6,654,113 7,040, ll5 7,294,552 7,813,531 8,060,129

..... Regional Solid Was1e 1,634,139 1,208,387 1,272,173 1,410,536 1,615,196 1,658,724 1,818,585 1,871,460
--.) Johnson City Power Board 104,882,717 112540,287 118,868,370 119,754,592 133,197,667 143,319,219 153,413,844 178,834,070""-

Public Building Authority 2,536,430 3,437,385 3,295,700 2,376,597 2,294,949 2,107,230 1,805,760 1,984,687
Mass Transit 1,796,611 1,757,068 1,934,480 1,901,831 2,193,038 2,489,530 2,842,568 3,021,432
Stormwater Management 144,542 495,011 773,631
Golf Courses 1,498,244 1,247,855 1,217,833 1,231,510 1,393,946 1,472,066 1,462,210 1,330,540

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 134,918,832 142,665,935 150,211,776 150,638,605 166,351,407 179,539,447 191,362,428 218,706,877

Totai Primary Government Expenses $ 228,168,023 238,951,875 247,551,507 251,806,692 270,320,712 295,131,446 312,452,173 349,912,489

(Continued)



CfTY OF JOHNSON CfTY, TENNESSEE
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(accrual basis of accountingl

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Program Revenues
- -------------

Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:

Public Satety $ 2,365,752 2,699,122 1,351,314 1,470,777 1,577,697 1,507,099 1,586,621 2,011,006
City Services 240,(l95 1,147,694 2,419,198 2,105,424 2,113,662 2,445,477 2,441,483 3,578,736
Education 2,556,732 2,415,390 2,262,888 2,445,031 2,708,056 3,038,039 2,752,587 2,844,579
Other Activities 2,443,996 1,698,033 1,224,777 1,232,901 2,469,235 2,332,593 2,829,651 3,430,184

Operating Grants and Contributions 24,102,639 24,646,466 26,225,494 30,133,808 30,516,925 33,419,313 35,525,329 36,812,90 I
Capital Grants and Contributions 4,702,519 2,277,006 626238 164,833 31,055

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 31,709,214 37,309,224 35,760,677 38,014,179 39,550,408 42,742,521 45,166,726 48,677,406

Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:

Water and Sewer 17)06,771 19,631,344 19,690,045 20,288,469 21,772,092 23,133,709 23,543,970 25,057,671

r-" City Solid Waste 6,635,333 7,468,291 7,897,479 7,917,942 8,257,612 8,622,823 9,100,844 8,902,029
--J Johnson City Power Board 111,054,311 118,634,679 124,669,151 128,314,735 141,680,530 150,526,423 161,195,320 193,154,773Cll

Other Activities 4,633,523 5,444,811 5,621,249 5,194,686 5,277,396 5,499,351 6,653,378 7,238,218
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,275,705 1,417,259 1,142,869 995,661 1,103,458 1,249,319 1,509,571 1,702,482
Capital Grants and Contributions 303,981 1,306,351 1,090,342 !,717,925 818,212 397,599 797,607 724,175

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 141,609,624 153,902,735 160,11 J,135 164,429,418 178,909,300 189,429,224 202,800,690 236,779,348

Total Primary Government Program Revenues $ 173,318,838 191,211,959 195,871,812 202,443,597 218,459,708 232,17J,745 247,967,416 285,456,754

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities $ (61,539,977) (58,976,7 J6) (61,579,054) (63,153,908) (64,4 18,897) (72,849,478) (75,923,019l (82,528,206)
Business-Type Activities 6,690,792 11,236,800 9,899,359 13,790,813 12,557,893 9,889,777 11,438,262 18,072,471
Total Primary Government Nct (Expense) $ (54,849,185) (47,739,916) (51,679,695) (49,363,095) (51,861,004) (62,959,70 It (64,484,757) (64,4)5,735)

(Continued)



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(accrual basis of accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

governmental Activities:
Taxes:

Property Taxes $ 28,998,959 29,408,782 30,057,774 32,741,230 33,591,476 34,543,483 36,458,981 36,519,412
Sales Taxes 28,278,484 27,419,503 28,721,469 30,095,052 32,012,124 33,525,842 34,904,671 33,539,491
Other Taxes 6,853,737 6,777,017 6,477,387 6,867,324 7,510,307 7,802,498 8,474,886 8,244,855

Unrestricted Investment Eamings 433,546 371,760 270,478 737,108 1,858,159 2,775,619 2,560,328 1,305,131
Miscellaneous 2,173,707 1,802,171 1,530,007 1,366,945 174,525 5,889,333 29,340,255 12,780,319
Transfers 589,438 2,013,728 2,148,158 2,278,248 2,098,500 1,565,076 2,203,230 2,081,923

Total Governmental Activities 67,327,871 67,792,961 69,205,273 74,085,907 77,245,091 86,101,851 113,942,351 94,471,131

Business-Tvpe Activities:
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 1,461,450 373,899 245,100 332,770 1,167,313 2,770,991 2,350,892 1,857,877

...... Miscellaneous 233,447 382,479 438,738 197,282 (5,428) 458,838 9,879
;;; Transfers (589,438) (2,013,728) (2,148,158) (2,278,248) (2,098,500) (1,565,076) (2,203,230) (2,081,923)
Total Business-Type Activities 1,105,459 (1,257,350) ( 1,903,058) (1,506,740) (733,905) 1,200,487 606,500 (214,167)

Total Primary Government $ 68,433,330 66,535,611 67,302,215 72,579,167 76,511,186 87,302,338 114,548,851 94,256,964

Change in Net Assets
Governmental Activities $ 5,787,894 8,816,245 7,626,219 10,931,999 12,826,194 13,252,373 38,019,332 11,942,925

Business-Type Activities 7,796,251 9,979,450 7,996,30 I 12,284,073 11,823,988 11,090,264 12,044,762 17,858,304
Total Primary Government $ 13,584,145 18,795,695 15,622,520 23,216,072 24,650,182 24,342,637 50,064,094 29,801,229

1nfonnation not available prior to 2002,

Note: Amounts from prior years have bcen reclassified between categories fi'om the original presentation in the relevant ycar CAFR to contonn to the presentation ofthe current year CAFR,

Sec Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(accrual basis of accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal In-Lieu of Local Sales State Sales Local Beer Local Liquor Hotel! Motel Franchise Telephone! Other
Year Property Tax Tax Tax Tax Business Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Cable Tax Taxes Total--
2000 23,180,852 2,661,762 22,561,606 1,027,605 1,569,562 300,549 821,117 497,731 278,277 52,899,061
2001 24,620,392 3,516,368 23,314,961 1,070,085 1,629,893 297,675 852,688 456,646 467,264 56,225,972
2002 27,756,409 1,242,550 24,944,155 3,334,329 1,345,704 1,533,506 340,401 789,544 534,241 547,142 1,568,308 63,936,289
2003 28,189,818 1,218,964 24,072,977 3,346,526 1,311,531 1,654,319 359,470 771,638 313,280 556,094 1,810,685 63,605,302
2004 28,749,841 1,307,933 25,462,839 3,258,630 1,405,547 1,725,538 372,019 842,594 687,446 589,580 854,663 65,256,630
2005 31,429,944 1,311,286 26,712,881 3,382,171 1,534,947 1,805,940 361,364 885,521 516,393 577,627 1,185,532 69,703,606
2006 32,167,845 1,423,631 28,294,239 3,717,885 1,647,154 1,816,061 446,371 958,196 701,976 588,419 1,352,130 73,113,907
2007 33,064,284 1,479,199 29,452,416 4,073,426 1,743,053 1,754,139 551,289 1,002,315 495,264 629,898 1,626,540 75,871,823
2008 34,913,535 1,545,446 30,809,215 4,095,456 1,836,729 1,953,748 517,842 1,035,770 485,807 787,281 1,857,709 79,838,538
2009 35,131,195 1,388,217 29,811,023 3,728,468 1,774,822 2,060,432 520,586 979,246 526,233 940,182 1,443,354 78,303,758

Infonnation prior to 2002 is presented using the modified accrual basis ofaccounting.

See Independent Auditors' Report.



General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total General Fund

CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(U naudited)

Fiscal Year
2000 200] 2002 ZOO)

$ 193,003 419,344 506,239 715,889
5,804,552 2,024,867 5,343,621 5,949,014

$ 5,997,555 2,444,211 5,849,860 6,664,903

2004

2,239,857
8,585,184

10,825,041

l\11 Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds

Total all Other Governmental Funds

$ 1,872,980 1,681,294 1,968,692 2,049,980 2,405,3 70

718,608 1,581,365 4,585,218 6,391,322 6,838,620
(10,613,448) 7,905,828 3,992,758 3,812,255 2,950,645

$ (8,021,860) 11,168,487 10,546,668 12,253,557 12,194,635

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
General Fund

Reserved $ 2,739,904 3,139,975 2,703,817 474,316

Unreserved 11,085,672 14,209,712
Total General Fund $ 13,825,576 17,349,687

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 2,926,613 3,279,288 3,421,588 3,955,386 47,183.838

Unreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue Funds 7,359,144 7, I00,574 6,914,743 6,324,458 5,957,029

Capital Project Funds 8,858,602 17,156,764 15,718,186 35,826,059 141
Total all Other Governmental Funds $ 19,144,359 27,536,626 26,054,517 46, I 05,903

See Independent Auditors' Report,
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CITY OF JOHNSON GTY, TENNESSEE
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVER.:"IMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Revenues:
Taxes 52,899,061 56,225,972 58,643,682 58,660,691 61,331,670 65,078,164 68,016,783 69,998,114 73,777,660 73,551,309
Licenses and Permits 873,542 720,622 817,347 693,800 907,393 988,999 1,141,199 1,063,241 1,014,440 908,596
Intergovernmental 29,114,849 36,011,746 30,817,336 31,661,321 32,455,612 35,091,817 37,522,888 44,326,252 70,373,307 53,773,849
Charges for Services 2,736,090 2,890,217 3,214,386 3,246,883 3,160,152 3,299,506 3,474,166 3,493,097 3,528,793 3,643,785
Fines and Forfeitures 665,026 798,680 1,137,169 1,310,573 1,321,820 1,443,058 1,550,283 1,398,894 1,491,732 1,426,561
Use of Property 1,898,283 2,352,988 1,623,901 1,710,307 2,662,326 2,290,344 2,019,665 2,384,145 2,410,381 3,290,690
Investment Eamings 418,392 242,262 507,299 371,760 251,925 632,101 1,541,663 2,292,312 2,187,458 1,230,320
Miscellaneous 1,144,197 1,752,995 1,079,005 1,017,049 875,424 701,751 l,211,931 1,307,966 1,716,494 2,700,532

Total Revenues 89,749,440 100,995,482 97,840,125 98,672,384 102,966,322 109,525,740 116,478,578 126,264,021 156,500,265 140,525,642

Expenditures;
General Government 8,976,747 10,017,967 10,863,994 9,940,946 9,436,485 9,593,656 9,848,863 10,411,369 11,085,668 11,160,930
Public Safety 15,319,127 17,263,94I 16,451,487 16,900,884 17,371,848 17,924,968 19,207,764 19,942,643 22,670,820 22,861,216

;;:; Public Works 6,589,137 6,587,092 6,127,143 7,801,801 8,059,691 7,518,536 8,006,327 9,090,597 10,090,160 10,888,843
Public Welfare 6,033,120 5,561,905 5,790,202 5,387,930 5,215,580 5,894,087 6,048,271 6,257,074 6,390,206 6,764,906
City Services 2,028,975 2,267,819 1,015,110 1,107,267 1,893,464 1,618,348 1,574,399 1,946,010 2,040,465 2,968,013
Education 39,598,870 4 [,4 11,565 40,734,322 43,342,763 45,358,328 48,675,282 51,032,222 54,888,885 58,097,916 60,418,934
Miscellaneous 118,270 91,743 287,353 17,436 63,273 18,423 19,000 21,645
Capital Outlay 15,845,065 14,551,960 6,249,147 3,096,956 3,557,667 7,505,676 6,450,204 10,734,831 13,732,994 26,201,893
Debt Service:

Principal 6,[ 76,202 6,695,416 7,185,853 7,550,040 7,146,592 . 7,386,039 7,447,570 7,101,614 6,763,728 4,656,946
Interest and Fiscal Fees 6,000,451 6,397,812 5,819,175 5,244,117 4,713,367 4,598,310 5,611,096 9,245,927 5,158,406 5,570,605
Other Charges 126,981 330,819 9,410 266,066 304,043

Tota[ Expenditures 106,8 [2,945 Ill,178,039 100,533,196 100,390,140 l02,816,295 110,999,391 115,530,759 129,637,950 [36,()JO,363 [51,513,931

Excess of revenues
over (under) expendi tures (17,063,505) (10,182,557) (2,693,071) (1,717,756) 150,027 (1,473,651 ) 947,8[9 (3,373,929) 20,469,902 (10,988,289)

(Continued)



GTY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
CHANGES IN fUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL fUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers (Net) (1,456,461) (1,497,235) 1,862,307 2,013,728 2,142,158 2,254,158 2,027,000 1,280,965 1,923,228 1,818,432
Loss on Investments
Notes Issued
Refunding Bonds Issued 11,460,900 6,230,000 29,085,001 6,750,000 66,520,000
Refunding Bond Payments (11,380,809) (5,890,000) (25,574,44I) (6,675,000) (68,925,000)
Bond Issued 18,700,000 27,100,000 921,038 2,090,751 8,249,610 7,000,000 12,242,223
Refunding Bonds Premium 58,861 15,425 1,873,661
Insurance Recovery 71,623
Sale of Property 392,735 10,525 412,631 416,597 66,467 317,641 1,490,276 432,995 143,145 1,186,158
Capital Leases 403,802 495,161

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 17,636,274 25,613,290 3,20 I,976 4,521,076 2,618,427 11,031,984 10,932,701 5,224,520 2,141,373 15,210,635

g;Net Change in Fund Balances 572,769 15,430,733 508,905 2,803,320 2,768,454 9,558,333 11,880,520 1,850,591 22,61 [,275 4,222,]46

Debt Service as a Percentage
of Noncapital Expenditures 13.5% 13.9% 13-8% 132% lL9% IL9% 12.5% 14.0% 14.8% 13.0%

Note: Amounts from prior years have been reclassified between categories from the original presentation in the relevant year CAFR to confonn to the presentation of the current year CAFR.

See [ndependent Auditors' Report.



crTY OF ,JOHNSON crTY, TENNESSEE

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OJ<' TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

Real Property
Fiscal
Year Industrial &

Ended Tax Residential & Commercial
June 30 Year Farm Property Property---

2000 1999 422,327,350 390,315,160
2001 2000 435,578,550 408,159,132

2002 2001 460,694,975 406,847,400
2003 2002 473,877,275 417,779,120
2004 2003 489,975,800 419,548,720
2005 2004 586,366,747 512,287,398
2006 2005 608,631,775 519,232,096
2007 2006 638,630,400 527,884,240
2008 2007 675,793,350 555,791,560
2009 2008 693,472,459 569,623,983

00

Total Assessed Value as a
Personal Tota! Taxable Direct Estimated Actual Percentage of
Property Public Utility Assessed Value Tax Rate Taxable Value Actual Value

98,847,526 33,999,226 945,489,262 1.87 3,056,405,828 30,93%
112,630,088 36,911,863 993,279,633 1.87 3,159,332,578 31.44%

117,302,952 43,817,031 1,028,662,358 2.15 3,247,881,063 31.67%
116,420,340 38,519,170 1,046,595,905 2.15 3,328,062,244 31.45%
110,603,453 40,775,100 1,060,903,073 2,15 3,406,701,422 31.14%
115,283,797 48,675,887 1,262,613,829 1.93 4,011,552,024 31.47%
113,193,113 44,989,552 1,286,046,536 1.93 4,097,250,413 31.39%
101,]64,219 42,025,565 1,309,904,424 1.93 4,243,334,375 30.87%
111,531,042 41,392,490 1,384,508,442 1.93 4,574,3 79,041 30,27%
10 1,474,853 38,786,092 1,403,357,387 1.93 4,605,069,088 30.47%

Source: City of Johnson City Finance Department

Note: Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value

See Independent Auditors' Report.



crTY OF JOHNSON crTY, TENNESSEE
PROPERTY TAX RATES (per SlOO assessed value)
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009--- ----

Johnson City Direct Rates 1.87 1.87 2.15 2.15 2.15 1.93 1.93 1.99 193 1.54

Wa~hington County Direct Rates
General 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.68 0.63 0,63 0.63 0.82 0.83 0.65
Upkeep (Highway) 0.16 0.16 0.16 0,16 0,14 0,14 0,14 0.19 0.19 0.15
General Purpose School 0,76 0,76 0.76 076 082 082 0.82 0.82 0,88 0.68
Debt Service 0.31 0.30 0.30 0.27 0.23 0.23 0.36 0.47 050 0.39
Solid Waste/Sanitation 0.04 0.05 005 0,06 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.04

Total Direct Rate 1:93 1.93 1':93 ----r:93 187 187 2.00 2.35 2.45 1.91

Carter County Direct Rates
I-' General 0.71 069 0.68 0.72 0.85 085 0.78 0.73 075 0,80
00 Highway/Public Works 008 007 008 0,08 008 0.10 0.09 0.10 0.10 0.10N

General Purpose Schools 1A2 1.24 1.24 124 US 1.25 0.96 0.96 0.96 0.96
General Debt Service 0.25 0.18 0.38 0.36 0.)7 0.31 OAI

Total Direct Rate 2:46 ------zn 2.56 2.56 2,10 2.l0 2,22

Sullivan County Rates 2,58 263 235 235 2.36 2,67 2.53 253 253 2,53

See Independent .Auditors' Report,



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(Unaudited)

2009 2000
Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total
Taxable Taxable

Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed
Taxpayer Assessed Value Rank Value Assessed Value Rank Value--Johnson City Venture LLC (Mall) $ 18,481,040 1 1.3% 17,367,960 2 1.8%

United Telephone SE Inc 15,877,537 2 1.1% 22,076,323 1 2.3%
Mountain States Properties 9,689,142 3 0.7% 11,808,840 3 1.2%
American Water Heater Company 7,953,550 4 0.6% 5,293,719 9 0.5%
Atmos Energy Corporation 7,634,866 5 0.5% 6,564,177 5 0.7%
Johnson City Crossing LLC 6,955,715 6 0.5% 6,524,680 6 0.7%
Aborcraft Floors 5,873,599 7 0.4% CJ.O%

Sams East Inc. 5,757,908 8 0.4% 000
'0

John A. Pritchett, Jr. 5,528,910 9 0.4% 4,839,000 10 0.5°1<,
Robert Bosch Corporation 5,393,079 10 0.4% 10,302,878 4 I. I 0/;)

Hanis-Tarkett Inc 0.0% 5,876,533 8 0.6%
Siemens Industrial Automation 0.0% 5,926,226 7 0.6%

Totals $ 89,145,346 6.3% $ 96,580,336 10.0%

Total Taxable Assessed Value:

FYE 2009 (Tax Vear 2008)
FYE 2000 (Tax Vear 1999)

1,403,357,387
965,628,237

Source: City of Johnson City Finance Department

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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Total Collections to Date

CITY OF JOHNSON CITY. TENNESSEE
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Collected within the Fiscal Year
of the Levy

Fiscal Year Subsequent Percentage Collections in
Ended June Tax Levy for Adjustments Adjusted Tax of Adjusted Subsequent

30 Fiscal Year to Levy Levy Amount Levy Years

2000 17,970,361 (11,072) 17,959,289 16,944,556 94.35% 1,008,211
2001 18,558,384 (44,575) 18,513,809 17,756,760 95.91% 742,792

2002 21,!l7,931 874,982 21,992,913 21,108,710 95.98% 869,295
2003 22,071,665 215,049 22,286,714 21,613,078 96.98% 652,364
2004 22,723,186 37,367 22,760,553 22,019,690 96.74% 658,818
2005 24,282,470 (49,021) 24,233,449 23,694,840 97.78% 481,630
2006 23,967,796 392,286 24,360,082 23,677,242 97.20% 607,308
2007 25,245,152 199,823 25,444,975 24,718,999 97.15% 640,180
2008 26,684,753 (51,078) 26,633,675 25,856,042 97.08% 556,517
2009 26,298,062 748,932 27,046,994 25,979,435 96.05%

00
;"'-

Source: City of Johnson City Finance Department

See Independent Auditors' Report.

Amount
17,952,767
18,499,552
21,978,005
22,265,442
22,678,508
24,176,470
24,284,550
25,359,179
26,412,559
25,979,435

Percentage
of Adjusted

Levy
99.96%
99.92%
99.93%
99.90%
99.64%
99.76%
99.69%
99.66%
99.17%
96.05%

UIIcollected
Delinquent

Taxes
6,522

14,257

14,908
21,272
82,045
56,979
75,532
85,796

221,116
1,067,559



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Year General General Lease and Percentage
Ended June Obligation Notes Capital Obligation Revenue Notes Total Primary of Personal

30 Bonds Payable Lease Bonds Bonds Payable Government Income Per Capita
2000 113,403,739 2,234,517 39,187,239 64,342,998 47,800 219,216,293 17.16% 3,911
2001 134,077,206 1,965,667 47,452,907 63,110,997 23,900 246,630,677 18.40% 4,389
2002 128,094,467 1,683,591 46,162,236 58,589,000 234,529,294 16.69% 4,079
2003 120,825,645 1,402,373 44,125,074 54,436,000 448,936 221,238,028 15.42% 3,836
2004 113,974,350 1,107,076 296,744 41,980,980 50,813,000 823,787 208,995,937 14.07% 3,599
2005 114,752,367 1,517,241 201,735 39,624,138 47,220,000 939,804 204,255,285 13.14% 3,456
2006 114,641,644 1,229,264 102,875 68,641,159 43,560,000 929,286 229,104,228 14.15% 3,797
2007 109,503,087 927,757 68,828,203 49,195,000 1,076,167 229,530,214 14.03% 3,763

,.... 2008 102,112,462 613,189 66,994,395 73,900,000 1,028,253 244,648,299 14.04% 3,947
00
(Jl 2009 107,812,843 284,000 368,450 64,400,485 70,390,000 978,095 244,233,873 13.49% 3,888

Note:
-Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fmancial statements.
-See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

See Independent Auditors' Report.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
RAnos OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Percentage of
Fiscal Year General Less: Amounts Estimated Actual
Ended June Obligation Available in Debt Net General Taxable Value of

30 Bonds Service Funds Obligation Bonds Propel-ty Per Capita
2000 113,403,739 (1,60 J,932) 111,801,807 3,66% J,995
2001 134,077,206 (I,37J,745) 132,705,461 4,20% 2,362
2002 128,094,467 (1,287,353) 126,807, 114 3.90% 2,205
2003 120,825,645 (1,212,470) 119,613,175 3,59% 2,074
2004 113,974,350 (1,141,370) 112,832,980 3.31% 1,943
2005 114,752,367 (1,036,938) 113,715,429 2,83% J,924
2006 114,641,644 (905,407) J J3,736,237 2,78% 1,885
2007 J09,503,087 (I, I09,636) 108,393,45 J 2,55% 1)77
2008 102,112,462 (795,124) 101,317,338 2,21%, 1,634
2009 107,812,843 41,9J4 107,854,757 2.34~/o 1,717

Note:
-Details regarding the City'S outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the .financial statements,
-See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for property value data,
-See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data,
·'The General Obligation Bonds above do not include General Obligation Bonds of The Business-Type funds which are anticipated to
be paid back from Business revenues,

See Independent Auditors' Report,

186



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Governmental Unit
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:

Carter County

Sullivan County
Washington County

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt

City of Johnson City Direct Debt

Debt
Outstanding

$ 37,699,272

51,451,207
149,935,000
239,085,479

107,812,843

Estimated
Percentage
Applicable

2.00%
0.04%

62.00%

100.00%

Estimated Share
of Overlapping

Debt

753,985
20,580

92,959,700
93,734,265

107,8 I2.843

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Sources:

-City of Johnson City Finance Department
-County Governments

201 108

NQ~: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Johnson City.
This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long­
term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into
account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible
for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

Debt Limit

Total Net Debt
Applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Margin

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
$ 94548,916 99,327,963 102,866,236 104,659,591 106,090,307 126,261,383

71,035,936 92,264,403 86,976,664 80,397,842 74,396,547 76,189,564

$ 13,512,990 7,063,560 15,889,571 14,261,749 31,693,760 50,071,819

2006
128,604,654

77,278,841

51,325,813

2007

130,990,442

72,297,357

58,693,085

2008
138,450,844

66,363,920

71,086,924

2009
140,335,739

74,181,737

66,154,002

Total Net Debt
Appl icable to the
Limit as a Percentage
of Debt Limit 75.13°;'(, 92.89% 84.55% 76,82% 70,13% 60.34% 6009% 55.19% 47.93% 52.860/Q

00
00

I --- Legal Debt Margiu Calculation for Fiscal Year 2009 I

Total Taxable Assessed Value

Debt Lim it (1 0% of Taxable Assessed Value)

Debt Applicable to Limit:
General Obligation Debt
Less: Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Margin

$

$

1,403,357,387

140)35,739

107,812,843
(33,631,106)
74,181,737

66,154,002

Note: Under the City of Johnson City'S Charter, the City's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 10 percent of total taxab!e assessed property value, By law, the general obligation debt
subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying general obligation bonds.

See Independent Auditors' Repor1



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Debt Service
Fiscal Operating Less: Operating Net Available
Year Revenue Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds:
2000 18,829,366 10,352,608 8,476,758 3,867,000 1,578,335 5,445,335 1.56
2001 18,262,236 11,475,442 6,786,794 2,857,001 1,709,359 4,566,360 1.49
2002 17,706,771 10,555,308 7,151,463 3,166,997 1,464,644 4,631,641 1.54
2003 19,626,789 10,920,221 8,706,568 2,733,000 1,335,810 4,068,810 2.14
2004 19,690,045 11,501,842 8,188,203 2,293,000 1,203,915 3,496,915 2.34
2005 20,288,469 11,952,939 8,335,530 2,483,000 1,109,675 3,592,675 2.32
2006 21,772,092 16,415,529 5,356,563 2,545,000 1,052,982 3,597,982 1.49
2007 23,133,709 17,882,817 5,250,892 2,025,000 937.308 2,962,308 1.77

2008 23,543,970 18,6] 6,888 4,927,082 ] ,960,000 703,327 2,663,327 185
2009 25,057,671 20,944,823 4,112,848 2,035,000 626,270 2,661,270 1.55

City Solid Waste Revenue Bonds:
2000 6,699,036 6,442,559 256,477 115,000 82,068 197,068 1.30
2001 6,212,455 6,748,753 (536,298) 120,000 99,454 2]9,454 (2.44)
2002 6,635,333 5,543,526 1,09],807 245,000 95,080 340,080 3,21

2003 7,468,291 5,909,997 1,558,294 255,000 82,505 337,505 4.62

2004 7,897,479 6,077,126 1,820,353 275,000 67,504 342,504 5.3]

2005 7,917,942 5,996,550 1,921,392 285,000 53,082 338,082 5.68
2006 8,257,612 6,79],872 1,465,740 160,000 40,020 200,020 7.33
2007 8,622,823 7,045,184 ],577,639 170,000 31,060 201,060 7,85

2008 9,100,844 7,586,586 1,514,258 180,000 21,068 201,068 7.53

2009 8,902,029 7,862,839 1,039,190 190,000 11,020 20L020 5,17

Regional Solid Waste Revenue Bonds:
2000 1,403,026 1,222,182 180,844 135,000 15,625 150,625 1.20

2001 1,497,806 1,386,409 111,397 140,000 18,301 158,301 0.70
2002 1,578,419 1,372,532 205,887 150,000 10,144 160,144 1.29
2003 1,728,755 1,072,280 656,475 155,000 3,643 158,643 4.14

2004 1,809,069 1,152,122 656,947 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2005 1,892,638 1,290,443 602,195 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2006 2,001,125 1,608,350 392,775 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2007 2,080,774 1,655,070 425,704 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2008 2,191,065 1,818,585 372,480 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2009 2,313,041 1,87],460 441,581 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Golf Course Revenue Bonds:
2000 552,872 457,620 95,252 110,000 30,426 140,426 0.68
2001 498,628 491,734 6,894 115,000 24,783 139,783 005
2002 538,747 507,895 30,852 120,000 19,650 139,650 0,22

ZOO3 533,449 467,528 65,921 130,000 13,650 143,650 0.46
2004 501,343 476,022 25,321 135,000 6,435 141,435 0.18
2005 493,298 497,651 (4,353) N/A N/A N/A N/A
2006 991,748 1,188,143 (196,395) N/A N/A N/A N/A
2007 1,034,672 1,240,899 (206,227) N/A N/A N/A N/A
2008 1,093,309 1,288,126 (194,817) N/A N/A NlA N/A
2009 1,029,325 1,216,370 (187,045) N/A N/A N/A N/A

(Continued)
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
PLEDGED·REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Debt Service
Fiscal Operating Less: Operating Net Available
Year Revenue Expenses Revenue Principal Inten~st Total Coverage

Johnson City Power Board Revenue Bonds:
2000 111,275,891 100,556,971 10,718,920 765,000 1,481,409 2,246,409 4.77
2001 116,106,756 104,328,939 11,777,817 800,000 936,979 1,736,979 6.78
2002 111,054,311 99,973,365 11,080,946 840,000 1,474,301 2,314,301 4.79
2003 118,634,679 107,479,291 11,155,388 880,000 1,433,510 2,313,510 4.82
2004 124,669,151 113,013,470 11,655,681 929,121 1,384,892 2,314,013 5.04
2005 128,314,735 113,411,634 14,903,101 980,000 1,330,569 2,310,569 6.45
2006 141,680,530 131,546,144 10,134,386 1,035,000 1,276,389 2,311,389 4.38
2007 150,526,423 141,778,812 8,747,611 1,095,000 1,218,689 2,313,689 378
2008 161,195,320 151,860,753 9,334,567 1,155,000 1,613,906 2,768,906 3.37
2009 193,154,773 176,106,527 17,048,246 1,285,000 2,498,869 3,783,869 4.51

tJQk:
-Detal Is regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
-Operating Expenses do not include interest
-Prior to 2006, the Golf Course Revenue Bonds were maintained in the Buffalo Valley Golf'Course Fund prior to this funds combination
with the City's other golf course to create the Golf Course Fund,

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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crTY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATfSTfCS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CD naud ited)

Education

Level in
Per Capita Years of

Fiscal Year Personal Median Formal School Unemployment
Ended June 30 Population Personal Income Income I Age Schooling Enrollment Rate

2000 56,052 ] ,277,200,872 22,786 36.9 13.44 6,732 4.0%
200] 56,194 ],340,732,646 23,859 36.9 13.44 6,655 4.7%
2002 57,50] ],405,266,939 24,439 36.9 13.44 6,805 5.3~~

2003 57,671 1,435,200,506 24,886 36.9 13.44 6,778 5.1%
2004 58,078 ],485,809,474 25,583 36.9 13.44 6,778 5.0%
2005 59,099 1,554,244,601 26,299 36.9 13.44 6,766 5.6%
2006 60,333 1,618,553,391 26,827 39.7 13.44 6,998 4.9%
2007 60,990 1,636,178,730 26,827 39.2 13.44 7,052 4.2%
2008 61,990 ],742,848,850 28,115 39.2 13.44 7,180 6.6%

2009* 62,811 1,810,338,642 28,822 39.2 13.44 7,275 9.9%

Sources:
-Johnson City Economic Development Board
-Tennessee Department of Labor & Workforce Development
-State of the Cities Data Systems (SOCDS-HUD)
-Johnson City School System
-Johnson City Chamber of Commerce
-U. S. Census Bureau

I Data presented is for \Vashington County, TN

*projected

See Independent Auditors' Repol1.
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GTY OF .JOHNSON GTY. TENNESSEE
PRTNCIPAI, EMPLOYERS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(Unaudited)

2009 2003*
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment---
Mountain States Health Alliance 3,541 1 6.3% 3,541 I 6.3%
East Tennessee State University 2,330 2 4.2% 2,012 2 3.6%
CITI Commerce Solution 1,950 3 3.5% 1,817 3 33%
James H. Quillen VA Medical Center 1,592 4 2.8% 1,259 4 2.3%
Advanced Call Center Technologies 1,400 5 2.5% 0.0%
Washington County School System 1,200 6 2.1% 1,150 6 2.1%
American Heater Company 1,170 7 2.1% 1,200 5 2.2%
City ofJohnson City 853 8 1.5% 824 8 1.5%
Johnson City School Systems 8~') 9 1.5% 920 7 1.6%.:J~

AT & T Mobility 650 [0 1.2% 805 9 1.4%
Siemens Energy & Automation, Inc. N/A 730 10 1.3%

15,518 27.7% 14,258 25.6%

Total Washington County Employment:
FYE 2009
FYE 2003

55,860
55,800

Sources:
-Johnson City Economic Development Board
-Tennessee Department of Labor & Workforce Development
-First Tennessee Development District

*Principal Employer infonnation is not available prior to FY 2003

See Independent Auditors' Report.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
FULL-TfME EQUfVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTfON

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
Function 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General Government 143 135 125 120 116 91 94 96 96
Public Safety 319 310 295 294 294 310 297 294 280
Public Works 92 86 91 90 89 90 94 90 92
Public Welfare 90 85 74 74 74 74 75 68 60
City Services 42 34 36 34 34 34 36 34 34
Education 850 857 860 827 829 832 832 846 900
Water and Sewer 160 139 142 145 146 150 153 147 145
Solid Waste 62 56 49 47 45 46 47 47 47
Stann Water Mgmt 7 7
Mass Transit 59 64 59 57 55 49 49 49 50
Gal f Courses 19 12 13 12 12 10 8 8 8

..... 1,836 1,778 1,744 1,700 1,694 1,686 1,685 1,686 1,719
to
w

Sources:
-City of Johnson City Finance Department
-Johnson City School System

Data not available to 2001

See Independent Auditors' Report.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
FUlIction 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Public Safety;

Student Transportation:
Miles 398,550 388,700 399,255 403,328 443,526 459,448
Passengers 891,123 878,450 961,496 991,432 993,748 1,015,715

Police:
Physical Arrests 5,433 7,126 7,457 6,764 7,365 6,641
Parking Citations N/A 3,678 3,195 3,020 2,493 2,202
Traffic Citations 14,986 19,538 23,092 21,829 26,602 23,624

Fire:
Calls Answered 3,190 3,006 2,912 3,543 3,378 3) 123

Inspections 1,225 1,788 1,802 1,980 1,581 1,844
Public Works:

Potholes Repaired N/A 695 211 53 103 404

Streets Swept (linear miles) 1,450 2,264 2,484 2,500 2,500 5,963

Traffic Signals Repaired/Replaced N/A 372 371 241 245 235
Snow & lee Control Treatment (lane miles) N/A 3,000 2,200 2,800 2,226 3,450

Public Welfare:
Parks and Recreation:

Pool Admissions N/A 50,584 51,710 51,789 46,988 51,428

Youth Basketball Participants 1,260 1,234 1,128 912 1,057 724
Youth Soccer Participants 1,955 1,906 1,895 1,691 1,846 1,714

Youth Softball & Tee-ball Participants 524 516 487 383 436 370

Tennis Instruction Participants 194 200 216 210 284 266

Adult Basketball Teams 54 44 30 29 26 25

l\dult Softball Teams 132 131 81 127 143 lI8

Senior Citizens:
Programs/Events Attendance 159,256 161,094 142,054 141,508 146,989 136,000

City Services;
Freedom Hall:

Events N/A 69 61 60 58 54

Wat.er and St'wer:
Average Daily Consumption (Water) 14.21 mgd 14.40 mgd 14.34 mgd 14.91 mgd 14.8 mgd 14.7 mgd

Maximum Daily Capacity (Water) 28.00 mgd 28.00 mgd 28.00 mgd 28.00 mgd 2800 mgd 28.00 mgd

Water Taps 848 783 792 802 606 458

Sewer Taps 580 618 628 596 349 276

Solid Waste:
Refuse Collected (rons) 95,895 95,002 95,372 95,849 98,766 93,364

Recyclables Sold (Tons) 4,401 4,395 4,456 4,519 4,932 4,779

Mulch Sold as Boiler Fuel (Tons) 12,533 13,365 10,004 13,414 11,068 12,054

Leaves Collected (Tons) 3,326 3,447 3,643 3,602 3,072 3.850
Mass Transit:

Passenger Miles 1,387,312 1,460,394 1,681,266 1,470,000 1,662,747 2,204,905
Golf Courses;

18-Hole Rounds Played 48,415 55,000 47,775 47,349 51.668 49,652

fuJurce: Various City Departments
Note: Operating Indicators are not available for the general government function.

Data not avai lable prior to 2004.
See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
Function 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2009

Public Safety:
Student Transportation:

Buses 51 54 52 52 53 54
Police:

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol Units 154 163 166 170 162 191
Motorcycle Units 3 3 3 3 3 3

Fire:
Stations 8 8 8 8 9 9
Fire Trucks/Rescue Units 27 26 27 15 15 21

Public Works:
Streets (Miles) 483.1 488.9 496.89 50501 505.01 505.64
Traffic Signals 84 85 86 91 91 92

Public Welfare:
Parks and Recreation:

Park Sites 19 19 19 19 19 19
Park Acreage 1,081 1,081 1,081 ] ,081 ],08] 1,081
Swimming Pools 2 2 2 2 2 2
Tennis Courts 17 17 17 17 ]7 17
Community/Recreation Centers 4 4 4 4 4 4

Senior Citizens:
Senior Centers

School System:
Elementary Schools 8 8 8 8 8 8
Secondary Schools 2 2 2 2 2 2

Water and Sewer:
Water Mains (Miles) 840.7 854.5 871.3 960 900 901
Fire Hydrants 2,622 2,639 2,828 3,108 3,109 3,259
Sanitary Sewers (Miles) 474.3 474.8 505.3 525 536 55]

Manholes 10,743 10,766 11,452 11,525 12,088 12,61 ]

Solid Waste:
Collection Trucks 46 48 51 51 52 55

Golf Courses 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mass Tra nsit:

Buses/TrolleyslVans 33 35 43 43 39 40

~ourc~: Various City Departments

Note:
-Capital Asset Indicators are not available for the general government function.
-Does not include leased property.

Data not available prior to 2004.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF INTERFUND TR".NSFERS

For the Fiscal Ye"r Ended June 30, 2009
!Unaudited}

Transfers Out:

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds Enterprise Funds
General Debt SehDol Community Facilities Equipment Jolmson City Water Regional City

General Purpose Service Drug Federal Development Project Project Power and Solid Solid
Fund School Fund Fund ~ects Fund Fund Fillld Board Sewer Waste 'Waste

Transfers :ill;

General Fund $ 44,000 2,702,090 441,048

Special Revenue Funds:
Gencml Purpose

School Fund 7,825,925 10,520
TraIlspOi1.ation Planning 31,647
Police Grant Fund 63,611 19,105
Pohce TeclUlolob'Y Fund 3,439
Freedom Hall 234,735
School Fedeml Projects 2.000
Speclal School Projects 14,950 46,895
Scbool Site Based Fund 774,547
Educational Facilities

Debt Service Fund 1,035,400
Debt Service Fund 6,584)71

~

'.C
Cf) Capital Projects Funds:

Parks 215,000 4,500 150,000
Schools 393,000
Equipment 3,181,389 31,913
Infrastructure 313,628 86,801
Public Facilities 1,8i7,752

Enterprise Funds'
City Water and Sewer 20,180 51,000
Solid \Vaste 148,792
Golf Course Fund 401,215
Mass Transit 660,000

Intemal Service Funds:
Insurance Fund 225,000
Motor Transpor! Ftmd 38,491

Totals $ 22,000,714 !,856,842 44,000 19,105 10,520 2,000 123,214 153,439 2,702,090 441,048 168,972 51,000

See Independem Auditors' Report.



CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF BOND PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS ­

ALL FUNDS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
June 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total Requirements

2010 $ 13,139,686 11,5]2,742 24,652,428
201 I 44,719,713 11,494,356 56,214,069
2012 14,091,837 9,664,586 23,756,423
2013 14,736,870 9,260,427 23,997,297
2014 14,493,000 7,516,368 22,009,368
2015 20,869,000 6,917,820 27,786,820
2016 14,453,000 6,062,840 20,515,840
2017 11,865,000 5,430,623 17,295,623
2018 11,591,000 4,907,338 16,498,338
2019 10,616,000 4,388,614 15,004,61'4
2020 10,631,000 3,898,622 14,529,622
2021 9,479,000 3,426,264 12,905,264
2022 9,849,000 2,986,708 12,835,708
2023 9,052,000 2,554,902 11,606,902
2024 6,329,000 2,181,649 8,510,649
2025 5,824,000 1,892,303 7,716,303

2026 5,105,000 1,615,650 6,720,650
2027 4,713,000 1,366,100 6,079,100
2028 4,963,000 1,134,825 6,097,825

2029 5,176,000 896,388 6,072,388
2030 4,380,000 639,613 5,019,613
2031 4,635,000 430,250 5,065,250

2032 2,595,000 208,562 2,803,562

2033 1,880,000 1,969,300

Less: Amount not drawn (12,582,778) (12,582,778)
$ 242,603,328 100,476,850 343,080,178

The total reflected on the statement of net assets has been reduced by deferred debt refunding costs
of$155,776,

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY 0.1<' JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF NOTE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS -

ALL FUNDS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
June 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total Requirements

2010 $ 103,856 49,369 153,225
2011 108,176 45,922 154,098
2012 111,723 42,098 153,821
2013 14,409 38,031 52,440
2014 15,067 37,373 52,440
2015 15,758 36,682 52,440
2016 16,429 36,01 I 52,440
2017 17,229 35,211 52,440
2018 18,020 34,420 52,440
2019 18,845 33,595 52,440
2020 19,959 32,481 52,440
2021 20,606 31,834 52,440
2022 21,551 30,889 52,440
2023 22,535 29,905 52,440
2024 23,229 29,211 52,440
2025 24,647 27,793 52,440
2026 25,775 26,665 52,440
2027 26,954 25,486 52,440
2028 28,155 24,285 52,440
2029 29,480 22,960 52,440
2030 30,830 21,610 52,440
2031 32,245 20,195 52,440
2032 33,695 18,745 52,440
2033 35,265 17,175 52,440
2034 36,881 15,559 52,440
2035 38,558 13,882 52,440
2036 40,307 12,133 52,440
2037 42,173 10,267 52,440
2038 44,165 8,275 52,440
2039 46,128 6,312 52,440
2040 48,266 4,174 52,440
2041 43,065 2,025 45,090
2042 20,433 589 21,022
2043 4,623 81 4,704

$ 1,179,037 821,243 2,000,280

See Independent Auditors' Report,
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UNCOLLECTED DELINQUENT TAXES

June 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Uncollected
Tax Delinquent Taxes
Year June 30, 2009
2008 $ 1,067,559
2007 221,116
2006 85,796
2005 75,532
2004 56,979
2003 82,045
2002 21,272
2001 14,908
2000 14,257
1999 6,522

Total $ 1,645,986

Uncollected Delinquent Taxes Filed in Chancery Court:

As of April 1, 2009, the above delinquent taxes for 1999 through 2007 have been filed by the City Attorney
with the Washington County Chancery Court.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
UTILITY RATE STRUCTURE & NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

June 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Water Rates:
Base
0- 20,000 Gallons Used
20,001 - 190,000 Gallons Used
190,000 - 490,000 Gallons Used
Over 490,000 Gallons Used

Sewer Rates:
Base
o-20,000 Gallons Used
20,001 - 190,000 Gallons Used
190,000 - 490,000 Gallons Used
Over 490,000 Gallons Used

Residential Collection Rates:
Collection at Roadside
Collection at Door
2 Carts
3 Carts

Commercial Collection Rates:
4 yard"
6 yard"
8 yard"
Each Commercial Cart

Number of Customers:
Water
Sewer
Solid Waste~

Unaccounted for Water:

Pumped gallons of water
Accounted for gallons of water
Unaccounted for (lost) gallons of water

Inside City
3.42

2.65 /1,000 gal.
2.12 /1,000 gal.
1.91 / 1,000 gal.
1.72/1,000 gal.

Inside City
3.46

3.47/1,000 gal.
3.47/1,000 gal.
3.30/ 1,000 gal.
3.12/1,000 gal.

Inside City
$8/ mono
$23/ mono

$8/mon.
$8/mon.

Inside City'
$60.00/ mono
$75.00 I man.
$90.00/ mono
1-4 $13/mon.
5-8 $26/mon.
9-12 $39/mon.

Inside City
25,404
23,480
22,665

Gallons

5,374,897,000
3,590,551,174
1,784,345,826

Outside City
6.84

5.30/1,000 gal.
4.24 I 1,000 gal.
3,82/1,000 gal.
3.45 11,000 gal.

Outside City
6.92

6.94/1,000 gal.
6,94/1,000 gal.
6.59 /1,000 gal.
6,25 / 1,000 gal.

Outside City
$15/mon.
$26/ man.

$22.50/ mono
$451 mono

Outside City"
$102.50! mono

$117.50 ! man.
$132.50/ mono
1 $15/ man,

2 $22.50/mon.
3 $45/mon.
4 $60/mon.

Outside City
15,719
3,873
9,623

% of Total Gallons

100.00%
66.80%
33.20%

Sources:
-City of Johnson City Water/Sewer Department
-City ofJohnson City Solid Waste Department

IOoes not include dumpster which can be purchased or rented @$30/mon.
lIncludes dumpster which is furnished.
"Rates based on one collection per week.
400es not include garbage pulls, front loader or container rentals.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UNACCOUNTED FOR WATER

June 30. 2009
(Unaudited)

(All amounts in gallons)

Water Treated and Purchased:
Water Pumped (potable)
Water Purchased

Total Water Treated and Purchased

Accollnted for Water:
Water Sold
Metered for Consumption
Fire Departments Usage
Flushing
Tank Cleaning/Filling
Street Cleaning
Bulk Sales
Water Bill Adjushnents

Total Accounted for Water

Unaccounted for Water

Percentage Unaccounted for Water

Cost per 1,000 gallons of water

Cost of Unaccounted for Water

5,374,897,000

5,374,897,000

3,538,799,300

7,486,800
41,347,898

2,500,800
416,376

1,784,345,826

33.198%

$0.0374

66,734.53

Note: The unmetered water percentage does not include leakage or meter accuracy adjustments as previously accounted for
in the AWWA M36 manual accounting method. The yearly unmetered water would be 11 % if the AWWA l\l136 manual
accounting method was allowed.

See Independent Auditors' RepOli.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN'[ANTS AND O:)NSULTANT'S

American InstitUTe of Certified Public Accounlants

RECIONAL ,EXPEIUJSE - LOCAL SERVICE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS

I-Ionorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Johnson City
Johnson City, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30,
2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated December 18,2009. We did not audit the financial statements of the Johnson City Schools Site Based
Fund, a nonmajor special revenue fund, which represent 1%,2% and 1%, respectively, ofthe assets, net assets
and revenues ofthe aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the City's financial statements, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Johnson City Schools Site Based Fund, is based on the report of the
other auditors. We did not auditthe financial statements of the Johnson City Development Authority, which
represents 6%, 6%, and 15% respectively, ofthe assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units, Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for the Johnson City
Development Authority, is based on the report of other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government A uditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City's internal
control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the City's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
a misstatement of the City's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not to be prevented or
detected by the City's internal control.
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City of Johnson City, Tennessee
Page 2

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination ofsignificant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal contra J that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with celtain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City, in a separate lctter dated December
18,2009.

This repolt is intended solely for the information and use of the aud it comm ittee, management, Board of
Commissioners, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Jfttchln:J.i~ tlJd J?b.~ /J Ail
BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & ST~LL, PLC

December] 8, 2009
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C:nnIFTED PUI3L1C ACC()lJNIAN'rs AND CONSULfANTS

American Institute of Celtif:ied Public Accountants

REGIONAL EXPERTISE LOC:AL SERVICF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-I33

Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Johnson City
Johnson City, Tennessee

We have audited the compliance of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2009. The
City ofJohnson City, Tennessee's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section ofthe accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the City of Johnson City, Tennessee's mtmagement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of
Johnson City, Tennessee's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit ofcompliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A- 133, Audits ofStates, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Johnson City,
Tennessee's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe City of Johnson City, Tennessee's compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Johnson City, Tennessee complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009,
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
Page 2

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the City ofJohnson City,
Tennessee's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofintemal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Johnson City,
Tennessee's internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type ofcompliance requirement ofa federal program that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph ofthis section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control oycr
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Th is report is intended solely for the information and use of management, board of comm issioners, federal
awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

6&,de$(A}r#.~ tJiJ~a~~lfi:LL~
BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & STEAGALL, PLC

December 18, 2009
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2009

1. The auditors' report based on our audit and the report of other auditors expresses an unqualified
opinion on the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee (the "City").

2. There are no significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City, which would be
required to be repOlted in accordance with Government A uditing Standards, were disclosed during the
audit.

4. There are no significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City expresses an
unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There are no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs that are required to be
disclosed in accordance with section 510(a) ofOMB Circular A-133.

7. The programs tested as major programs were as follows:

Program
IDEA, U.S. Department of Education
HEROES, U.S. Department of Education
Federal Transportation Administration
Community Development Block Grant
National School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program

CFDA
Number
84.027
84.184L
20.507
14.218
10.533
10.555

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

9. The City was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2009

Section II - Financial Statement Findi1}g2

Current Year Findings:

None

Prior Year Ejndings Implemented:

The following prior year findings have been corrected to our satisfaction:

Finding 08-1

Finding 08-2

Finding 08-3

Finding 08-4

Finding 08-5

Budget Procedures: Budgetary controls appear to have improved with budget
amendments being made to correctly reflect actual spending.

Golf Course Procedures: Cash registers were used throughout the entire year
and controls were strengthened over golf course procedures.

Budget Procedures: The budgets appear to have been approved in a timely
manner and differences between the approval amounts were minimal.

Tracking of Grants: Grants 'were more closely tracked within the schools
during the current year. Expenses were matched with grant revenues and
monitored more closely.

Actuarial Reports: Actuarial reports for workers compensation, automotive
liability and general liability were received in a timely manner resulting in
adequate time for the liability adjustments.

Section III - Federal Aw~rd_.fjlldings_?olJsLQl!estionedCQ~!~

There were no findings in regard to the major federal award programs audit.
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